THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH IN CANADA ARCHIVES

GUIDE TO RECORDS RELATING TO THE RESIDENTIAL SCHOOLS



Photo #G-377-MC

50 Wynford Drive. Toronto, Ontario M3C 1J7

Telephone: (416) 441-1111 1-800-619-7301

Fax: 416-441-2825

Web: http://www.presbyterianarchives.ca

Version: Nov. 23, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction:	
Purpose of the Guide	4
How to Use the Guide	4
Restrictions	5
Copyright	5
Further Research	5
Historical Language Advisory	
Administrative History of the Residential Schools	6
Administrative History of Healing and Reconciliation Efforts	
List of Residential Schools Operated by The Presbyterian Church	
in Canada	12
File Lists:	
National Office:	
Assembly Council	14
Board of Congregational Life	18
Board of Evangelism and Social Action	19
Board of Home Missions and Social Service	20
Committee on History	21
General Assembly/Assembly Office	22
General Board of Missions/Board of World Mission	27
Life and Mission Agency	36
Administration	38
Canada Ministries	46
Justice Ministries	51
Women's Missionary Societies:	
Woman's Foreign Mission Society	63
Women's Missionary Society (Western Division)	66
Women's Missionary Society Provincials/Synodicalsand Presbyterials	117
Synods:	
Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario	118
Presbyteries:	
Presbytery of Brandon	
Presbytery of Lake of the Woods	123

Presbytery of Superior	123
Presbytery of Winnipeg	125
Congregational Records:	
First Presbyterian Church, Kenora	127
Personal Papers:	
Kay Blake fonds	129
Stewart Folster fonds	
Richard Horst fonds	130
Larry Jackson fonds	
Bernice Shih fonds	
Relevant Periodicals:	120
Acts and Proceedings	
The Canadian Society of Presbyterian History	
Foreign Missionary Tidings	
The Glad Tidings	
In Our Small Corner/Streams of Justice	
The Missionary Messenger	
Monthly Letter Leaflet	
Presbyterian History	
The Presbyterian Record	135
Photographs	136
Audio Visual Records	137

INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the Guide

This guide has been created in order to bring together in one listing, all the records that exist in this Archives that relate to The Presbyterian Church in Canada's (The PCC) involvement in the administration and operation of **Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and Birtle Indian Residential School from 1925 onwards**, as well as its work with Aboriginal peoples in the area of healing and reconciliation.

Note:

The majority of residential school records held by The Presbyterian Church in Canada date from 1925 and concern only two schools, Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and Birtle Indian Residential School. Many of the national office records pre-1925 became the legal property of The United Church of Canada (Archives) as a result of the 1925 Church Union property division. Although the two repositories for the dates around 1925 may overlap, the majority of the earlier records relating to PCC residential schools are lodged with the United Church Archives office in Toronto.

How to Use the Guide

This guide is divided into sections, with each section representing a specific body (ie. committee, board, department, agency, organization, or individual) of The PCC that has produced records that in some way relate to the residential schools. Within each section you will generally find an administrative history or biographical sketch, a scope and content note, and a file list.

The administrative history/biographical sketch provides information about the body that created the records, while the scope and content note provides information about the records themselves, such as how they have been arranged and organized. The file list, in turn, is the primary area. In it, you will see a complete listing of those files generated by that particular body which in some way relate to the residential schools. A descriptive title for each file is given, along with the dates of creation of the records within that file, and a unique reference number.

To use the guide, therefore, browse the sections. Within each section, read the administrative history and scope and content notes to get a better idea about the department, board, or organization and the records it created. Then browse through the file list and identify those files which you would like to view. Provide the archivist with the unique reference numbers for those files and he/she will retrieve the files and bring them out to you to view in the reading room of the Archives.

Please note that the Women's Missionary Society (Western Division) was the major PCC body directly involved in the administration and operation of the residential school after 1925. The W.M.S. section of the guide is therefore the primary source for files relating to the running of the schools and contains approximately 60% of the records described in this guide. The majority of records from the other boards, agencies and departments of The PCC such as the General Board of Missions/Board of World Mission or the Life and Mission Agency relate more to healing and reconciliation initiatives of The PCC as opposed to actual administration of the schools. The records of the synods, presbyteries, congregations and the Woman's Foreign Missionary Society document the supportive and advisory role of these groups or church courts in sending supplies to the schools, receiving reports and providing feedback, and raising awareness about the work of the residential schools.

More current records, which have not yet been transferred to the Archives, are still held by the relevant offices (Assembly Council, Assembly Office, W.M.S. (W.D.), Life and Mission Agency, Justice Ministries and Canada Ministries). The records relevant to residential schools are concerned with ongoing reconciliation work and litigation issues as opposed to the actual administration and operation of the schools. The active office records relate to working groups, healing funds and projects, studies, workshops, training sessions, and resources. Additional accruals of these records to the Archives are expected.

Restrictions

Personnel files are restricted for 75 years from the latest date in that file. Some records of a legal nature are also restricted. For further details, please consult with an archivist.

Copyright

Some material in this fonds may be protected by copyright (please ask the archivist on staff for clarification). A single copy of items may be made for purposes of research and private study. Authorization must be obtained from the copyright holder if protected material is to be used for any other purpose. Protected material cannot be published without permission from the copyright holder.

Further Research:

For further information and records related to residential schools in Canada, researchers may also want to consult other church denominations and organizations such as The United Church of Canada, the Anglican Church of Canada, the Catholic Church in Canada, Library and Archives Canada, Indian and Northern Affairs Canada and the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada.

Historical Language Advisory

Certain parts of The Presbyterian Church in Canada archival holdings contain historical language and content that some may consider offensive. This may include language used to refer to racial, ethnic, and cultural groups. The descriptions and content of our collections are reflective of the time period when they were created and the view of their creator.

In order to preserve attitudes and views within the historical record, the original description of materials has been retained. As an ongoing process, the archivists may provide explanatory notes with background information of the descriptions.

If you see records with inappropriate language that you feel the archivists should review, please contact us through presbyterianarchives.ca/contact.

BRIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HISTORY OF THE RESIDENTIAL SCHOOLS

The Presbyterian Church in Canada's involvement in the residential school system for aboriginal people spanned almost nine decades from the mid-1880s until 1969 when the residential schools became the full responsibility of the Federal Government. In total, the church operated eleven residential schools (see page 9 for a complete list). However, at the time of Church Union in 1925, responsibility for the

majority of these schools was transferred to the newly formed United Church of Canada. Only two schools - Birtle School in Manitoba and Cecilia Jeffrey School in Kenora, Ontario remained the responsibility of The Presbyterian Church in Canada (PCC).

The PCC first began its mission work with aboriginal people in Canada in the mid-1860s. One prominent aspect of this outreach right from the start was education - especially of children - and day schools were established on a number of reserves. By the early 1880s,



G-1741-FC Old Birtle Residential School, c.1900

however, the Federal Government became focused on a system of off-reserve, residential (ie. "boarding") schools for the education of aboriginal children, rather than the further development of day schools. The Presbyterian Church in Canada agreed and began partnering with the government in the establishment and operation of new schools. Generally speaking, the Church was responsible for operating the schools while the government provided funding and oversight, and established the policies under which the schools were to be administered.

Administratively, it was the Foreign Missions Committee of The Presbyterian Church in Canada, under the authority of the Church's highest court - the General Assembly - which assumed responsibility over the operation of the schools. The Woman's Foreign Missionary Society (Western Division), assisted this



G-1974-FC Cecilia Jeffrey School, 1964

committee by raising funds and promoting the work amongst its members. Over time this relationship changed, however, and the Women's Missionary Society (W.M.S.) assumed a greater role in the administration of the schools. This shift was completed in 1927 when the General Board of Missions of The Presbyterian Church in Canada "management of all Indian Boarding Schools be under the care and supervision of the W.M.S. (Western Division)."2 The W.M.S. (W.D.) continued in this capacity until 1969 when the schools became the full responsibility of the Federal Government.

The residential schools were financed largely through a per capita grant given to the WMS by the government, ie. a certain amount was provided for each student at the school. This grant was to cover items such as food, clothing, school and building supplies,

¹ J.R. Miller, Shingwauk's Vision (Toronto: University of Toronto Press, 1996), pages 100-105.

² The Presbyterian Church in Canada Archives, General Board of Missions - Minutes, March 1927, File #1988-1003-3-3.

salaries (except the Principal and Matron), and general maintenance needs. The buildings themselves were owned by the government and any capital improvements or expenditures rested with them. The WMS, in turn, paid the Principal and Matron's salaries, as well as any additional spending required to meet the operational needs of the school. Budgeting within the per capita limits proved difficult and was a constant and ongoing concern to the Principal and the WMS. Beginning in 1957, the government assumed a greater role in the financing of the schools and the per capita grant system was replaced with one in which the schools were reimbursed for actual expenditures based on budgeted allocations.³

The day-to-day administration of the schools largely rested with the Principal, who was appointed by, and reported to, the W.M.S. (W.D.). As head of the school, the Principal was responsible for a wide-variety of functions including hiring and managing staff, overseeing the students, ensuring the

maintenance of the building and property (including the farm), managing the school's daily finances, and maintaining discipline.

Other staff at the schools generally included the teachers, the Matron (who was often the wife of the Principal), Boys' and Girls' Supervisors, Cook, Laundry Matron, Sewing Matron, Nurse, Engineer, Farm Manager, and a Night Watchman. The staff were generally hired by the Principal in consultation with the WMS, and their salaries were paid for out of the per capita grant received from the government. This changed slightly in September 1954 when the



G-4451-FC-12 Cecilia Jeffrey students working on the farm, c.1937

Department of Indian Affairs took over direct responsibility for the hiring and paying of the teachers in the schools⁴.

The curriculum in the schools also changed over time. The schools taught Grades 1 to 8. However, up until the mid-1940s the students were on a "half-day" system. This meant that half their time was spent in classroom learning while the other half was spent in vocational training. For boys this primarily meant work on the school farm, although other manual training was involved as well. For girls it usually involved training in sewing, dress-making and cooking. This "half-day" system also meant that it took longer for students in a residential school to complete the academic curriculum. By the late-1940s the students at both Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey were on a full-day system of classroom learning, which was to follow the standard curriculum of the province in which the school was located⁵.

"This year the children went to classes for the whole day, as in other schools. This has given them a much greater opportunity, as a child can complete the work of a grade in a year. The prospects for the future are much better. A goodly number in the Junior classroom will be doing high school work before they are sixteen under the present system. The children's English is improving, so that their Indian language is seldom heard in the playground or around the building. Most of the Indians praise the full-day system, and some see the advantage of entering school early, but some still do not and will not bring their children to school before ten or eleven years of age".

[Report of the Principal of Birtle School, WMS Annual Report 1945, page 52]

³ John Milloy, A National Crime (Winnipeg: The University of Manitoba Press, 1999) page 270, and also Millar 393.

⁴ A good source of information on staff positions is the 1952-53 report of Rev. J.C.E. Andrews, Principal of Cecilia Jeffrey School (Women's Missionary Society. Cecilia Jeffrey School – General Files, File #1988-7004-18-14)

⁵ According to the W.M.S. Annual Reports the switch to "full-day" schooling was begun at both Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey in 1943, with the youngest grades, and was phased in over the next few years.

Students that completed Grade 8 could write an entrance examination in order to attend high school classes in the nearest town (Birtle or Kenora). Up until the late 1940s and the introduction of the full-day system, the percentage of students entering high school remained extremely small. In 1949, 300 students attended Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey, while only 17 of these were in High School.⁶

Christian education was also an important aspect of the daily curriculum at both Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey, although the number of daily or weekly worship services held, and the form of religious training, varied slightly over the years, and between the two schools. Scripture readings and exercises were usually

conducted each morning, while chapel services were often held in the evening. Worship services were held once or twice each Sunday, and a Sunday School was often conducted in the afternoon. Church-related groups such as Mission Bands, Explorers, and C.G.I.T. meetings were also encouraged.

During the 1950s, the demographics of the student populations at both Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey began to change. Following the revision of the Indian Act in 1951, more and more day schools began to be opened on nearby reserves, which saw fewer local children being sent to the residential schools. As a result, a larger percentage of the students at Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey were from more distant and remote areas that had no



G-6-SB-16 High School Students, Birtle School, May 1952

day school of their own⁷. At the same time, the percentage of high school students living at the schools also increased considerably. Beginning in 1951, aboriginal students from across Manitoba and Saskatchewan that were eligible for high school but otherwise had no access to one were brought to live at Birtle, where they could attend classes in the local high school.

"The students are from almost all Protestant reserves in Manitoba and from several in Saskatchewan. A number of them are members of other churches. This is due to the fact that the day schools on the reserves are caring for the younger students and those who are able to attend from their homes. To residential school go those children, who are too distant to attend day school, orphans, those from broken or very bad homes and those who are seeking grades above the day school."

[Report of the Principal of Birtle, WMS Annual Report 1958]

By the late 1950s and early 1960s, the Residential School system entered a final transition stage as the Federal Government shifted its policy away from segregated residential schools and towards the education of aboriginal students in local public systems. This shift began at Cecilia Jeffrey in 1959 and by 1965 all students living at the school were attending classes in the local public school.⁸ Integration of students in Grades 1 to 8 began at Birtle School in 1962 and was more or less complete by 1966. In 1966, Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School was formally renamed Cecilia Jeffrey Residence.

⁶ W.M.S. Annual Report 1949, page 44 (File #1988-7004-2-6)

⁷ WMS Annual Report 1956, page 47 (File #1988-7004-2-9)

⁸ WMS Annual report 1965, page 76 (File #1988-7004-3-3)

On March 31, 1969, The Presbyterian Church in Canada's involvement in the operation of the schools ended, and Birtle Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Residence were transferred to the Federal Government.

BRIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HISTORY OF HEALING AND RECONCILIATION EFFORTS

By the mid-1980s a greater recognition was awakening within The Presbyterian Church in Canada of its part in the painful legacy of church, government and First Nations relations - including its involvement in the Residential Schools - and steps began to be taken to "hear and respond" more sensitively to the agendas of First Nations people.⁹

In 1989 a National Committee on Native Ministry was established. Shortly thereafter, the Church joined the Aboriginal Rights Coalition (renamed the Indigenous Rights Program of KAIROS: Canadian Ecumenical Justice Initiative), and in 1993 a Residential Schools Working Group was formed. Draft work on an apology to Aboriginal peoples was also begun in early 1991, culminating in the 1994 adoption of the Church's "Confession" by the 120th General Assembly of The Presbyterian Church in

Canada. This confession was formally presented at the Forks National Site in Winnipeg on October 8th, 1994. Phil Fontaine, Grand Chief of the Assembly of Manitoba Chiefs, received the confession on behalf of First Nations people.¹⁰

Since then, The Presbyterian Church in Canada has embarked on a number of initiatives with the goal of greater healing and reconciliation with Aboriginal peoples.

In 1995, The Rev. Dr. Allan McPherson and eighteen other members of the Church, attended the "Sacred Assembly", a four day



G-3664-FC-16 Rev. George Vais presenting the Church's "Confession" to Phil Fontaine, Winnipeg, October 1994.

event called by Elijah Harper to "bring together Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal spiritual leaders for the purpose of providing counsel and promoting reconciliation". 11

In 1996 work began on a healing fund initiative which resulted in the launching of the "Journey to Wholeness" campaign in April 1998. A "Journey to Wholeness Campaign Committee" guided the initiative, which lasted until March 31, 2000 and raised more than \$280,000 for a variety of healing-related projects.¹²

On the legal side, the first claim relating to residential schools was filed against The Presbyterian Church in Canada in 1998. By 2003 there were a total of 246 claims¹³. On February 13, 2003, a settlement agreement was signed by The Rev. Stephen Kendall, Principal Clerk, on behalf of The Presbyterian Church in Canada, with the Federal Government. This agreement outlined the "relative financial burden

⁹ Acts and Proceedings of the 115th General Assembly (1989), pg. 468. The words "hear and respond" were used in the Board of World Mission's response to Overture No. 6, 1987 from the Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario to describe the mandate of the newly formed National Committee on Native Ministry: "This Committee, by its mandate, would be in a better place and interest to hear and respond sensitively to the agendas of our Native brothers and sisters." ¹⁰ Acts and Proceedings of the 120th General Assembly (1994). See page 376 for the text of the "Confession" as presented to, and adopted by, the General Assembly.

¹¹ Acts &Proceedings of the 122nd General Assembly (1996), pg. 214.

¹² Presbyterian Record, Feb. 2007, pg. 20.

¹³ Presbyterian Record, Feb. 2007, pg. 21.

each will bear in trying to repair harm done to students at residential schools administered by The Presbyterian Church in Canada." Under this agreement, the Church's share was \$2,100,000 and this was set aside in a "Residential Schools Settlement Fund". At the same time, two additional funds were created: the "Residential Schools Resolution Fund" (\$500,000), sometimes called the Implementation Fund, designed to provide the resources needed to ensure the Church meets its commitments under the agreement; and the "Residential Schools Healing and Reconciliation Fund" (\$500,000) designed to complement the Journey to Wholeness Fund, and allow the church to "initiate and participate in education, and healing and reconciliation initiatives and programs."

In 2004 the Residential Schools Working Group was replaced with a one-year Healing and Reconciliation Task Force, designed to establish a "national strategy for engaging congregations in the healing process with aboriginals". This work resulted in the formation of a Healing and Reconciliation Design Team in 2005.

In 2006, the General Assembly approved the work of the Design Team and established the "Walking Together" program, to be administered through the Justice Ministries department of the Life and Mission Agency. This program has five goals: to provide support and/or seed funding for local initiatives; to encourage and support activities for youth; to invite other denominations to engage in a Leaders tour or initiative, with reference to the model of Ten Days for Global Justice; to develop and distribute resource materials; and to establish and support a local resource team to further healing and reconciliation in the years to come.¹⁸

To assist with the implementation of the program, a Healing and Reconciliation Animator was hired in September 2006, and a Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee was formed in December 2006. One of the primary responsibilities of this committee is to provide funding for various projects through the newly formed "Native Ministries Healing and Reconciliation Fund" (see footnote 15) and "Healing and Reconciliation Project Fund".

In 2007, the "Residential Schools Settlement Agreement" between the Government of Canada, the churches, and representatives of former students, came into effect. This agreement provided a system of compensation for former students of the residential schools, and also led to the creation of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada. Under this agreement, The Presbyterian Church in Canada has also agreed to provide copies of all documentation relating to its involvement in the residential schools system in the hopes that they will assist the Truth and Reconciliation Commission to "learn the truth about what happened in the residential schools and to inform all Canadians." ¹⁹

¹⁴ Acts & Proceedings of the 112th General Assembly (2003), pg. 201.

¹⁵ As a result of a new Residential Schools agreement signed in 2006, this amount of \$2,100,000 set aside for the "Residential Schools Settlement Fund" was reduced to \$1,320,000 in August 2007. The 2006 General Assembly approved that the difference between the two amounts be used toward healing and reconciliation work. Out of this money, \$200,000 was designated for participation in the Truth and Reconciliation Commission; \$400,000 was set aside and became the "Native Ministries Healing Fund"; \$100,000 was used for the Healing and Reconciliation Program of Justice Ministries; and \$84,000 was used for the Aboriginal and Church Leaders' Tour "Remembering the Children". For further information see the *Acts & Proceedings of the 134th General Assembly (2008)*, page 211.

¹⁶ Acts & Proceedings of the 129th General Assembly (2003), pgs. 210, 222-229.

¹⁷ Presbyterian Record, Feb. 2007, pg. 23.

¹⁸ Acts and Proceedings of the 133rd General Assembly (2007), page 323.

¹⁹ Truth and Reconciliation Website www.trc.ca

LIST OF RESIDENTIAL SCHOOLS OPERATED BY THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH IN CANADA²⁰

Ahousaht Residential School, British Columbia

A day school was opened in 1896. In 1902 it started taking on boarders and in 1903 it was accepted as a residential school by the Federal Government. It became the responsibility of the United Church of Canada after 1925.

Alberni Residential School, British Columbia

A day school was opened in 1890. It became a boarding/industrial school in December 1892. It became the responsibility of the United Church of Canada after 1925.

Birtle Residential School, Manitoba

Birtle Residential School began as a day school in 1884 and was converted to a boarding or "residential" school in December 1888. Following Church Union in 1925, responsibility for the school remained uncertain until 1927 when the Dominion Property Commission assigned it to The Presbyterian Church in Canada. The following served as Principals of Birtle School after Church Union: Mr. H.B. Currie (1927-1929); Rev. E.H. Lockhart (1929-1942); Mr. A.E. Candy (acting Principal 1942); Mr. Roy Webb (1942-1945); and Mr. N.M. Rusaw (1945-1969). Mr. Rusaw's title was changed from Principal to Administrator in 1968. Responsibility for the school was transferred to the Federal Government in 1969.

Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School, Shoal Lake, Ontario (first location)

Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School was built in the summer and fall of 1901, and was opened in January 1902. It was located on Shoal Lake, 45 miles from Kenora. Following Church Union in 1925, responsibility for the school remained uncertain until 1927 when the Dominion Property Commission assigned it to The Presbyterian Church in Canada. The original school building closed in 1929.

Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School, Kenora, Ontario (second location)

A new building for Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School, located 3 miles from Kenora, was formally opened and dedicated on November 6th, 1929. The following served as Principals of the Cecilia Jeffrey School after Church Union: Rev. A.D. Menzies (1927-1929); Mr. E.W. Byers (1929-1940); Mr. Douglas Pitts (1940-1948); Mr. T.C. Ross (1948-1951); Mr. R.S. MacCallum (1951-1952); Rev. J.C. E. Andrews (1952-1953); Mr. Eric Barrington (acting Principal 1953-1954); Mr. Ivan Robson (1954-1957); Mr. Howard Neely (1957-1958); Mr. Stephen Robinson (1958-1966); and Mr. Colin Wasacase (1966-1969). Mr. Wasacase's title changed from Principal to Administrator in 1967. Responsibility for the school was transferred to the Federal Government in 1969.

Crowstand Residential School, Saskatchewan

This school was opened on Jan. 28th, 1889, near Fort Pelly. A new building was erected in 1899. It closed on November 30th, 1915 and a new day school called Cote Indian School was opened in its place in December 1916.

File Hills Residential School, Saskatchewan

An industrial/boarding school was opened c.1888. A new school building was opened in 1910. It became the responsibility of the United Church of Canada after 1925.

²⁰ This listing was compiled from information taken from the W.F.M.S. and W.M.S. Annual Reports 1888-1927.

Muscowpetung (later known as "Lakesend") Residential School, Saskatchewan

A boarding school opened c.1888. In 1890 the school was moved to a point nine miles north of the old site. This school closed in June 1894 but was re-opened briefly in 1895 before being closed again in 1896.

Portage la Prairie Residential School, Manitoba

This school opened c.1886 by the women of Knox Presbyterian Church, Portage la Prairie, who formed a group called the "Women's Sioux Missionary Society". This society was incorporated into the W.F.M.S. (W.D.) in 1887. A new residence was opened in 1895. It became the responsibility of the United Church of Canada after 1925.

Regina Industrial School, Saskatchewan

This school was opened in 1891 as a Government Industrial School. The school was supported entirely by the per capita grant given by the Indian Department. Additional financial aid was not provided by the W.F.M.S. (W.D.). It was closed in 1910.

Round Lake Residential School, Saskatchewan

A school was opened at this mission in December 1884. In December 1887 a new "boarding" school was opened. It became the responsibility of the United Church of Canada after 1925.

Stoney Plain Residential School, Alberta

A boarding/industrial school was opened c.1889-90. This school was closed in 1893 and the mission was transferred to the Methodist Church in 1894.

Assembly Council

Administrative Sketch:

The Assembly Council was established by the 117th General Assembly in 1991 as a successor to the Administrative Council. The Assembly Council reports to the General Assembly. It is responsible for recommending policies, submitting short and long range plans, recommending budgets and providing general oversight and control of the financial affairs of the Church. The Assembly Council is also responsible for coordinating the work of agencies and committees of The PCC and in this capacity residential schools related issues are often on the Council agenda. Various committees report to Assembly Council including those dealing with healing and reconciliation initiatives of the Church such as the Journey to Wholeness Spending Committee and the Healing and Reconciliation Design Team. The Assembly Council also gives consideration and final decision to cases where it is necessary to undertake legal proceedings and thus any residential schools cases would be referred to Council.

Scope and Content:

Contains minutes, correspondence and reports which document the discussions and decisions undertaken by The Assembly Council in relation to residential schools issues. The minutes and correspondence in both The Assembly Council Executive records and The Assembly Council meeting records contain reference to residential schools and healing and reconciliation activities. There are also minutes, planning files, correspondence, reports and pamphlets from The Healing and Reconciliation Design Team.

Series: Assembly Council Minutes and Correspondence

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	Description
2010-1009-7-4	1998-1999	Assembly Council Actions – Correspondence relating to decisions made by the Council
2010-1009-2-19	March 26-27, 1993	Minutes
2010-1009-3-1	November 18-20, 1993	Minutes
2010-1009-3-2	March 18-19, 1994	Minutes
2010-1009-3-3	March 26-28, 1995	Minutes
2010-1009-3-4	November 26-28, 1995	Minutes
2010-1009-4-1	March 24-26, 1996	Minutes
2010-1009-4-2	March 29-31, 1998	Minutes
2010-1009-4-3	November 22-24, 1998	Minutes
2010-1009-4-4	November 21-23, 1999	Minutes
2010-1009-5-1	March 26-28, 2000	Minutes
2010-1009-5-2	November 26-28, 2000	Minutes
2010-1009-5-3	March 25-26, 2001	Minutes
2010-1009-5-4	November 23-25, 2001	Minutes

2010-1009-6-1	March 17-19, 2002	Minutes
2010-1009-6-2	November 22-26, 2002	Minutes
2014-1009-1-1	March 28-30, 2003	Minutes
2014-1009-1-2	November 23-25, 2003	Minutes
2010-1009-6-3	March 21-23, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-6-4	March 28-30, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-7-1	November 21-23, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-7-2	April 3-5, 2005	Minutes
2010-1009-7-3	November 20-22, 2005	Minutes
2014-1012-1-1	March 26-28, 2006	Minutes
2014-1012-1-2	November 19-21, 2006	Minutes
2014-1012-1-3	March 25-27, 2007	Minutes
2014-1012-1-4	November 25-27, 2007	Minutes
2014-1012-2-1	March 30-April 1, 2008	Minutes
2014-1012-2-2	November 23-25, 2008	Minutes
2014-1012-2-3	March 22-24, 2009	Minutes
2014-1012-2-4	November 22-24, 2009	Minutes
2014-1012-2-5	November 21-23, 2010	Minutes
2014-1012-2-6	March 27-29, 2011	Minutes
2014-1012-2-7	November 20-22, 2011	Minutes
2014-1012-2-8	March 25-27, 2012	Minutes
2014-1012-2-9	November 25-27, 2012	Minutes
2014-1012-2-10	March 17-19, 2013	Minutes

Series: Assembly Council Executive Minutes

2010-1009-1-1	September 20-21, 1993	Minutes
2010-1009-1-2	November 1, 1993	Minutes
2010-1009-1-3	February 18, 1994	Minutes
2010-1009-1-4	May 2-3, 1994	Minutes
2010-1009-1-5	August 29-30, 1994	Minutes
2010-1009-1-6	October 3, 1994	Minutes
2010-1009-1-7	January 23, 1995	Minutes
2010-1009-1-8	April 29-May 1, 1996	Minutes

2010-1009-1-9	February 25, 1998	Minutes
2010-1009-1-10	June 29, 1998	Minutes
2010-1009-1-11	October 7, 1998	Minutes
2010-1009-1-12	January 11, 1999	Minutes
2010-1009-2-1	May 10, 1999	Minutes
2010-1009-2-2	June 28, 1999	Minutes
2010-1009-2-3	September 24, 1999	Minutes
2010-1009-2-4	January 10, 2000	Minutes
2010-1009-2-5	May 8, 2000	Minutes
2010-1009-2-6	September 22, 2000	Minutes
2010-1009-2-7	January 12, 2001	Minutes
2010-1009-2-8	May 4, 2001	Minutes
2010-1009-2-9	September 28, 2001	Minutes
2010-1009-2-10	January 11, 2002	Minutes
2010-1009-2-11	April 10, 2002	Minutes
2010-1009-2-12	May 15, 2002	Minutes
2014-1009-1-3	January 14, 2003	Minutes
2010-1009-2-13	January 22, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-2-14	May 17, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-2-15	September 21, 2004	Minutes
2010-1009-2-16	January 18, 2005	Minutes
2010-1009-2-17	May 19, 2005	Minutes
2010-1009-2-18	September 21, 2005	Minutes
2014-1010-1-1	2006	Minutes
2014-1010-1-3	2008	Minutes
2014-1010-1-4	2009	Minutes
2014-1011-1-1	2011	Minutes

Series: Healing and Reconciliation Design Team

The Healing and Reconciliation Design team was created in 2005 as the result of the work of the Healing and Reconciliation Task Force. The Design Team reported to The Assembly Council and eventually presented its report to the General Assembly in 2006. Out of the approval of this report came the establishment of the *Walking Together* program, to be administered through the Justice Ministries department of the Life and Mission Agency; the hiring of a Healing and Reconciliation Animator in September 2006 and the formation of a Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee in December 2006. The Healing and Reconciliation Design Team wrapped up its work in late 2006.

Further records related to the Healing and Reconciliation Design Team can be found in the Life and Mission Agency's residential school files.

2009-1039-1-1	2003-2005	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team (Part 1) Minutes, planning files for meetings, correspondence and reports
2009-1039-1-2	2003-2005	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team (Part 2) Minutes, planning files for meetings, correspondence and reports
2006-1023	2006	Healing and Reconciliation Initiative Pamphlets

Board of Congregational Life

Administrative Sketch:

The Board of Congregational Life was established by the 98th General Assembly in June of 1972 as an agency for the support and encouragement of congregational life and mission within The Presbyterian Church in Canada. A protem Board was appointed in June of 1972 to serve until the 1974 General Assembly. Programming began on January 1st, 1974, and continued until the Board was dissolved by the action of the 118th General Assembly in June of 1992. The Board brought together under one mandate many of the functions of three former agencies: the Board of Christian Education, the Board of Evangelism and Social Action, and the Board of Stewardship and Budget. With its dissolution in 1992, many of the functions of the Board of Congregational Life became the responsibility of the Life and Mission Agency.

One of the areas of responsibility for the Board was the Church and Society Programme, which existed from 1986-1992, and focused on social justice issues. One of the many issues that the Church and Society Programme devoted time and resources to was Aboriginal rights, including issues surrounding residential schools. After 1992, this programme continued as Justice Ministries of the Life and Mission Agency.

Scope & Content:

Contains general correspondence of Ray Hodgson, Programme Director of Church and Society, in which there are letters referring to healing and reconciliation initiatives. Also contains correspondence, minutes and reports from the Aboriginal Rights Coalition, an ecumenical coalition which The PCC joined in 1989.

Series: Church and Society Programme

Sub-Series: Correspondence

1992-1256-1-6 1992 General Correspondence

Sub-Series: Social Justice Issues

1992-1256-2-10 1990-1992 Aboriginal Rights Coalition: Residential Schools

Correspondence, minutes and reports

Board of Evangelism and Social Action

Administrative Sketch:

The Board of Evangelism and Social Action was established by the General Assembly of 1945. As the name suggests, its main area of responsibility was the promotion of evangelism and social action amongst the congregations of The PCC. The Board also had responsibility for training Church Elders. The Board offered workshops and training programs and produced and disseminated training manuals, study papers, and other literature on evangelism and a variety of current social issues. One of the many issues that the Board of Evangelism and Social Action devoted time and resources to was Aboriginal rights. The Board of Evangelism and Social Action also represented The PCC on inter-church committees and organizations engaged in similar work and presented briefs to the government outlining The PCC's stance on various social and moral issues. The Board was dissolved on December 31st, 1973, its functions being assumed by the Board of Congregational Life.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1982-1029-1-2	c.1965	Study Papers "C-D" The Canadian Indian. 6pp.
		Written by A.J. Gowland.

Board of Home Missions and Social Service

Administrative Sketch:

The Board of Home Missions and Social Service was created in ca. 1921 from a merger of The Board of Home Missions and The Board of Social Service and Evangelism. One of the Board's main purposes was to encourage the growth of The PCC through mission activities in Canada, including work amongst Aboriginal communities. The Board was dissolved c. 1925 with the creation of the General Board of Missions. After 1925, home mission work was continued by the Home Mission section of the new General Board of Missions.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2000-1008-1-1	March 1920-Sept. 1922	Minutes
2000-1008-1-2	March 1923-Sept. 1926	Minutes

Committee on History

Administrative Sketch:

The Committee on History was first established on June 21, 1879. It seems to have become dormant in the early years of the 20th century but was reactivated at the 1916 General Assembly. The Committee has functioned continuously since that time. The Committee seeks to raise interest in and awareness of The PCC's history through means such as the publication of articles or the celebration of significant anniversaries. The Committee reports directly to the General Assembly. Until 1993, The Presbyterian Church in Canada Archives was the direct responsibility of the Committee. *Presbyterian History*, the twice-yearly publication of the Committee, has been published since March 1957.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
	May 2004	Bush, Peter. "The Native Residential School System and The Presbyterian Church in Canada." Presbyterian History. Volume 48, Number 1 Located in the Periodicals Section
	May 2006	Campbell, Mary F. "The Impact of the Residential School Experience on the Contemporary Approach of the Presbyterian Church in Canada to Relationships with Aboriginal Peoples." <i>Presbyterian History</i> . Volume 50, Number 1 Located in the Periodicals Section
	May 2010	Bush, Peter. "The Presbyterian Church in Canada and The World Missionary Conference, Edinburgh 1910." <i>Presbyterian History</i> . Volume 54, Number 1 Located in the Periodicals Section

General Assembly/Clerks of Assembly/Assembly Office

Administrative Sketch:

The General Assembly is the highest court of The PCC. It meets once each year on the first Sunday in June. The various boards, agencies and committees of The PCC, including those previously involved in the operation of residential schools or those now participating in healing and reconciliation work, report to The General Assembly.

The General Assembly Office (or simply "Assembly Office") was established in 1992, continuing and expanding upon the functions formerly carried out by the Clerk of Assembly's Office. Among other tasks, The Assembly Office has responsibility for organizing and making arrangements for the General Assembly, producing the Acts and Proceedings, acting as the secretariat for the Assembly Council, and providing advice and interpretation services on matters relating to Church law. The Presbyterian Church in Canada Archives is part of the Assembly Office as well with the Principal Clerk acting as Archives supervisor.

Within the Assembly Office are the Clerks of Assembly, the principal officers appointed by the General Assembly. They are responsible for advising the Moderator on procedure and ensuring that the official minutes are correctly recorded. They provide continuity from one Assembly to the next. The Clerks of Assembly are heavily involved in issues associated with residential schools as they are responsible for working on legal issues affecting the denomination. The Clerks of Assembly also serve on various committees of Assembly and Assembly Council and act as representatives of The PCC on boards and committees of ecumenical organizations including groups such as the Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools. Since 1971 there has been a Principal Clerk and one or two Deputy Clerks.

Scope and Content:

Contains copies of The Acts and Proceedings of The PCC, correspondence, legal files, minutes and newsletters which document the decisions and actions undertaken at the level of The General Assembly in regards to the operation of residential schools and healing and reconciliation efforts of The PCC. The Acts and Proceedings contain reports of the boards and committees involved in the operation of residential schools or healing and reconciliation work as well as the decisions made by The General Assembly which concern residential schools. Principal Clerk/Assembly Office files contain correspondence, minutes and legal files dealing mainly with legal issues associated with residential schools. The General Assembly Planning files consist of a newsletter from the 2008 General Assembly which provides a brief on the Life and Mission Agency's Healing and Reconciliation Presentations to The General Assembly.

Series: Acts and Proceedings (1875-present)

The Acts and Proceedings of the General Assembly of The Presbyterian Church in Canada are a yearly publication containing the minutes of the General Assembly, reports of the boards and committees of the Church, and statistical information for each congregation across the country. Each year the Assembly appoints a committee to examine the minutes of the previous year's Assembly and attests their accuracy. One copy is then signed by the Clerk, and this becomes the "official" copy. The Acts and Proceedings contain reports of the boards and committees involved in the operation of residential schools or healing and reconciliation work as well as the decisions made by The General Assembly which concern residential schools.

<u>File No</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
	1875-present	Acts and Proceedings of the General Assembly of
		The Presbyterian Church in Canada
		Bound Volumes (Reference Copy); located in the
		Periodicals Section

Series: Principal Clerk/Assembly Office Files

Principal Clerk/Assembly Office files contain correspondence, minutes and legal files dealing mainly with legal issues associated with residential schools.

Sub-Series: General Files

2010-1010-1-1	1991-1995	Correspondence (Part 1) – Thomas Gemmell, Principal Clerk from July 1993- June 1998
2010-1010-1-2	1996-1998	Correspondence (Part 2) – Thomas Gemmell, Principal Clerk from July 1993-June 1998
2010-1010-1-3	1997-2002	Correspondence – Stephen Kendall, Principal Clerk from July 1998-present

Sub-Series: Committee/Board Files

Assembly Council

2011-1007-1-1	2000	Assembly Council, 2000
2011-1007-1-1.5	2000	Assembly Council, 2000 – Report of Current Legal Suits Before the Church *** Access is restricted for 75 years
2011-1007-1-2	2001	Assembly Council, 2001
2011-1007-1-2.5	2001	Assembly Council, 2001 – Confidential Update on Residential Schools Litigation and Negotiations with the Federal Government

*** Access is restricted for 75 years

		<i>j</i>
2011-1007-1-3	2002	Assembly Council, 2002
2011-1007-1-5	2004	Assembly Council, 2004
2011-1007-1-6	2005	Assembly Council, 2005
2011-1007-1-6.5	2005	Assembly Council, 2005 – Contract with Ian Morrison to facilitate and implement the Settlement Agreement, and a report of his activities re: ADR, November 3, 2005 *** Access is restricted for 75 years
2011-1007-1-7	2006	Assembly Council, 2006
2011-1007-1-9	2008	Assembly Council, 2008
2011-1007-2-1	2008-2010	Assembly Council, 2009-2010
2011-1007-2-2	1998-2004	Assembly Council Executive Agendas and Meeting Materials, 2003-2004
2011-1007-2-3	2005-2007	Assembly Council Executive Agendas and Meeting Materials, 2005-2007

Management Team/50 Wynford Drive

2004-1025-1-1 1989-1992 50 Wynford Drive

Minutes of Executive Heads of Departments

Synods/Presbyteries/Congregations

2010-1010-1-4 1996-2001 General Correspondence

Women's Missionary Society

2010-1010-1-5 1987-2001 General Correspondence

Life and Mission Agency

2010-1010-1-6 1993-2001 General Correspondence

Sub-Series: Lawsuits and Legal Issues Files

Sub-series contains correspondence files maintained by Cassels Brock, the Toronto law firm retained by The PCC. These files hold correspondence between the W.M.S. and Cassels Brock and contain letters regarding properties associated with the residential schools. Sub-series also contains legal files of residential school cases brought against The PCC.

Cassels Brock

1991-1004-1-1 1940-1943 WMS General (#6399)

1	ncl	ud	es.	some	corresp	bonden	e re:	property	informa	tion
C	it (Zec	ilio	a Jeffa	rey Sch	bool				

1991-1004-2-1 1946-1950 WMS General (#4307)

Includes some correspondence re: an offer from Imperial Oil for an oil lease on the Birtle School property

2011-1016-1-1	2001-2003	Church-Canada meetings re: Indian Residential Schools (CCIRS) – Part 1 of 3 Includes minutes, correspondence, reports and notes. CCIRS was an unofficial acronym given to these meetings by Rev. Stephen Kendall
2011-1016-1-2	2001-2003	Church-Canada meetings re: Indian Residential Schools (CCIRS) – Part 2 of 3 Includes minutes, correspondence, reports and notes. CCIRS was an unofficial acronym given to these meetings by Rev. Stephen Kendall
2011-1016-1-3	2001-2003	Church-Canada meetings re: Indian Residential Schools (CCIRS) – Part 3 of 3 Includes minutes, correspondence, reports and notes. CCIRS was an unofficial acronym given to these meetings by Rev. Stephen Kendall
2011-1016-1-4	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups Contact information for committee members.
2011-1016-1-5	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Alternate Dispute Resolution (ADR)
2011-1016-1-6	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Apportionment, Viability and Ability to Pay (AVA)
2011-1016-1-7	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Archives
2011-1016-1-8	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Ecumenical
2011-1016-1-9	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Models for Moving Forward (Cariboo Proposal)
2011-1016-1-10	2001	Church-Canada Working Groups – Preamble
2011-1016-1-11	2001	Church-Canada meetings re: Indian Residential Schools (CCIRS) – Travel
2011-1016-1-12	2008	Indian Residential Schools (IRS) Leaders' Tour
2011-1016-1-13	2004-2006	Legacy of Hope Coalition
2011-1016-1-14	2003-2004	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) Includes minutes, correspondence, notes, etc.

2011-1016-2-1	2005	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) Includes minutes, correspondence, notes, etc.
2011-1016-2-2	2006	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) Includes minutes, correspondence, notes, etc.
2011-1016-2-3	2007	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) Includes minutes, correspondence, notes, etc.
2011-1016-2-4	2007	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.

Series: General Assembly – Planning, Local Arrangements, Worship and other Materials

Sub-Series: General Assembly 2008

2010-1019 June 1-3, 2008 Daily Newsletters

Includes a brief on the Life and Mission Agency's Healing and Reconciliation presentations to The General Assembly

General Board of Missions/Board of World Mission

Administrative History:

The Presbyterian Church in Canada has a very long history of activities in mission fields both at home and abroad. The Home Mission Board was established in 1875. Its purpose was to encourage the growth of the Church through mission activities. It was not until 1882 that the Foreign Mission Board came into existence. Following Church Union in 1925, the work of the Home Missions and Foreign Missions Board were brought together under one administrative body known as the General Board of Missions. At the 1971 General Assembly, the General Board of Missions was restructured and became the Board of World Mission. The first meeting of the Board of World Mission occurred in November of 1971, although final internal organization was not achieved until after the 1972 General Assembly.

The internal structure of the Board of World Mission has undergone many changes during its lifetime. Up until 1991, the main Administrative divisions were: Canada Operations, previously known as Home Missions or Canada Missions; Foreign or Overseas Missions; and Education for Mission. On June 30th, 1992, the Board of World Mission ceased as the Life and Mission Agency came into being. The main Administrative divisions of the Board also experienced restructuring with regard to their mandates during the early 1990s and were eventually incorporated as administrative divisions under the Life and Mission Agency.

Scope and Content:

Contains correspondence, minutes, reports, publications and other records which document the role of the Board of World Mission in carrying out The PCC's work with Aboriginal communities in Canada. General Administration records consist of correspondence, minutes, reports and publications found within the general administrative records of the Board of World Mission. The records represent the various activities in which the Board of World Mission undertook as part of its work with Aboriginal communities. These activities include missionary appointments to reserves and residential schools; the creation of task forces and projects to carry out and evaluate ministries with Aboriginals; and the publication of resources which focused specifically on Aboriginal communities. The records of Canada Operations, the department directly concerned with Aboriginal ministries, contains correspondence, minutes, reports and other records from committees involved in work with Aboriginal communities as well as healing and reconciliation efforts. Canada Operations records also contain correspondence and reports from mission workers in Aboriginal communities, including those communities which were once affiliated with the PCC residential schools.

Table of Contents

Series: General Administration.	29
Committees	29
Correspondence	
Subject Correspondence	
Publications	
Research and Planning	30
Committees	
Correspondence and Reports	31
Series: Canada Operations.	32
Executive Committee Minutes	32
Committees	32
Canada Operations Committee	33
Committee on Reconciliation with Aboriginal Peoples	33
Home Missions Policy Committee	33
National Native Ministries Committee	33
Correspondence	33
Subject Correspondence	33
Home Missions Correspondence	34
Reports	
Inner City Missions, Fellowship Houses and Special Ministries	35
Kenora Fellowship Centre	35

Series: General Administration

Consists of correspondence, minutes, reports and other records found in the general administrative records of the Board of World Mission. Committee records are comprised of the minutes of the Committee re. Indian Work which include reference to missionary appointments to the two residential schools. The Correspondence section contains ingoing and outgoing correspondence of the Secretary/Associate Secretary of Canada Operations, including letters from a former staff member at Birtle Indian Residential School. The Publications series consists of the publications, including annual reports, of the Board of World Missions and its divisions, which refer to or report on The PCC-operated residential schools. Minutes of the Indian Task Force as well as correspondence and reports from the Native People Re-assessment Project of the Research and Planning Committee make up the records in the Research and Planning Division series.

Sub-Series: Committees

1988-1003-6-1-4 Feb. 1954 Committee re. Indian Work - Minutes

Includes discussions of appointments of

Missionaries to various reserves as well as problems

with securing suitable staff for the schools

Sub-Series: Correspondence

2005-1011-1-3 March 1992 Correspondence

Includes letters sent to members of the Committee on

Reconciliation with Aboriginal Peoples

Sub-Series: Subject Correspondence

1989-1009-3-10 1981-1986 Native People

Includes letters from a former staff member of Birtle

Sub-Series: Publications

1988-1003-90-10 1955 <u>Day of Opportunity, [Toronto: Mission</u>

Education], 92 pp.

Annual Report of Home and Overseas Missions to

General Board of Missions

2010-1018 1973 <u>Encounter: Canada's Prime People, Volume 4,</u>

Issue 1

2001-1006-40-4 [between 1960-1970] Indians of Canada, Canadian Presbyterian

Missions; [Don Mills, Ontario]: Missionary Education Committee, Home Series No. 1,

Pamphlet

1996-1002-25-40 [between 1965-1980] <u>Indians of Canada</u>, Missionary Education

Committee; Don Mills, Ontario: Missionary Education Committee; pamphlet. French copy

included.

1988-1003-90-16	1895	The Indians of Western Canada Andrew Baird Browning; Toronto: [Foreign Missions Committee]; 30pp. back cover ill.
1988-1003-90-19.4	[196-?]	The Kenora Fellowship Centre; 8pp. Removed From 1988-1003-75-6
1988-1003-91-3	1958	Mission For This Day Mrs. H.E. Stewart, (ed.); [Mission Education]; 100pp. ill. Annual Report of Home and Overseas Missions to the General Board of Missions
1988-1003-91-7	1968	Missions Annual Report [Mission Education]; 84pp. ill.
1988-1003-91-8	1957	Missions Are Changing Mrs. H.E. Stewart, (ed.); [Mission Education]; 99pp. ill. Annual Report of Home and Overseas Missions to General Board of Missions
1992-1238	[between 1980-1990]	Native Peoples of Canada Joint Task Force on Mission Education; Don Mills, Ontario: The Presbyterian Church in Canada, 4pp. ill.
1988-1003-92-1.4	1941	Presbyterians, Attention! Forward March! W.A. Cameron; 1941; 4pp. ill.
1988-1003-92-7	1960	Summons of the Spirit R.M. Ransom, (ed.); [Mission Education], 92pp. ill. Includes fold out map of "Our Mission Around the World"
1988-1003-92-13	1973	<u>Working Together Works</u> Don Mills, Ontario: Mission Education; 63pp. ill. <i>Missions annual report</i>

Sub-Series: Research and Planning

Planned as a new division of the Board of World Mission in 1971, the Research and Planning Committee did not actually come into being until 1973 when E.H. Johnson, the Secretary for Overseas Missions from 1954-1973, became the first Secretary for the department. The purpose of the Committee was to examine the life of the Church and in particular the projects and programs administered by the Board of World Mission in terms of 1) effectively communicating the gospel and 2) effective use of people and resources. Over the life span of the Committee (1973-1980), a number of task forces were created to delve into subject areas of concern to the Board. This committee passed out of existence in 1981 due to a restructuring of the Board.

Committees

1988-1003-39-4 1973-1980 Indian Task Force - Minutes, correspondence and reports

Includes interviews with a former student of Birtle Indian Residential School

Correspondence and Reports

1988-1003-87-17

1977-1980

Native People Re-assessment Project

Correspondence, notes and reports. Includes interviews
with several former students of PCC residential schools

Series: Canada Operations

Administrative Sketch:

Canada Operations, originally known as Home Missions or Canada Missions was formed in 1925. It focused on mission work in Canada and was established to provide a cohesive base for all mission functions in the country. As part of its mandate, Canada Operations oversaw the work of The PCC with Aboriginal peoples and appointed people to work with Aboriginal communities, including those communities that were affiliated with the two PCC residential schools. Many committees concerned with ministry to Aboriginal peoples, such as the National Native Ministries Committee, reported to Canada Operations. Canada Operations also participated in the earlier healing and reconciliation work of The PCC until its programme mandate was taken over by Canada Ministries of the Life and Mission Agency in July 1992.

Scope and Content:

Contains correspondence, minutes, reports and other records which document the work of Canada Operations with Aboriginal communities in Canada. The minutes of the Executive Committee include reference to Church workers appointed to work in the same areas in which the two PCC residential schools were located. Committees records contain minutes, correspondence, financial statements, reports and other material of the committees involved in work with Aboriginal communities, including healing and reconciliation efforts. The correspondence records contain correspondence, minutes and reports from mission workers in Aboriginal communities, including those communities which were once affiliated with the PCC residential schools.

Sub-Series: Executive Committee Minutes

Series consists of minutes of the Home Missions Executive Committee. These minutes include reference to appointments of ministers or mission workers to the areas in which the two PCC residential schools were located. The minutes also contain brief reports from these workers.

1988-1003-33-5	1953-1955	Home Missions Executive Committee - Includes index
1988-1003-33-6	1956-1957	Home Missions Executive Committee - Includes index
1988-1003-33-7	1958-1959	Home Missions Executive Committee - Includes index
1988-1003-34-2	1962-1963	Home Missions Executive Committee - Includes index
1988-1003-35-3	1969, Sept. 1971-Sept. 1972	Home Missions Executive Committee

Sub-Series: Committees

Series consists of the minutes, correspondence, financial statements, reports and other material of committees which reported directly to, or were sub-committees of Canada Operations. The following committees were involved in work with Aboriginal communities and their minutes contain reference to residential schools or work with former students of Cecilia Jeffrey and Birtle. Some of the committees,

such as the Committee on Reconciliation with Aboriginal Peoples, dealt specifically with healing and reconciliation efforts.

Canada Operations Committee

1992-1249-4-11 1991-1992 Minutes

Committee on Reconciliation with Aboriginal Peoples

2011-1021	1991-1021	Minutes, correspondence and notes (Rev. Dr. Richard Sand's file) Rev. Dr. Richard Sand was the convener of the Committee on Reconciliation with Aboriginal Peoples
2005-1061	1991-1992	Minutes, correspondence and notes (photocopies)
1996-1002-9-7	Mar. 1992	Report to the Board of World Mission
2005-1062	1991-1992	Background Papers

Home Missions Policy Committee

1988-1003-35-4	1953-1954,	Minutes
	1956-1969	Partial Index Included

National Native Ministries Committee

The National Native Ministries Committee was previously known as the Native Ministries Advisory Committee and the National Committee on Native People before changing its name sometime between 1990 and 1991. For further records of the National Native Ministries Committee, consult the records of the Life and Mission Agency and Canada Ministries.

1999-1003-1-12 1986-1992 Correspondence

Sub-Series: Correspondence

Subject Correspondence

1988-1003-66-24	1954-1962	Canadian Indians Includes Indians and Presbyterians by Geoffrey Johnston, a study of the activities of The Presbyterian Church in Canada among the Indian Canadians from 1925-1961.
1988-1003-69-8	1955-1963	Indian Advisory Committee Includes Indian Workers Conference reports
1988-1003-69-9	1957	Indian Affairs Committee
1988-1003-69-10	1957	Indian Commission
1988-1003-69-11	1964-1970	Indian Conference

1988-1003-69-12	1957-1962	Indian Conference and Workshop
1988-1003-69-14	1964	Indian Work - Canadian Council of Churches
1988-1003-69-16	1956-1976	Indians
1988-1003-69-17	1957	Indians - Birdtail Reserve
1988-1003-69-18	1955-1961	Indians - Birtle Reserve
1988-1003-70-1	1963-1966	Indians- Film
1988-1003-70-2	1956-1959	Indians – Kenora
1988-1003-70-3	1957	Indians- Lake of the Woods
1988-1003-70-4	1957-1959	Indians – Mistawsis
1988-1003-70-8	1957	Indians - Shoal Lake

*Home Mission Correspondence*Prior to 1972, Canada Operations was known as Home Missions.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
A-38-i	1962-1980	Synod of Manitoba and Northern Ontario: Correspondence and reports
A-38-v	1962-1980	Presbytery of Lake of the Woods: Correspondence and reports re. Indian work

Sub-Series: Reports

1988-1003-24-1	1966	1965 Home Missions Reports of Synods and Special Project Missionaries
1988-1003-24-2	1967	1966 Home Missions Reports of Synods and Special Project Missionaries
1988-1003-24-3	1969	1968 Home Missions Reports of Synods and Special Project Missionaries
1988-1003-24-4	1970	1969 Home Missions Reports of Synods and Special Project Missionaries
1988-1003-24-5	1971	1970 Home Missions Reports of Synods and Special Project Missionaries
1988-1003-24-8	1974	1973 Home Missions Annual Reports

Sub-Series: Inner City Missions, Fellowship Houses and Special Ministries

Kenora Fellowship Centre

The minutes and correspondence of the Kenora Fellowship Centre Board include reference to the Cecilia Jeffrey Cemetery in Kenora. According to the minutes, the Board had an arrangement with the Department of Indian Affairs for the upkeep of the cemetery.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1996-1002-9-11	1980-1982	Minutes, Agendas and Reports
2001-1006-22-9	1969-1972	Correspondence - Federal and Provincial Government

Life and Mission Agency

Administrative Sketch:

The Life and Mission Agency was formed on July 1, 1992 and became responsible for the programme mandates of the former Board of World Mission, Board of Congregational Life, Board of Ministry and Presbyterian World Service and Development. Working with congregations and presbyteries, the Life and Mission Agency is tasked with helping to realize the broader vision and priorities of The PCC, especially in the areas of discipleship, evangelism, social action and justice. As The PCC's work with First Nations peoples in Canada falls under its mandate, the Life and Mission Agency plays a major role in the healing and reconciliation efforts of The PCC, especially through the Justice Ministries and Canada Ministries departments.

Scope and Content:

Consists of correspondence, minutes, publications, reports, financial records and reference files which document the role of the Life and Mission Agency in the residential schools resolution process as well as the healing and reconciliation initiatives of The PCC. The Life and Mission Agency Committee records are comprised of minutes and correspondence which include reference to various aspects of the resolution and reconciliation process undertaken by the Life and Mission Agency. The Executive Staff files contain minutes in which Life and Mission Agency staff share updates and reports on the resolution process and healing and reconciliation work. Department files consist of correspondence and minutes from Justice Ministries and Canada Ministries departments which contain reference to residential school issues. Annual reports include reports of the work of the Canada Ministries department, which is involved in healing and reconciliation activities. Financial records consist of correspondence and ledgers related to financial arrangements for healing initiatives such as the Journey to Wholeness campaign. The records specifically devoted to residential schools contain correspondence, reports, minutes, publications and reference files maintained by the Life and Mission Agency on the topic, especially in the area of resolution and compensation negotiations between The PCC and the federal government. Curriculum and mission studies records are comprised of published mission studies and curriculums developed to raise congregational awareness of issues surrounding residential schools.

Table of Contents

Series: Life and Mission Agency-Administration.	38
Life and Mission Agency Committee	38
Life and Mission Agency Executive Staff	38
Annual Reports	39
Department Files	39
Finances	39
Residential Schools	40
Aboriginal Healing Foundation	40
Alternate Dispute Resolution	40
Assembly of First Nations	41
Communications & Media	41
Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools	41
Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee	42
Healing and Reconciliation Design Team	42
PCC Residential Schools Working Group	43
Reference	43
Residential Schools Working Caucus	44
Mission Studies and Curriculums	44
Resources	45
Series: Canada Ministries:	46
Associate Secretary	46
Aboriginal Peoples/Residential Schools Files	47
Presbyteries and Synods	48
Finances	49
National Native Ministries	49
Annual Reports	50
Series: Justice Ministries:	51
Justice Ministries Advisory Committee	51
Associate Secretary	52
Aboriginal Issues	52
Healing and Reconciliation	53
General Correspondence	53
Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee	53
Ecumenical Planning Team	53
Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS)	54
Events	54
Animator's Speaking Engagements/Trips/Meetings	56
Healing and Reconciliation Seed Fund Projects	59
Resources	61

Series: Life and Mission Agency - Administration

Sub-Series: Life and Mission Agency Committee

The Life and Mission Agency Committee is composed of 15 representatives from across Canada. The committee meets twice a year to work with Life and Mission Agency staff to plan and develop programmes as well as make decisions on how the budget share for the Life and Mission Agency is to be allocated. Work with First Nations peoples and healing and reconciliation initiatives are part of the general mandate of the Life and Mission Agency and are thus overseen or reviewed by the Life and Mission Agency Committee.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2001-1027	1992-1996	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2009-1047-1-3	1994	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1012-1-1	1995	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1012-1-2	1996	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1015-1-1	1997	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2004-1041	1998-2000	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1015-1-2	2001-2004	Life and Mission Agency Committee – Minutes excluding November 7-9, 2001
2010-1012-1-3	Nov. 7-9, 2001	Life and Mission Agency Committee Meeting – Working file
2010-1012-1-4	2006	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1012-1-5	2007	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Minutes
2010-1012-2-1	2000	Life and Mission Agency Committee - Nominations & Report to Committee

Sub-Series: Executive Staff

The executive staff of the Life and Mission Agency is comprised of the General Secretary of the Life and Mission Agency and the Associate Secretaries of the departments within the Life and Mission Agency including Canada Ministries and Justice Ministries.

2009-1047-1-4	1992-1993	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2009-1047-1-5	1994-1996	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2009-1047-1-6	1997-1998	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2010-1015-1-3	1992-1995	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2010-1015-1-4	1997	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2004-1042	1998-2000	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes
2010-1015-1-5	2001-2004	Executive Staff - Meeting Minutes

Sub-Series: Ann	ual Reports	
2010-1015-1-6	1998	Annual Report - "Annual Reports from Canada Ministries and International Ministries of The Presbyterian Church in Canada" – 36 pp.
2010-1012-1-6	2005	Annual Report – "Stories of Mission: Mission Workers' 2005 Annual Reports" – 42 pp.
2010-1015-1-7	2006	Annual Report: "Stories of Mission: Mission Workers' 2006 Annual Reports" – 53 pp.
2010-1015-1-8	2007	Annual Report - "The Work of Many Hands: Stories of Mission from the Ministries Supported by Presbyterians in 2007" – 51 pp.
2010-1015-1-9	2008-2009	Annual Report – "We Are in this Together: Stories of Mission" – 55 pp.
2011-1019-1-1	2010	Annual Report – "Stories of Mission 2010: We are God's servants, working together"
2011-1019-1-2	2011	Annual Report – "Stories of Mission 2011: For we are God's servants, working together"
Sub-Series: Dep	artment Files	
2010-1012-2-7	1992-2001	Canada Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes and correspondence
2010-1012-1-7	1992-1995	Justice Ministries – Aboriginal Issues Correspondence to Glen Davis, General Secretary of Life and Mission Agency; the majority of correspondence is from Ray Hodgson, Justice Ministries
2014-1002-1-1	2009	Justice Ministries – Healing and Reconciliation, 2009
2014-1002-1-2	2005-2010	Justice Ministries – Healing and Reconciliation, 2010
2014-1002-1-3	2010-2011	Justice Ministries – Healing and Reconciliation, 2011
2014-1003	2011-2012	Canada Ministries – National Native Ministries

Sub-Series: Finances

In 1998 a healing fund campaign called "Journey to Wholeness" was launched. The fund was established to provide financial support for projects facilitating healing for those with historic connections to The PCC operated residential schools. The Spending Committee of the Journey to Wholeness Campaign reported to the Residential Schools Working Group (The PCC). For further

Council, 2011

records relating to the campaign, see the records of Canada Ministries as well as the WMS files on residential schools.

For further records related to the staff gathering, refer to the WMS files on residential schools.

2007-1067-9-1	1999-2006	Journey to Wholeness Spending Committee Correspondence, applications for funding and terms of Reference
2007-1067-9-4	2002	Residential Schools Former Staff Gathering Correspondence and financial ledgers

Sub-Series: Residential Schools

Sub-series consists of correspondence, reports, minutes, publications and reference files maintained by the Life and Mission Agency specifically on the topic of the Residential Schools. The files largely reflect the work of The Rev. Ian Morrison, General Secretary of the Life and Mission Agency (1996-2005), and his involvement in the resolution process and healing initiatives.

Aboriginal Healing Foundation

2007-1067-5-1	2000	Aboriginal Healing Foundation Correspondence, reports, newsletters, agendas and Minutes
2007-1067-5-2	2001	Aboriginal Healing Foundation
2007-1067-5-3	2002-2003	Aboriginal Healing Foundation
2007-1067-5-4	2004	Aboriginal Healing Foundation
2007-1067-5-5	2004	Aboriginal Healing Foundation
2007-1067-5-6	2005	Aboriginal Healing Foundation

Alternate Dispute Resolution (ADR)

Sub-series contains correspondence, presentations, notes from meetings and reports related to discussions of alternate dispute resolution models between the churches and various other parties. There is also a file related specifically to ADR applications concerning The PCC. For records relating to talks between The PCC and the federal government regarding the participation of The PCC in alternate dispute resolution mechanisms, see the Government-Church Negotiations sub-series.

2010-1024-1-1	2006	Alternate Dispute Resolution Fund Correspondence
2003-1086-2-9	2000-2001	Alternate Dispute Resolution Working Group Correspondence, agendas, notes from meetings and Reports
2003-1086-2-1	1998-1999	Exploratory Dialogues Correspondence, notes from meetings and reports arising from discussions of possible dispute resolution models

2003-1086-2-2	2000	Exploratory Dialogues - "Walking Together: The

Exploratory Dialogue Process" – draft

Assembly of First Nations

2007-1067-8-5	2000-2005	Assembly of First Nations – Minutes and notes from meetings
2007-1067-8-6	2004-2005	Assembly of First Nations – Reports and newsletters

Communications and Media

Sub-series contains newspaper and magazine articles dealing with the topic of residential schools issues. Sub-series also contains correspondence from members of the press seeking information from PCC staff as well as correspondence from other denominations regarding various publicity issues.

2007-1067-8-1	1999-2000	Communications and Media Correspondence and newspaper/magazine clippings
2007-1067-8-2	2001	Communications and Media
2007-1067-8-3	2002	Communications and Media
2007-1067-8-4	2004-2006	Communications and Media

Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools

The Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS) is comprised of Catholic and Protestant entities, including The Presbyterian Church in Canada.

2003-1086-1-1	Aug. 1998-July 1999	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2003-1086-1-2	August - December 1999	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2003-1086-1-3	2000	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2007-1067-1-1	2000	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes, drafts and correspondence related to discussions of a comprehensive resolution for residential school claims
2007-1067-1-2	2001	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools

		Minutes and correspondence
2007-1067-1-3	2002	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2007-1067-1-4	2003	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2007-1067-1-5	2004	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2007-1067-1-6	2005	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
2014-1001	2010-2011	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools, 2011

Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee

The Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee was formed in December 2006. One of the primary responsibilities of this committee is to provide funding for various projects through the Native Ministries Healing and Reconciliation Fund and the Healing and Reconciliation Project Fund.

2009-1025	2006	Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee
		Criteria for Funding for Healing and Reconciliation
		Project

Healing and Reconciliation Design Team

The Healing and Reconciliation Design team was created in 2005 as the result of the work of the Healing and Reconciliation Task Force. The Design Team presented its report to the General Assembly in 2006 and out of the approval of this report came the establishment of the *Walking Together* program, to be administered through the Justice Ministries department of the Life and Mission Agency. The Design Team report also resulted in the hiring of a Healing and Reconciliation Animator in September 2006 and the formation of a Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee in December 2006. The Healing and Reconciliation Design Team wrapped up its work in late 2006.

2010-1012-2-2	February-October 2005	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team Correspondence, reports and minutes
2010-1012-2-3	November 2005- May2006	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team Correspondence, reports and minutes
2010-1012-2-4	2006	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team Correspondence of Richard Fee, General Secretary of Life and Mission Agency
2010-1012-2-5	2007	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team

PCC Residential Schools Working Group

The Residential Schools Working Group was formed in 1993 to monitor and coordinate the ongoing work related to the residential schools operated by The PCC including negotiations with bands, other church organizations and government officials. The Residential Schools Working Group was replaced with a one-year Healing and Reconciliation Task Force in December 2004.

2003-1086-2-6	2002	Diocese of Keewatin Correspondence sent to the Anglican Bishop of Keewatin by Ian Morrison in his role as convener of the PCC Residential Schools Working Group
2003-1086-1-4	1999	PCC Residential Schools Working Group Correspondence and minutes
2003-1086-1-5	2000	PCC Residential Schools Working Group Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-2-1	2001	PCC Residential Schools Working Group – Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-2-2	2002	PCC Residential Schools Working Group Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-2-3	2003	PCC Residential Schools Working Group Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-2-4	2004	PCC Residential Schools Working Group Correspondence and minutes
2003-1086-2-4	2000	Presbytery of Winnipeg Minutes from working group and correspondence with Iskutewisakaygun No. 39 Independent First Nation
Reference		
2003-1086-2-5	1999-2000	Angus Reid Poll - "The Churches and the Residential Schools"
2007-1067-9-3	2002	Kaufman Report – "Searching for Justice: An Independent Review of Nova Scotia's Response to Reports of Institutional Abuse" by the Honourable Fred Kaufman
2003-1086-2-8	1999	Law Commission Report - "Minister's Reference on Institutional Child Abuse"
2007-1067-7-9	1999-2000	Legal Issues Reference file containing claims and judgments against other denominations and groups
2007-1067-7-10	2001-2003	Legal Issues

Residential Schools Working Caucus

The Residential Schools Working Caucus functioned as a reference group to the government during the negotiations of the settlement agreement to ensure that survivors and church representatives were able to discuss common issues and place them before the government. Ian Morrison, who served as General Secretary of the Life and Mission Agency (1996-2005), was The PCC's lead member in this group.

2003-1086-1-6	2001	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-2-5	January-April 2002	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-3-1	May 2002-January 2003	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-3-2	2003	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-3-3	2003	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-3-4	2003	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-4-1	2003	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-4-2	2004	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-4-3	February 2005	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2007-1067-4-4	May-November 2005	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes
2010-1024-1-5	2006	Residential Schools Working Caucus Correspondence and minutes

Sub-Series: Mission Studies and Curriculum

2005-1036	1995	Curriculum - "The Presbyterian Church in Canada Confesses to Aboriginal Peoples"
2010-1012-2-8	2000-2001	Mission Study - "Living as a Jubilee People: Mission Study for Adults & Youth" – 68 pp.
2005-1057	2002-2003	Mission Study Notes, correspondence, drafts re: "Making Connections: Aboriginal Peoples in Canada"
2010-1015-1-10	2007	Mission Study - "Making Connections: Maya

		People of Guatemala and Aboriginal People of Canada" – 72 pp.
2005-1064	2000-2003	Mission Study Notes, correspondence, reference materials re. development of studies
2011-1019-1-3	2011	Mission Study – "Making Connections: Ride the Cariboo Trail; Ministry and Mission Insights from Cariboo Presbyterian Church"
2014-1004	2013	Booklet – "Making Connections - Walking Side by Side: A Journey toward Healing and Reconciliation"
2014-1005	2013	Booklet – "Walking Side by Side: A Healing Journey for Children and Youth"
Sub-Series: Reso	ources_	
2011-1019-1-4	n.d.	Bulletin Inserts Saskatoon Native Circle Ministry — "There is Healing in Belonging"; B.C. Humminghird Ministries — "I feel like I can be my own self".
2011-1019-1-5	2010	Promotional Pamphlet/Sheet – "Experience Truth and Reconciliation with The Presbytery of Winnipeg"
2011-1020-1-1	2010	Booklet – "Stories of Mission 2010: We are God's servants, working together"

Series: Canada Ministries

Administrative Sketch:

Canada Ministries came into being on July 1, 1992 as a department within the Life and Mission Agency and became responsible for the programme mandate of the Canada Operations department of the Board of World Mission. The mandate of Canada Ministries is to "facilitate and support, through personnel and funds, ministries in Canada that are national priorities" (1999 Acts and Proceedings) by working with congregations, mission committees and presbyteries. These national priorities include, among others, ministries to First Nations people and thus Canada Ministries is directly involved with healing and reconciliation initiatives of The PCC. In 1989 a National Committee on Native Ministry was established which is now under the purview of Canada Ministries and several of the missions overseen by Canada Ministries, such as the Saskatoon Healing Circle, work directly with First Nations groups who have been affected by residential schools.

Scope and Content:

Contains correspondence, financial ledgers, planning notes and annual reports which document the work of Canada Ministries in the healing and reconciliation initiatives of The PCC. The records of the Associate Secretary contain correspondence which includes letters focused on the residential school negotiations and the healing activities which Canada Ministries participated in. Presbytery and synod records contain correspondence between Canada Ministries and staff members within the presbyteries or synods where residential schools related issues have come up. The financial records consist of ledgers dealing with the financial aspect of the Journey to Wholeness healing fund. National Native Ministries records contains correspondence, financial records and planning notes related to the National Native Ministries Committee of Canada Ministries. Annual Reports includes annual reports and correspondence related to the submission of the reports. Included in these files are reports from missions and church courts directly involved in various healing and reconciliation activities.

Sub-Series: Associate Secretary

Ian Morrison served as Associate Secretary from 1988 to February 17, 1997. Gordon Haynes became Associate Secretary on February 17, 1997.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	Description
2010-1014-1-3	1994	Correspondence To and from Ian Morrison, Associate Secretary, regarding PCC Moderators' possible visit to Iskutewisakaygun #39 Independent First Nation, Shoal Lake
2010-1014-1-1	1989-1999	General Correspondence Sent to and from Ian Morrison (1988-February 17, 1997) and Gordon Haynes (February 17, 1997- present) in their capacity as Associate Secretary of Canada Ministries
2010-1014-1-2	1995-1997	General Correspondence Sent from Ian Morrison as Associate Secretary of Canada Ministries

Aboriginal Peoples/Residential Schools Files

These files were generated by Rev. Ian Morrison and Rev. Gordon Haynes, Associate Secretaries for Canada Ministries and relate to their involvement in work with aboriginal peoples, including the Residential Schools Working Group (RSWG), the National Native Ministries Committee, and areas of healing and reconciliation.

2011-1017-1-1	n.d.	Fund Raising, Winnipeg
2011-1017-1-2	1993-1998	Aboriginal/Korean Ministry
2011-1017-1-3	1991-1995	Native Ministries - Reconciliation/Confession
2011-1017-1-4	1992-1996	Native Spirituality
2011-1017-1-5	1994-1996	Ontario First Nations
2011-1017-1-6	1987-2007	Aboriginal Resources
2011-1017-1-7	1962-1998	Royal Commission on Aboriginal People – Recap Brief
2011-1017-1-8	1990-1996	Aboriginal Rights Coalition Includes photocopies of articles from 1921 and 1927
2011-1017-1-9	1996-2000	Aboriginal Rights Coalition
2011-1017-2-1	1993-1996	Royal Commission on Aboriginal Rights
2011-1017-2-2	1996	Aboriginal/Taiwanese Ministry
2011-1017-2-3	1989-2006	Training for Native Ministry
2011-1017-2-4	1998-1999	Alternate Dispute Resolution
2011-1017-2-5	1997-1998	Alternate Dispute Resolution
2011-1017-2-6	1991-1998	Ecumenical Working Group
2011-1017-2-7	1998-2000	Healing Fund Correspondence
2011-1017-2-8	1993-1994	Four Worlds Manitoba Project
2011-1017-2-9	1994-2005	Healing and Reconciliation Design Team Projects, Resources and Task Force
2011-1017-2-10	2005-2006	Healing and Reconciliation at General Assembly 2005
2011-1017-3-1	1997, 2000	Historical Material Includes timeline notes on the history of the Shoal Lake/Camp Prescawa property, as well as a literature review of residential schools articles and writings created between 1987-1997.
2011-1017-3-2	1999-2001, 2006	Journey to Wholeness - Correspondence
2011-1017-3-3	1996-2000	Journey to Wholeness - Info. & Correspondence
2011-1017-3-4	1993-1999	Journey to Wholeness - Materials

2011-1017-3-5	1998-1999	Journey to Wholeness – Minutes
2011-1017-3-6	1998-1999	Journey to Wholeness – Spending Committee
2011-1017-3-7	1998-1999	Journey to Wholeness
2011-1025	n.d.	Video - "Journey to Wholeness: Reweaving the Relationships with Aboriginal Peoples" VHS videotape; 19 minutes.
2011-1017-3-8	1997-2011	Lorraine Major Memorial Bursary
2011-1017-3-9	1991, 1995	Reconciliation Committee
2011-1017-3-10	1990-1994	Residential Schools - File 1 Includes photocopies of articles from 1915 and 1924.
2011-1017-4-1	1991-2001	Residential Schools – File 2
2011-1017-4-2	1991-2002	Residential Schools Working Group Includes a few photocopies of documents from the archives, dating from 1944-1969.
2011-1017-4-3	1986-1994	Residential Schools – Kenora Includes a brief history of hostel accommodation and the Kenora Fellowship House in Kenora, and also a photocopy of a document from 1902 of a meeting of aboriginal leaders at the Cecilia Jeffrey School.
2011-1017-4-4	1993-1998	Residential Schools Working Group – Iskatewizaagegan #39 (Shoal Lake) Independent First Nation
2011-1017-4-5	1992-1996	Residential Schools Working Group
2011-1017-4-6	1996-2000	Residential Schools Working Group
2011-1017-4-7	1986-2003	Residential Schools Working Group – Assembly of Manitoba Chiefs
2011-1017-5-1	2002	Mission Study – Making Connections: Aboriginal People Contains a draft copy of the study sent to Rev. Gordon Haynes for his review and comments.
2011-1017-5-2	1995-1996	Sacred Assembly
2011-1017-5-3	1997-1998	Sacred Assembly
2011-1017-5-4	1989-1999	National Native Ministries Committee
2011-1017-5-5	2000-2003	National Native Ministries Committee
2011-1017-5-6	1998-1999	National Native Ministries Consultation

Sub-Series: Presbyteries and Synods

Sub-series consists of correspondence between Canada Ministries and missions, organizations and church staff from various presbyteries and synods of The PCC. Files are arranged by presbytery or synod name.

2010-1014-2-2	1993-1999	Presbytery of Winnipeg Correspondence
2010-1017-1-4	1991-1994	Presbytery of Winnipeg: Anamiewigummig Correspondence
2010-1017-1-3	1978-1994	Presbytery of Winnipeg: Anishinabe Fellowship Centre Correspondence
2010-1014-2-1	1987-2001	Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario Correspondence

Sub-Series: Finances

In 1998 a healing fund campaign called "Journey to Wholeness" was launched. The fund was established to provide financial support for projects facilitating healing for those with historic connections to The PCC operated residential schools. The Spending Committee of the Journey to Wholeness Campaign reported to the Residential Schools Working Group (The PCC). For further records relating to the campaign, see the records of the Life and Mission Agency as well as the WMS files on residential schools.

2010-1014-2-4 1998-2001 Journey to Wholeness Healing Fund Financial ledgers

Sub-Series: National Native Ministries

The National Native Ministries Committee was established in 1989 and brings together those involved in The PCC ministry with Aboriginal peoples.

2010-1017-1-1	1991-1994	National Native Ministries Committee Minutes and correspondence
2010-1017-1-2	1995-1996	National Native Ministries Committee Minutes and correspondence
2010-1014-1-4	January-April 1999	National Native Ministries Consultation Correspondence, financial records and planning notes
2010-1014-1-5	January-April 1999	National Native Ministries Consultation Correspondence, financial records and planning notes
2010-1014-1-6	January-April 1999	National Native Ministries Consultation Correspondence, financial records and planning notes
2010-1014-1-7	January-April 1999	National Native Ministries Consultation Correspondence, financial records, planning notes

Sub-Series: Annual Reports

2010-1017-1-5	1994	Annual Reports Correspondence and reports
2010-1014-2-3	2006	Annual Reports Correspondence and reports

Series: Justice Ministries

Administrative Sketch:

The Justice Ministries department within the Life and Mission Agency was formed in July 1992. It absorbed the responsibilities of the former Church and Society Committee of the Board of Congregational Life. The overall priority for Justice Ministries is to involve individuals, congregations and the courts of the church in faith and justice issues. One of the many issues that Justice Ministries has devoted time and resources to is Aboriginal rights, including healing and reconciliation initiatives. The Walking Together Campaign is administered by the department and the position of healing and reconciliation animator, which was established in 2006, falls under Justice Ministries.

Scope and Content:

Consists of correspondence, minutes, reports and reference files which document the work of Justice Ministries in the healing and reconciliation initiatives of The PCC. The Justice Ministries Advisory Committee records contain minutes, reports and correspondence which include reference to healing and reconciliation efforts. The records of the Associate Secretary contain correspondence and briefs, some of which focuses on residential-school related issues. The Aboriginal issues records include correspondence, minutes and reports of committees or coalitions centered around Aboriginal rights, ministries with Aboriginals, or residential schools. Also included in the Aboriginal Issues series are reference files and correspondence created or compiled by Justice Ministries staff on topics related to Aboriginal issues.

Sub-Series: Justice Ministries Advisory Committee

Members of the Justice Ministries Advisory Committee meet three times a year to plan and review programs, offer advice to the staff members of Justice Ministries and provide input on the Justice Ministries report submitted annually to the General Assembly.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2010-1013-1-2	1995	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Administration (including minutes) File of Lee McKenna-Ducharme, Program Associate from July-December 1995 and Associate Secretary of Justice Ministries from January-June 1996
2010-1013-1-1	1992-1996	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes (with gaps)
1993-1087	1993	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Minutes
2010-1013-1-3	January 26, 2001	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Minutes
2010-1013-1-4	September 30, 2005	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Minutes
2010-1013-1-5	June 19, 2006	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Minutes
2010-1013-1-6	September 20, 2006	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee - Minutes
2010-1013-1-7	1992-1994	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee Minutes Ray Hodgson's file (Associate Secretary of Justice Ministries from 1992 to 1995). Includes minutes, agendas, correspondence and his reports to the

Committee

2014-1008-1-1	2007	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes September 24, 2007
2014-1008-1-2	2006-2007	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes June 28, 2007
2014-1008-1-3	2007	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes Feb. 9, 2007
2014-1008-1-4	2009	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes September 23, 2009
2014-1008-1-5	2010	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – Minutes Jan. 30 th , 2009
2014-1008-1-6	2010	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – June 23, 2010 (Conference Call)
2014-1008-1-7	2010	Justice Ministries Advisory Committee – October 7, 2010.

Sub-Series: Associate Secretary

2010-1013-2-2 1995-2000 General Correspondence & Briefs

Sub-Series: Aboriginal Issues

Sub-series contains correspondence, minutes and reports of committees or coalitions centered around the topic of Aboriginal rights, ministries with Aboriginals, or residential schools prior to the establishment of the Healing and Reconciliation Program. Also included in the series are reference files and correspondence created or compiled by Justice Ministries staff on topics related to Aboriginal issues.

2010-1013-2-3	1992-2001	Aboriginal Issues Correspondence, research and reference information
2010-1013-2-5	1992-1993	Aboriginal Concerns Correspondence, research and reference information
2010-1013-2-6	1994-1995	Aboriginal Concerns Correspondence and news releases
2010-1013-3-2	1994	Aboriginal Rights Coalition Correspondence and minutes
2010-1013-3-3	1994	Aboriginal Rights Coalition Correspondence, newsletters and Reports
2010-1013-3-4	1995	Aboriginal Rights Coalition Correspondence and minutes
2010-1013-1-8	1992-1993	Aboriginal Justice Consultation Correspondence and reports
2010-1013-2-4	1992-1994	The Confession of The Presbyterian Church

		Newspaper clippings and reference information
2010-1013-2-1	1993-1996	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes, correspondence and reports: These records were Ray Hodgson's working files related to his involvement in the group as Associate Secretary of Justice Ministries.
2010-1013-2-7	1989-1992	National Native Ministries Minutes and Correspondence: This file fills in some gaps in the National Native Ministries records of Canada Ministries
2010-1013-2-8	1993-1995	National Native Ministries Minutes and Correspondence: This file fills in some gaps in the National Native Ministries records of Canada Ministries
2010-1013-2-9	1993-1994	Royal Commission on Aboriginal Peoples(RCAP) Correspondence, minutes and reports
2010-1013-3-1	1993-1995	Spirituality Correspondence and reference information

Sub-Series: Healing and Reconciliation

The Walking Together program, established by the General Assembly in 2006, is administered through the Justice Ministries department of the Life and Mission Agency. To assist with the implementation of the program, a Healing and Reconciliation Animator was hired in September 2006, and a Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee was formed in December 2006. The Healing and Reconciliation Animator is part of the Justice Ministries department.

General Correspondence

General Correspond	CHCC	
2011-1018-1-1	2006-2009	General Correspondence Letters and emails to and from the Healing & Reconciliation Animator.
Healing & Reconcil	liation Advisory Committee	
2011-1018-1-2	2006-2009	Healing and Reconciliation Advisory Committee Minutes and correspondence
Ecumenical Planning	ng Team	
2014-1008-1-14	2006-2007	Ecumenical Planning Team, Sept. 2006 – Oct. 2007
2014-1008-2-1	2007-2008	Ecumenical Planning Team, Nov. 2007 – Feb. 2008
2014-1008-2-2	2008	Ecumenical Planning Team, Feb. 2008 – Dec.

2008

Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools (EWGRS)

2011-1018-1-3	2006-2010	Ecumenical Working Group on Residential Schools Minutes and correspondence
		1.12mmes una correspondence
Events		
2010-1016-1-2	2008	Remembering the Children Media Releases, Articles & Sermons
2010-1016-1-3	2008	Remembering the Children Programs and Speeches
2010-1016-1-4	2009	Remembering the Children Tour Articles & Photographs
2011-1018-1-4	2008	Government of Canada's Apology Brief file of correspondence and notes regarding the Government of Canada's Apology to Aboriginal People for the Residential School system, June 11, 2008. Includes a briefing for Rev. Cheol Soon Park, Moderator of the 134th General Assembly.
2011-1018-1-5	2007-2008	Apology Reference Materials
2011-1018-1-6	2006-2007	Ecumenical Planning Team for Leaders' Tour Minutes, correspondence and notes re: the "Remembering the Children: Aboriginal and Church Leaders' Tour"
2011-1018-2-1	2008	Ecumenical Planning Team for Leaders' Tour Minutes, correspondence and notes re: the "Remembering the Children: Aboriginal and Church Leaders' Tour"
2011-1018-2-2	2007-2009	Leaders' Tour
2011-1018-2-3	2008-2009	Winnipeg Planning Committee - Leaders' Tour
2011-1018-2-4	2008-2009	Leaders' Tour - Follow-up Event in Edmonton
2011-1018-2-5	2008	Correspondence - Leaders' Tour Thank You Letters
2011-1018-2-6	2008-2009	Leaders' Tour – Media Coverage
2011-1018-2-7	2008-2009	Ecumenical Planning Team on Equipping Ambassadors Event
2011-1018-7-12	2008-2011	World Alliance of Reformed Churches (WARC)/Reformed Ecumenical Council (REC) General File Consists of correspondence, notes and working papers regarding the planning of the union of the two organizations to form the World Communion of Reformed Churches (WCRC) and the

		involvement of indigenous peoples, and the issue of reconciliation, in these proceedings.
2011-1018-8-1	2009-2010	World Alliance of Reformed Churches (WARC)/Reformed Ecumenical Council (REC) – PCC Resource and Display Planning
2011-1018-8-2	2010	World Communion of Reformed Churches (WCRC) Uniting Meeting documents, 2010.
2011-1018-8-3	2009-2010	World Communion of Reformed Churches (WCRC) Workshop on the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples.
2011-1018-8-4	2009-2010	World Communion of Reformed Churches (WCRC) Workshop on Truth-telling, Healing and Reconciliation
2011-1018-8-5	2010	World Communion of Reformed Churches (WCRC) Follow-up File
2011-1018-8-6	2008-2009	Edinburgh 2010 File #1 – Mission and Power Study process documents Includes correspondence, reports, working papers and other documents relating to the planning of the "Edinburgh 2010: Witnessing to Christ Today" conference celebrating the 100 th anniversary of the 1910 World Missionary Conference held in Edinburgh, and the involvement of Lori Ransom, Healing and Reconciliation Animator, in the process planning and integration of a residential schools case study into the Mission and Power study theme group.
2011-1018-9-1	2010	Edinburgh 2010 File #2 - Mission and Power Study – Content Development – Draft Contribution
2011-1018-9-2	2009-2010	Edinburgh 2010 File #3 – Mission and Power Study - General and process documents
2011-1018-9-3	2010	Edinburgh 2010 File #4 – Mission and Power Study process documents (Edinburgh 2010 Series Volumes 1 and 2).
2011-1018-10-1	2010	Edinburgh 2010 File #5 – Mission and Power Study - General and process documents
2011-1018-10-2	2010	Edinburgh 2010 File #6 – Mission and Power Study - Follow-up documents
2014-1008-1-8	2008	Healing and Reconciliation – Invitations for 134 th General Assembly to Truth and Reconciliation Commission and Assembly of First Nationa
2014-1008-1-9	2011	Commissioner Responses re: Healing and Reconciliation Programme GA

The Three Questions event, St. Andrew's PC, Toronto, Oct. 30, 2010.

Animator's Speaking Engagements/Trips/Meetings

2011-1018-3-1	2006	Vancouver Trip, Sept. 10-16, 2006
2011-1018-3-2	2006	Synod of Saskatchewan, Oct. 20-21, 2006
2011-1018-3-3	2006	Trip to Moose Jaw and Mistawasis, Oct. 2006
2011-1018-3-4	2006	Life and Mission Agency Meeting, Vancouver/Surrey, Nov. 7, 2006
2011-1018-3-5	2006	Presbytery of Lambton-West Middlesex, Nov. 2006
2011-1018-3-6	2006	WMS Executive, Nov. 13, 2006
2011-1018-3-7	2006	Assembly Council, Nov. 2006
2011-1018-3-8	2007	Presbytery of Waterloo-Wellington, Jan. 9, 2007
2011-1018-3-9	2007	Markham Chinese Presbyterian Church & others, Longlac#58 First Nation, Jan. 28, 2007
2011-1018-3-10	2007	Presbyterial of London, Jan. 18, 2007
2011-1018-3-11	2007	Knox College – Workshop on Relations between the Church and Aboriginal People in Canada, Jan. 2007
2011-1018-3-12	2007	Trip to Atlantic Canada, Feb. 17-20, 2007
2011-1018-3-13	2007	Winnipeg, Feb. 2007 and World Day of Prayer, March 2007
2011-1018-3-14	2007	Life and Mission Agency, March 2007
2011-1018-3-15	2007	British Columbia Trip, March 2007
2011-1018-3-16	2007	Vancouver School of Theology, March 2007
2011-1018-3-17	2007	Presbytery of Hamilton, April 2007
2011-1018-3-18	2007	Glenview Presbyterian Church, April 2007
2011-1018-4-1	2007	Willowdale Presbyterian Church, April 29, 2007
2011-1018-4-2	2007	St. John's Presbyterian Church, Toronto, May 6, 2007
2011-1018-4-3	2007	Women's Missionary Society AGM, May 2007
2011-1018-4-4	2007	Presbytery of Brandon, May 2007
2011-1018-4-5	2007	Maitland Presbyterial, May 14, 2007
2011-1018-4-6	2007	Knox P.C., Dundas, Ontario, May 27, 2007
2011-1018-4-7	2007	General Assembly and Knox P.C, Guelph, June 2007
2011-1018-4-8	2007	St. Andrew's P.C., Kitchener, June 3, 2007

2011-1018-4-9	2007	Drummond Hill P.C., Niagara Falls, June 10, 2007
2011-1018-4-10	2007	Paterson Memorial P.C., Sarnia, June 21, 2007
2011-1018-4-11	2007	Anglican General Synod, June 2007
2011-1018-4-12	2007	Bracebridge, Ontario, July 2007, October 2007
2011-1018-4-13	2007	Winnipeg Inner City Missions (WICM) "Walking Together" Event, July/August 2007
2011-1018-4-14	2007	Paulin Memorial Presbyterian Church, Windsor, Ontario, Sept. 16, 2007
2011-1018-4-15	2007	Presbyterial of Niagara, First P.C., Port Colborne, Ontario, September 19, 2007
2011-1018-4-16	2007	Presbyterian Church of St. Andrew & St. Paul, Montreal, Sept. 30, 2007
2011-1018-4-17	2007	Presbytery of Lambton-West Middlesex, Paterson Memorial P.C., Sarnia, Ontario, Oct. 20, 2007
2011-1018-4-18	2007	Armour Heights P.C., Toronto, Oct. 28, 2007
2011-1018-5-1	2007	Alberta, Nov. 2007
2011-1018-5-2	2007	Arnprior, Nov. 2007
2011-1018-5-3	2007	Winnipeg: Truth-Sharing, Healing and Reconciliation Roundtable meeting, Nov. 2007
2011-1018-5-4	2008	Anglican Indigenous Justice Group, Jan. 2008
2011-1018-5-5	2008	West Toronto Presbyterial, Feb. 2008
2011-1018-5-6	2008	Assembly Council Meeting, April 2008
2011-1018-5-7	2008	Presbyterial of Kingston, April 12, 2008
2011-1018-5-8	2008	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Cobourg, Ontario, April 20, 2008
2011-1018-5-9	2008	Chippawa Presbyterian Church, Ontario, April 27, 2008
2011-1018-5-10	[2008?]	National Native Ministries Committee Meeting
2011-1018-5-11	2008	Oak Ridges Presbyterial, Beeton Church, Ontario, May 4, 2008
2011-1018-5-12	2008	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Brampton, Ontario, May 2008
2011-1018-5-13	2008	Presbytery of Superior & St. Andrew's Church, Thunder Bay, Ontario, May 10, 2008
2011-1018-5-14	2008	St. Andrew's Church, Thunder Bay, May 11, 2008
2011-1018-5-15	2008	Huron-Perth Presbyterial, Goderich, May 26, 2008
2011-1018-5-16	2008	General Assembly, 2008
2011-1018-5-17	2008	West Flamboro, June 15, 2008

2011-1018-5-18	2008	Recognition Service for Rev. Mary Fontaine, June 22, 2008
2011-1018-5-19	2008	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Barrie, Ontario, July 20, 2008
2011-1018-6-1	2008	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Richmond Hill, Ontario, August 10, 2008
2011-1018-6-2	2008	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church – Men's Breakfast, Markham, Ontario, Sept. 6, 2008
2011-1018-6-3	2008	Presbytery of Gery-Bruce-Maitland, Sept. 9, 2008
2011-1018-6-4	2008	St. Timothy Presbyterian Church, Toronto, September 14, 2008
2011-1018-6-5	2008	East Toronto Presbyterial, September 20, 2008
2011-1018-6-6	2008	Bowmanville, Ontario, Sept. 21, 2008
2011-1018-6-7	2008	Prince Albert, Saskatchewan, Sept. 23-26, 2008
2011-1018-6-8	2008	Knox Church, Dunnville, Sept. 28, 2008
2011-1018-6-9	2008	Gracefield Camp, October 2008
2011-1018-6-10	2008	WMS Fall Supper Rally, Essa Road Presbyterian Church, Ontario, Oct. 15, 2008
2011-1018-6-11	2008	Alberta, October 2008
2011-1018-6-12	2008	Gateway Community Church, Toronto, Nov. 16, 2008
2011-1018-6-13	2009	Carleton Place, Ontario, Jan. 25, 2009
2011-1018-6-14	2009	Canadian Theological Students' Conference, Toronto, Feb. 18, 2009
2011-1018-6-15	2009	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Scarborough, Ontario – Men's Breakfast, Feb. 21, 2009
2011-1018-6-16	2009	Prince Albert, March 2009
2011-1018-6-17	2009	Atlantic Canada, 2009
2011-1018-6-18	2009	Paterson Memorial Presbyterian Church, Sarnia, April 19, 2009
2011-1018-6-19	2009	Inuit Event, Ottawa, May 9, 2009
2011-1018-7-1	2009	Vancouver/Abbotsford, May 23-24, 2009
2011-1018-7-2	2009	New Brunswick, May 30, 2009
2011-1018-7-3	2009	General Assembly, 2009
2011-1018-7-4	2009	Cape Breton, June 2009
2011-1018-7-5	2009	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Toronto, June 21, 2009
2011-1018-7-6	2009	Camp Kintail, July 2009

2011-1018-7-7	2009	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Scarborough, Ontario, Sept. 20, 2009
2011-1018-7-8	2009	Saskatchewan Presbyterian Youth Event, Mistawasis, September 27, 2009
2011-1018-7-9	2009	MacDonald Lecture, Knox College, Toronto, October 14, 2009
2011-1018-7-10	2009	St. John's Presbyterian Church, Milliken, Ontario, October 25, 2009
2011-1018-7-11	2009	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Ottawa, November 14, 2009
2014-1006	2012-2013	Power Point Presentations Prepared and presented by David Phillips
2014-1008-1-11	2010	Presentation to the Life and Mission Agency Committee meeting, Nov. 8, 2010
2014-1008-1-12	2011	Presentation to Presbytery of Hamilton, Feb. 8, 2011
2014-1008-1-13	2007	Healing and Reconciliation Program Workshop Materials and Evaluations
Healing & Reconci	liation Seed Fund Projects	
2011-1018-10-3	2007	Westwood Presbyterian Church, Winnipeg "Flying on Your Own" Project
2011-1018-10-4	2007	Sakimay Tae-Kwan-Do Club/Trinity Presbyterian Church, Grenfell, Sask. "The Creation of Friendship" Project
2011-1018-10-5	2007	Richmond Youth Service Agency "National Aboriginal Day Event 2007" Project
2011-1018-10-6	2007-2008	Mosaic Community Fellowship "Ishskwaday Native Conference" Project
2011-1018-10-7	2007-2009	Hummingbird Ministries "Wai Wah Sports and Reconciliation and Youth Cultural Recovery" Project
2011-1018-10-8	2007-2009	Ecumenical Chaplaincy, University of Saskatchewan "Christian Elders" Project
2011-1018-10-9	2007-2009	Saskatoon Native Circle Ministry "Cultural Learning" Project
2011-1018-10-10	2007-2009	Edmonton Urban Native Ministry "Youth Almighty – Close Encounters" Project
2011-1018-10-11	2007-2010	Medicine Eagle Retreat Centre, Elphinstone, Manitoba "Walking Together Celebration" Project
2011-1018-10-12	2007-2010	Riverside Presbyterian Church, Medicine Hat

		"Cultural Exchange" Project
2011-1018-11-1	2007-2010	Presbytery of Montreal "Aboriginal Project"
2011-1018-11-2	2008	Markham Chinese Presbyterian Church, Ontario "Gilbert and Emily Ferris Visit" Project
2011-1018-11-3	2008-2009	Presbytery of Kamloops "Cheryl Bear Cariboo- Okanagan Tour 2009"
2011-1018-11-4	2008-2009	Diane Ollerenshaw and Moira Brownless "Returning to the Spirit Workshop" Project
2011-1018-11-5	2008-2009	Brochet Exchange "Value-added component, Summer Program" Project
2011-1018-11-6	2008-2009	Michael Burns "Engaging Aboriginal Theologies" Project
2011-1018-11-7	2008-2009	Richmond Youth Services Agency "Aboriginal Timelines" Project
2011-1018-11-8	2008-2009	Duff's Presbyterian Church, Puslinch, Ontario "Mission Awareness Project visit to Webequie First Nation"
2011-1018-11-9	2008-2010	St. Paul's Presbyterian Church, Prince Albert, Saskatchewan "Community Kitchen" Project
2011-1018-11-10	2008-2010	Western Han-Ca Presbytery and Edmonton Urban Native Ministry "Native Mission Forum" Project
2011-1018-11-11	2008-2010	Gracefield Camp "Listening, Sharing, Celebrating" Project
2011-1018-11-12	2009	Rev. Stephen Smith "Torrance Kids' Summer Aboriginal Studies and Craft Camp Season Finale Pow-wow" Project
2011-1018-11-13	2009	Prince Albert "Building Bridges – A Cultural Day in a Multi-Cultural Way" Project
2011-1018-11-14	2009-2010	Native Canadian Centre of Toronto "Mina Bimadziwin Cultural Teaching Circles" Project
2011-1018-12-1	2009-2010	Manitoban's for Healing and Reconciliation "It Starts With Me" Project
2011-1018-12-2	2009-2010	Taiwanese Robert Campbell (TRC) Presbyterian Church, Montreal "Taiwan/Canada Aboriginal Exchange" Project
2011-1018-12-3	2009-2010	Saskatchewan Presbyterian Youth "Fall Retreat" Project
2011-1018-12-4	2009-2010	St. John's Presbyterian Church, Bradford, Ontario "Twinning Project"
2011-1018-12-5	2009-2010	Jeannette Eddolls "Youth Budgeting/Financial Planning and Nutritional/Meal Planning" Project

2011-1018-12-6	2009-2011	Knox, St. Andrew's and St. Giles' Presbyterian Churches in Ottawa "Aboriginal Outreach Sunday" Project
2011-1018-12-7	2010	Rev. Stephen Smith "Honouring Our Children: Second Annual Traditional Aboriginal Pow-wow" Project
2011-1018-12-8	2010-2011	Camp Christopher "Cultural Camps" Project
2011-1018-12-9	2010-2011	Building Bridges Partnership Project "Covenant Chain Link Event"
2011-1018-12-10	2007-2011	Projects Not Funded
2011-1018-12-11	2008	Seed Fund Projects Criteria and Sample Application Form
Resources		
2011-1018-12-12	1994	The Confession of 1994 Colour photocopy of the original document
2011-1018-12-13	2007	About Healing and Reconciliation One page introduction to the Healing and Reconciliation program
2011-1018-12-14	2007	Liturgical Kit
2007-1024	2007	Resources on Reconciliation and Healing with Aboriginal People Correspondence, newsletters, bulletin inserts, posters and Brochures
2010-1016-1-1	2008	Resources on Reconciliation and Healing with Aboriginal People Healing and Reconciliation Poster
2011-1018-12-15	2010	One in the Spirit: Aboriginal and Non-Aboriginal Peoples Walking Together in Ministry and Towards Reconciliation
2011-1018-12-16	2010	We Are One in the Spirit: Liturgical Resources Including Church School Activities for Services of Worship in Support of Healing and Reconciliation in Canada
2011-1018-12-17	2010	Correspondence and manuscripts re: "We Are One in the Spirit" resource
2011-1018-12-18	2011	Report of Ideas from Commissioners to the 137 th General Assembly of The Presbyterian Church in Canada, June 9-10, 2011
2011-1018-12-19	2011	Print-out of the Healing and Reconciliation Website home page and selected pages (as of August 2011)

2011-1018-12-20	c. 2008-2011	Various articles and other resources
2014-1008-2-3	2008	Sermons and Reflections
2014-1008-2-4	2010-2011	DVD on Historical Legacy of Aboriginal work in the PCC, 2011
2014-1008-2-5	1994-2010	Papers, articles and reports on the history and legacy of Residential Schools, 1994-
2014-1008-2-6	1993-2010	Papers, articles and reports on the history and legacy of Residential Schools, 2005-2010
2014-1008-2-7	2006-2011	Articles written by Lori Ransom, H&R Animator, 2006-2010
2014-1008-2-8	2006-2010	Articles, liturgical stories, sermon notes re: residential schools, 2006-2010

Woman's Foreign Missionary Society (Western Division)

Administrative Sketch:

The Woman's Foreign Missionary Society (Western Division) was founded in 1876 on the initiative of the Foreign Mission Committee of The Presbyterian Church in Canada. It existed until 1914 when it merged with the Women's Home Missionary Society and the Montreal Woman's Missionary Society to form the Women's Missionary Society (Western Division). The Woman's Foreign Missionary Society assisted the Foreign Mission Committee of The PCC in the operation of the residential schools by raising funds and promoting the work amongst its members.

Scope and Content

Contains annual reports, minutes, circular letters, publications and periodicals which include reports and updates on The PCC operated residential schools.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	Description
1988-7002-1-1	1877, 1880, 1881	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-2	1884 - 1889/90	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-3	1890/91 – 1894/95	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-4	1895/96 – 1899/1900	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-5	1900/01 - 1904/05	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-6	1905/06 - 1906/07	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-7	1907/08 - 1908/09	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-8	1909/10 - 1910/11	Annual Reports
1988-7002-1-9	1912/13 – 1913/14	Annual Reports
1988-7002-2-3	1885	Circular Letter Leaflet containing circular letter from the Board of Management of the W.F.M.S. (W.D.) to auxiliaries and mission bands concerning donations to mission work, with extracts of letters from missionaries, including one from W. Hodnett on the Birtle Reserve, dated Nov. 1884
2004-7001	1899/1900	Report of the Board of Management
1988-7002-2-6	1901	A Quarter of A Century (1876-1901) Written by Agnes F. Robertson; Toronto, 1901; 20pp. History of the W.F.M.S.
1988-7002-2-8	1894	Three Papers Written by Mrs. D.J. MacDonald; Toronto, 1894; 20pp. I. "The W.F.M.S. Society." II. "Our Plan of Work: Its Extent and Limitation." III. "Self-Questioning."

Periodicals

1885-1886 Foreign News/Foreign Letters

	Feb. 1886 On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1887 May, Sept., Oct.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1888 Aug., Dec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1889 Mar., May, June, AugDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1890 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1891 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1892 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1893 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1894 JanDec. (ex. Mar)	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1895 JanApr.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1895 May – 1897 April	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
1897 May-Dec.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1898 JanDec. (ex. Feb.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1899 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Jul, Dec.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1900 FebApr., Oct.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1901 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Jun., Nov)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1902 JanDec. (ex. Sep.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1903 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Nov, Dec)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1904 JanDec. (ex. AprJun, Nov.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
1905 JanDec. (ex. Jul., Aug.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2

Foreign Missionary Tidings

On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2

1906 Jan.-Dec.

(ex. Jun, Sep, Nov.)

Issues for July, Aug., Oct., 1885, and Jan.,

1907 Jan.-Dec. Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 (ex. Apr., May, Oct) 1908 Jul., Aug. Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 Foreign Missionary Tidings 1909 Apr., Nov. On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 1910 Apr., Jun, Jul.-Sep. Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 1911 Jan., Feb. Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 1912 Nov. Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 Foreign Missionary Tidings 1913 Mar., Apr., Jul-Sept. On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2 1914 Mar., Apr., June Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2

Women's Missionary Society (Western Division)

Administrative Sketch

The Women's Missionary Society (Western Division) was formed in 1914 with the amalgamation of the Montreal Women's Missionary Society, the Woman's Foreign Missionary Society (Western Division) and the Woman's Home Missionary Society. In 1925, the Council Executive of the W.M.S. (W.D.) was made a part of the Assembly's General Board of Missions and from this point on the W.M.S. (W.D.) became a significant part of the mission work of The PCC. Up until c. 1925 the Woman's Foreign Mission Society had assisted in the operation of residential schools by raising funds and promoting its work amongst members. By 1927, however, the General Board of Missions turned the full administration of the schools over to the W.M.S. (W.D.). The W.M.S. (W.D.) continued in this capacity until 1969 when the schools became the full responsibility of the Federal Government. Due to its major role in the operation of The PCC residential schools, the W.M.S. (W.D.) also became involved in the healing and reconciliation efforts of The PCC with participation in initiatives such as the Journey to Wholeness Campaign.

Scope and Content

Contains correspondence, minutes, reports, personnel records, legal files, reference files and other records which document the work of the W.M.S. (W.D.) in the operation of Birtle Indian Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School. There are also records that speak to the participation of the W.M.S. (W.D.) in healing and reconciliation efforts. The records of the President contain minutes, reports, correspondence, statements of legal claims and property lists which reference properties associated with the two schools. The records of the Board of Trustees and Treasurer consist of minutes, correspondence and financial statements as well as deeds relating to insurance policies for school properties. The records of the Council include minutes and annual reports which are a rich source of information about the decisions, policies and actions of the W.M.S. (W.D.) in their administration of the residential schools. The records of the Council Executive also contain minutes and annual reports as well as correspondence, committee minutes and reference files created to redress the issue of abuse in the schools. The records of the Organization Department consist of minutes, correspondence and personnel files which include reference to W.M.S. employees who worked at one or both of the residential schools. The series also contains mission studies and other educational material developed by the Organization Department. The National Missions Department series contains correspondence, reports, minutes, personnel records and school quarterly returns related to the administration of the schools. The Finance Committee records are comprised of minutes of the Finance Committee which reference some of the financial aspects of the operation of the schools. The Publications Department series contains minutes, periodicals, subject reference files and publications which contain articles, notes and research pertaining to residential schools and healing and reconciliation efforts of the W.M.S. (W.D.) and The PCC. The W.M.S. Profile series is comprised of integrated reference and personnel files on the employees of the W.M.S., including employees who worked at one or both PCC operated residential schools. Finally, general records contain scrapbooks and photo albums of newspaper cuttings and photos highlighting the various activities of the W.M.S.(W.D.) including photos and newspaper cuttings on The PCC operated residential schools.

Table of Contents

Series: Records of the President.	69
Properties	69
General	69
Series: Records of the Board of Trustees and Treasurer	70
Board of Trustees – General	70
Treasurer	70
Series: Records of the Council	72
Annual Council Meetings	72
Annual Reports	73
General	76
Series: Records of the Council Executive	77
Annual Council Executive Meetings	77
Sub-Executive	80
Executive Secretary	80
Executive Director	81
Finance Working Group/Finance Core Working Group	81
Residential Schools	81
Series: Records of the Organization Department/Education Department	85
Candidates Committee Minutes/Candidates Secretary	
Mission Studies and Sharing Projects	85
Film Strip Scripts	86
Series: Records of the National Missions Department	87
National Executive Secretary/Executive Director of National	
Missions	87
National Committee	88
Indians Secretary	88
Correspondence – Birtle Indian Residential School	88
Correspondence – Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School	89
General	89
Indian Work	89
Birtle Indian Residential School - Correspondence	90
Birtle Indian Residential School - Quarterly Returns	91
Birtle Indian Residential School – General Files	92
Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School - Correspondence	92
Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School – Quarterly Returns	94
Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School – Staff Contracts	95
Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School – General Files	
Indian Affairs Branch – Correspondence	
Indian Affairs Branch – Negotiations on Operation	
of Indian Residential Schools	96
Indian Affairs Branch – General Files	

Personnel Records	97
Indian Work – General	98
Audio-Visual Material	98
Fellowship Houses and Inner City Missions	
Placement of Deaconesses and National Missionaries	
Personnel	99
WMS Personnel Index Cards	99
WMS Personnel Files	
National Missions – General	103
Series: Records of the Finance Department	
Series: Records of the Publication Department	
Committees	
Periodicals	
The Missionary Messenger	
The Glad Tidings	
Subject Reference Files	
Publications	
Series: WMS Profiles/Personnel Files.	
Series: General Records of the WMS.	
Scrapbooks	

Series: Records of the President

The position of President of the W.M.S.(W.D.) is an unpaid, elected post. The President serves as the head of the Council.

Sub-Series: Properties

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1988-7010-1-27	1926	List of Properties of The Presbyterian Church in Canada as at June 10th 1925 Lists prepared by Messrs. Reid, Wright & McMillan, Barristers, acting for the United Church of Canada
1988-7010-1-28	1925-1928	Dominion Church Property Commission Correspondence and papers relating to W.M.S. (W.D.) claims: includes copy correspondence of General Board of Missions and United Church of Canada

Sub-Series: General

1988-7004-4-16	1938	National Missions Includes a memorandum from the Committee of Churches Co-Operating With the Department of Indian Affairs in Indian Education.
1988-7010-1-29	1926	Annual Report and Claims Compiled copies of Annual Report showing "Present Condition W.M.S.", statements of legal claims being made to property and instructions to lanyers concerning claims, copy correspondence and reports (33pp. typescript)

Series: Records of the Board of Trustees and Treasurer

From at least 1925, the Board of Trustees has been made up of five members, elected by Council. One member must be from the Council Executive; this member serves as Chairman. The purpose of this Board is to hold the properties of the W.M.S. in trust. The Treasurer, like the President, is an elected, unpaid officer of the Council. Originally, the Treasurer took a much more active role in the administering the accounts of the W.M.S. As the Society became more professionalized, the paid Assistant to the Treasurer began conducting the day to day business, with the Treasurer serving as the authority for transactions. The records of the Board of Trustees and the Treasurer have been maintained as one series, as they were filed together in the W.M.S. office.

Sub-Series: Board of Trustees

Deeds and Title Papers

1998-7002-1-3	1892	Birtle Indian Residential School deed of land
1998-7002-1-6	1941	Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School farm
		lease

General

1994-7002-1-2 1958-1979 Minutes and related correspondence

Sub-Series: Treasurer

Correspondence

1991-7019-1-2	1960-1962	General RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1996-7001-1-1	1990-1991	General
1998-7002-1-7	1969-1971	Sale of Birtle property
1998-7002-1-11	1959-1970	Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School
1991-7018-1-2	1967-1967	Wasacase, Mr. Colin

Ledgers & Journals

Note: Payroll Journals are restricted for 75 years

General ledger sheets (Part 1)	1925-1957	1991-7018-2-1
General ledger sheets (Part 2)	1925-1957	1991-7018-2-2
General ledger sheets (Part 3)	1925-1957	1991-7018-2-3
General ledger sheets (Part 4)	1925-1957	1991-7018-2-4
General ledger sheets (Part 5)	1925-1957	1991-7018-2-5

1991-7018-3-1	1926-1955	General ledger sheets (Part 1)
1991-7018-3-2	1926-1955	General ledger sheets (Part 2)
1991-7018-3-3	1926-1955	General ledger sheets (Part 3)
1991-7018-3-4	1958-1974	General ledger (Part 1)
1991-7018-3-5	1958-1974	General ledger (Part 2)
1998-7001-1-4	1964-1969	General fund journal
1998-7001-2-4	1959-1972	National and overseas general ledger sheets (Part 1)
1998-7001-2-5	1959-1972	National and overseas general ledger sheets (Part 2)
2000-7004-3-1	1961-1963	Payroll journal RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.

Series: Records of the Council

The Council is the legislative body of the W.M.S. With the exception of a period in the 1930's the Council has met annually to receive annual reports and determine policy. Until 1947, the Council consisted of the officers of Council, Council Executive, the Presidents and other officers of the Provincial Boards, representatives from the Provincial Societies, and the President of each Presbyterial Society. After 1947, with the change from Provincial to Synodical boundaries, Synodical officers and representatives naturally replaced the Provincial members. The Council is now made up of elected Synodical delegates, the elected members of Council Executive and Ex-officio and non-voting members. The Ex-officio members are those from other Boards and Councils of the P.C.C.

Scope and Content

1991-7020-1-9

1935

This series consists of material from the Annual Council Meetings, including minutes and annual reports. The records are from the period 1915-2009. The minutes and annual reports, especially in the earlier years when the W.M.S. was responsible for managing the residential schools, are a rich source of information on the policies, decisions and actions of the W.M.S. in regards to the operation of The PCC residential schools. More recent minutes and reports provide some information on the healing and reconciliation initiatives the W.M.S. was involved in.

Series: Annual Council Meetings

Agendas		
1988-7004-4-3	1915-1924	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-4	1925-1930	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-5	1931-1935	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-6	1936-1940	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-7	1941-1945	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-8	1946-1950	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-9	1961-1965	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-4-10	1966-1970	Council Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
1988-7004-63-12	1967	Council Meeting Agenda, circulars and reports in preparation for meeting
Minutes		
1991-7020-1-3	1925	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-4	1925-1929	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-5	1930	Enlarged Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-1-6	1931	Biennial Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-7	1932-1933	Enlarged Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-1-8	1934	Biennial Council Meeting minutes

Enlarged Council Executive minutes

1991-7020-1-10	1936	Biennial Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-11	1937	Enlarged Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-1-12	1938	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-13	1939-1941	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-14	1942-1945	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-15	1946-1949	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-16	1950-1952	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-1-17	1953-1954	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-2-1	1955-1956	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-2-2	1957-1958	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-2-3	1959-1960	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-2-4	1961-1962	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1991-7020-2-5	1963-1964	Annual Council Meeting minutes
1994-7002-1-3	1965-1967	Annual Council Meeting minutes
Sub-Series: Annua	al Reports	
1988-7004-1-6	1914-1915	Annual Reports
1700 700110		On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #1
2004-7002-1-1	1915-1916	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #1
2004-7002-1-2	1917-1918	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #1
2004-7002-1-3	1919-1920	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #1
2004-7002-1-4	1921	Annual Report On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #1
1988-7004-1-7	1922-1923	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #2
2004-7002-1-4	1924	Annual Report On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #2
1988-7004-1-8	1925-1926	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #2
1988-7004-1-9	1927-1928	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #2
1988-7004-1-10	1929-1930	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #2
1988-7004-1-11	1931	Annual Report On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-1-12	1934	Annual Report

		On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-1-13	1935-1936	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-1-14	1937-1938	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-2-1	1939-1940	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-2-2	1941-1942	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #3
1988-7004-2-3	1943-1944	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-4	1945-1946	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-5	1947-1948	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-6	1949-1950	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-7	1951-1952	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-8	1953-1954	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #4
1988-7004-2-9	1955-1956	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-2-10	1957-1958	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-2-11	1959-1960	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-3-1	1961-1962	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-3-2	1963-1964	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-3-3	1965-1966	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #5
1988-7004-3-4	1967-1968	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-5	1969-1970	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-6	1971-1972	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-7	1973-1974	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-8	1975-1976	Annual Reports On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-9	1977-1979	Annual Reports

		On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-10	1979	Annual Report On microfilm #2008-8003 Reel #6
1988-7004-3-11	1980	Annual Report
1988-7004-3-12	1981	Annual Report
1988-7004-3-13	1982	Annual Report
1988-7004-3-14	1983	Annual Report
1988-7004-4-1	1984	Annual Report
2003-7012	1985	Annual Report
1988-7004-4-2	1986	Annual Report
1988-7010-1-1	1987	Annual Report
1989-7001-1-1	1988	Annual Report Includes circulars issued August 1989
2000-7004-4-4	1989	Annual Report
1996-7001-1-8	1990	Annual Report
1996-7001-1-9	1991	Annual Report
1993-7013-1-1	1992	Annual Report
1996-7001-1-10	1993	Annual Report
1996-7001-1-11	1994	Annual Report
1997-7002-1-1	1995	Annual Report
1997-7002-1-2	1996	Annual Report
2003-7013	1997, 1998	Annual Report
2000-7004-4-5	1999	Annual Report and supplement
2001-7002-1-1	2000	Annual Report and supplements ("Stories of Mission")
2010-7003-2-3	2001	Annual Report and Supplements
2010-7003-2-4	2002	Annual Report and Supplements
2010-7003-2-5	2003	Annual Report and Supplements
2010-7007-1-1	2004	Annual Report and Supplements
2010-7007-1-2	2005	Annual Report and Supplements
2010-7007-1-3	2006	Annual Report

Annual Report and Supplements

Annual Report and Supplements

Annual Report and Supplements

2010-7003-2-6

2010-7003-2-7

2010-7007-1-4

2007

2008

2009

Sub-Series: General

2000-7001-3-10 1992

Response to Council from Presbyterials re: Presbyterian Record article on Residential Schools "No clean hands"

Series: Records of the Council Executive

The Council Executive is the administrative body of the W.M.S.(W.D.). In 1925, it consisted of the Presidents of the Provincial Societies, and other elected members. The elected officers of Council are also members. In the early years, the Council Executive members were nominated by Council, and elected by General Assembly. As the Society gained more autonomy in the 1940's, the Council took over the task of electing members. The Council Executive is in charge of conducting business between the Annual Council Meetings. Should issues arise between the regular Council Executive meetings, the Sub-executive, made up of members of the Council Executive, is empowered to make decisions. Up until 1980, the Departments of the W.M.S. (Finance, Education and Publications) and their various committees were in charge of their respective work. In 1980, the Council Executive established working groups in the areas of Finance, Personnel, Adult Work, Youth/Children's Work, Editorial, and Book Room. The Departments and Committees were subsequently disbanded, with the new Working Groups, under the purview of the Council Executive, taking over all decision-making capabilities. The position of Executive Secretary began in 1952 as the Executive Director of Organization, a salaried post mainly in charge of education. In 1972, after the responsibility for mission work was transferred to the Board of World Missions, the Organization Department was renamed the Education Department, and the Executive Director became the Executive Secretary, now with responsibilities expanded outside the field of education. The Executive Secretary eventually evolved into the head of the W.M.S. staff. For this reason, the Executive Secretary is included in the records of the Council Executive.

Scope and Content:

This series consists of minutes, correspondence, reports and other material relating to the activities of the Council Executive. This includes material on the planning for Council meetings, as well as the preparation of the Annual Report. Included within the Council Executive Meetings records are minutes that contain reference to decisions made and reports received regarding the operation of residential schools. The Executive Secretary and Executive Director files contain correspondence which contains references to residential schools or issues associated with healing and reconciliation efforts of The PCC. Finance Working Group/Finance Core Group records consist of minutes which address requests for money towards healing and reconciliation activities. This series also contains material specifically related to residential schools. It consists of material collected as part of the ongoing effort to redress the issue of abuse in the schools. Minutes and correspondence of committees active in this effort are also included here.

Sub-Series: Annual Council Executive Meetings

Agendas

1988-7004-4-14	1930-1935	Council Executive Meetings-Agendas (incomplete)
Minutes		
1991-7020-2-6	1924-1925	Informal committee to plan for the W.M.S. of the Continuing Presbyterian Church/Provisional Executive Board minutes
1991-7020-2-7	1925-1926	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-2-8	[ca. 1926-1934]	Council Executive minutes- index

1991-7020-2-9	1926	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-1	1927	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-2	1927-1928	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-3	1929	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-4	1929-1930	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-5	1930-1931	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-6	1931-1932	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-7	1932-1933	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-3-8	1933-1934	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-1	1934-1935	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-2	1936	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-3	1937	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-4	1927-1938	Council Executive meetings- attendance records
1991-7020-4-5	1938	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-6	1939	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-4-7	[ca. 1935-1943]	Council Executive minutes- index
1991-7020-5-1	1940	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-5-2	1941	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-5-3	1942	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-5-4	1943	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-5-5	1944	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-5-6	1944-1952	Council Executive minutes- index
1991-7020-5-7	1944-1945	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-5-8	1946	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-5-9	1947	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-1	1948	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-2	1949	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-3	1950	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-4	1951	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-5	1952	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-6	1953-1959	Council Executive minutes- index
1991-7020-6-7	1953	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-8	1954	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-6-9	1955	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-1	1956	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes

1991-7020-7-2	1957	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-3	1958	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-4	1959	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-5	1960	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-6	1961	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-7	1962	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-7-8	1963	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
1991-7020-8-1	1964	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-2	1965	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-3	1966	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-4	1967	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-5	1968	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-6	1969	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-7	1970	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-8	1971	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-8-9	1972	Council Executive, Sub-executive & Council Planning Committee minutes
1991-7020-9-1	1973-1985	Council Executive minutes- index
1991-7020-9-2	1973	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-3	1974-1975	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-4	1976-1977	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-5	1978-1979	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-6	1980-1981	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-7	1982-1983	Council Executive minutes
1991-7020-9-8	1984-1985	Council Executive minutes
1994-7002-1-7	1986-1987	Council Executive minutes- index
1994-7002-1-8	1986-1987	Council Executive minutes
1994-7002-1-9	1988	Council Executive minutes
2000-7001-5-1	1989	Council Executive minutes
1993-7006-1-1	1990-1991	Council Executive minutes

1996-7001-4-1	1991-1994	Council Executive minutes
2010-7002-1-2	1994-1995	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-1-3	1996	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-1-4	1997	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-2-1	1998	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-2-2	1999	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-2-3	2000	Council Executive & Sub-executive minutes
2010-7002-2-4	2001-2003	Council Executive minutes (excluding Nov. 2003)
2010-7002-2-5	Nov. 3-4, 2003	Council Executive minutes
2014-7001	2003-2010	Council Executive minutes

Sub-Series: Sub-executive

1997-7001-1-2	1996-1997	Minutes
2010-7002-2-6	2000-2003	Minutes

Sub-Series: Executive Secretary

Correspondence

2000-7004-4-8	1974	MacCallum, Mr. Robert S., former Principal of Cecilia Jeffrey School
2001-7001-1-2	October 1991	General Also includes letters from other WMS staff
2001-7001-1-4	December 1991	General
2001-7001-1-8	April 1992	General
2001-7001-1-9	May 1992	General
2001-7001-1-10	June 1992	General
2001-7001-1-12	August 1992	General
2001-7001-1-19	March 1993	General
2001-7001-1-21	May 1993	General
2001-7001-1-22	June 1993	General
2001-7001-2-2	October 1993	General
2001-7001-2-5	January 1994	General
2001-7001-2-27	November 1995	General

Sub-Series: Executive Director

Correspondence

2010-7006-1-1	1993	General
2010-7006-1-2	1994-1996	General

Sub-Series: Finance Working Group/Finance Core Group

2010-7003-1-3 1994 Finance Working Group minutes

Sub-Series: Residential Schools

The majority of these records are comprised of June Stevenson's files. June Stevenson, who was editor of Glad Tidings, did research for the WMS into the history and issues surrounding residential schools. There is also material related to the "Journey to Wholeness" campaign.

Journey to Wholeness

In 1998 a healing fund campaign called "Journey to Wholeness" was launched. The fund was established to provide financial support for projects facilitating healing for those with historic connections to The PCC operated residential schools. The Spending Committee of the Journey to Wholeness Campaign reported to the Residential Schools Working Group (The PCC). For further records relating to the campaign, see the records of Canada Ministries as well as Life and Mission Agency. June Stevenson, a staff member of the WMS, served on the Journey to Wholeness Committee.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2010-7004-2-1	1999-2003	Budget
2005-7004-1-9	1999	Campaign mailings
2010-7004-1-18	1999; 2001	Campaign poster
2010-7004-2-7	Nov. 19, 2003	Committee Meeting Agenda
2010-7004-2-6	Feb. 2, 1998	Committee Minutes
2010-7004-2-3	n.d.	Contact Information for Committee Members
2010-7004-1-16	2001-2003	Correspondence – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-2-5	2002-2004	Correspondence
2010-7004-1-17	2001	Criteria & terms of reference – J. Stevenson's file
2010-7004-2-2	2002	'Journey to Wholeness Funds Projects' – Article by June Stevenson
2005-7004-1-5	2001	Healing Fund Proposal re: Shoal Lake
2010-7004-1-1	2003	Funded Projects: Broken Walls - Richard Twiss Ministry - June Stevenson's file

2010-7004-1-2	2003	Funded Projects: Eden Wellness Project – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-3	2004	Funded Projects: Georgian Native & Outreach Ministries - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-4	2003	Funded Projects: First Nations Health Fair – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-5	2001-2002	Funded Projects: Healing & Drumming Workshops – Nancy Morrison – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-6	2004	Funded Projects: Impact Society – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-7	2002	Funded Projects: Kenora Health Access Centre – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-8	2001-2004	Funded Projects: The Lost Generation Therapeutic Circle - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-9	2001-2004	Funded Projects: Mennonite Central Committee North - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-10	2003	Funded Projects: McIntosh Residential School Gathering - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-11	2003	Funded Projects: The NEXT Generation Youth Association - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-12	2003	Funded Projects: Shingwauk University – June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-13	2001-2003	Funded Projects: Saskatoon Native Circle Ministry – Healing Circle - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-14	2003	Funded Projects: National Day of Healing & Reconciliation - June Stevenson's file
2010-7004-1-15	2003	Funded Projects: Swampy Cree Tribal Council - 'Eagle Quest' - June Stevenson's file
Committees/Groups	<u> </u>	
2010-7005-1-3	1998-2003	The PCC Residential Schools Working Group - June Stevenson's file
2000-7001-1-5	1991-1993	Residential Schools Committee
2000-7001-1-6	1994-1996	Residential School Working Group
2005-7004-1-7	2000-2001	Residential Schools Working Group
2000-7001-1-7	1996-1998	Residential School Working Group/Residential School Task Force
2005-7004-1-10	2000	Govt of Canada book: "Reconciliation & Healing: Alternate Resolution Strategies"

2005-7004-1-1	2002	Residential Schools Former Staff Gathering RESTRICTED – 75 years
2010-7004-2-4	2002	Residential Schools Former Staff Gathering – June Stevenson's file RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
Research Files:		
2010-7004-2-10	n.d.	Mission Study – Correspondence re. Possibility
2005-7004-1-8	1998-2000	Native Correspondence
2005-7004-1-6	2000-2001	Newspaper Articles re. residential schools
2005-7004-1-2	1992-1998	Indian Residential Schools – research and material produced by P.C.C. re: Schools
2010-7004-2-8	1993-1994	Indian Residential Schools – research and material produced by P.C.C. re: Schools
2000-7004-5-1	1944-1993	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's file- material produced by P.C.C. re: Schools (part I)
2000-7004-5-2	1944-1993	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's file- material produced by P.C.C. re: Schools (part II)
2000-7004-5-3	1944-1993	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's file - material produced by P.C.C. re: Schools (part III)
2010-7005-1-1	1991-1995	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's material produced by WMS re: Schools
2000-7004-5-4	1954-1993	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's file- reference material re: Schools (part I)
2000-7004-5-5	1954-1993	Indian Residential Schools- June Stevenson's file- reference material re: Schools (part II)
2010-7004-5-6	n.d.	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- June Stevenson's file- research
2010-7004-1-19	2003	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- June Stevenson's file- research re: Residential Schools
2000-7004-5-7	1915-1991	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- June Stevenson's file- articles collected re: Residential Schools
2000-7004-5-8	1944-1992	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- June Stevenson's file- minutes, correspondence, reports and other material re: Residential Schools
2000-7004-5-9	1992-1994	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential

		School- June Stevenson's correspondence
2000-7004-6-1	[n.d.]	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- maps
2000-7004-6-2	1901-1957	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- deeds and other title documents
2000-7004-6-3	1942-1964	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Director of National Missions correspondence re: Shoal Lake/Prescawa
2000-7004-6-4	1951-1954	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School-Secretary's correspondence re: Camps- Shoal Lake
2000-7004-6-5	1956-1957	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School-Treasurer's correspondence re: Clear Lake, Shoal Lake, Cecilia Jeffrey School
2000-7004-6-6	1978	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- correspondence with the Ministry of Natural Resources re: Restricted Area Order- Shoal Lake (includes maps)
2000-7004-6-7	1981-1982	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- correspondence re: Shoal Lake
2000-7004-6-8	1984-1989	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- correspondence and other material re: Shoal Lake/Prescawa
2010-7004-2-9	2000	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- correspondence and other material re: Shoal Lake/Prescawa
2000-7004-6-9	1992-1993	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School- correspondence and other material re: Transfer of Prescawa Camp property to the Board of Trustees of P.C.C.
2000-7004-6-10	1986-1991	Shoal Lake/Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School correspondence re: sale of Shoal Lake property
2005-7004-1-3	1950-2000	Shoal Lake Camp

Series: Records of the Organization Department/Education Department

The Organization Department began in 1925, and did just what its name suggests, as well as taking on the work of mission education. Four Organization Secretaries were appointed to work with local groups. The Organization Department also served as the liaison with Auxiliaries, Presbyterials, Provincials, and later Synodicals. In 1952, an Executive Director of Organization was appointed. When the Board of World Missions took over responsibility for missionaries in 1971, the Director of Organization became the Executive Secretary, with expanded responsibility outside the Organization Department. The Organization Department became the Education Department in 1972 and expanded to include the Book Room and Editorial Committees. The Department ceased to exist in 1980 and its responsibilities were transferred to the Working Groups reporting to Council.

Sub-Series: Candidates Committee/Candidates Secretary

Minutes	;
---------	---

1991-7020-11-8 1939-1949 Candidates Committee minutes

Applications (75 Year Restriction)

2010-7003-2-9 1940-1947 Candidates for mission service

Correspondence and applications

RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest

date in the file.

Personnel files (75 Year Restriction)

1988-7004-5-3 1927-1940 Personnel-Birtle Residential School

RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest

date in the file.

1988-7004-5-4 1927-1940 Personnel-Cecilia Jeffery Residential School

RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest

date in the file.

Sub-Series: Mission Studies and Sharing Projects

1988-7004-61-9	1947-1948	Our Commission in Canada and Overseas: Mission study theme
1999-7001-1-6	1950-1951	"Friends across Canada: Mission study programme for children's groups"
2010-7003-2-8	1935	"Friends Around the World: Mission Band Study Book" by Lereine Ballantyne
1999-7001-1-15	1964-1965	"Our neighbours: Mission study for primary children" (Chinese in Vancouver, Chinese in Toronto, Indians-Cecilia Jeffrey and Birtle Schools)

Sub-Series: Film Strip Scripts

2003-7008 [1950s-1980s]

Film Show Scripts
Includes slides on both Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey

Series: Records of the National Missions Department

The National Missions Department was established in 1925 and as its name suggests, focused on the national work of the W.M.S. (W.D.), including the operation of The PCC residential schools.

Scope and Content:

Series contains correspondence, reports, minutes, staff contracts, personnel records and school quarterly returns which document the work of the National Missions Department in managing Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and Birtle Indian Residential School.

Sub-Series: National Executive Secretary/Executive Director of National Missions

Annual & Quarterly Reports of Missionaries

1988-7004-10-1	1956	Annual Reports of Missionaries Personal reports of deaconesses and missionaries, including the principals at Birtle Indian Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School, on their work for the National Department and on the mission.
1988-7004-10-2	1958	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-3	1959	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-4	1960	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-5	1961	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-6	1962	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-7	1963	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-10-8	1964	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-1	1965	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-2	1966	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-3	1967	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-4	1968	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-6	1970	Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-7	1955	Excerpts from Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-8	1956	Excerpts from Annual Reports of Missionaries
1988-7004-11-9	1960; 1961	Excerpts from Quarterly Reports of Missionaries

National Missions Annual Report

1988-7004-11-10 1968 National Missions Annual Report

Report of Executive Director to Council on National Missions work, list of staff and excerpts from annual reports of missionaries, including the Principals of the two PCC residential schools

1991-7020-13-4	1926-1932	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-13-5	1933-1938	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-13-6	1939-1944	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-13-7	1942-1944	Committee appointed by Council to consider Synodical versus Provincial Division	
1991-7020-13-8	1944-1951	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-13-9	1952-1956	National Committee minutes Includes reference to "new Indian cemetery" (November 16, 1954)	
1991-7020-14-1	1957-1960	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-14-2	1961-1963	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-14-3	1952-1967	National Committee minutes- supplementary material	
1991-7020-14-4	1964-1967	National Committee minutes	
1991-7020-14-5	1968-1971	National Committee minutes	

Sub-Series: Indians Secretary

Sub-series contains correspondence of the Indian Secretary. The majority of the sub-series is comprised of correspondence between the Indian Secretary and the principals of Birtle Indian Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School. Prior to 1945, the W.M.S. had an Indian Schools Secretary position but this work was fully taken over by the National Executive Secretary in 1946.

Correspondence- Birtle Indian Residential School

1988-7004-7-1	1932-1933; 1938	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle Indian Residential School Correspondence and reports concerning management and administration of school, Jan. 1932-Dec. 1933, 1938 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1
1988-7004-7-2	1939-1940	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1
1988-7004-7-3	1941-1942	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1
1988-7004-7-4	1943-1944	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1
1988-7004-7-5	1945	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1
1988-7004-7-6	1946	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 1

Correspondence-Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School

1988-7004-8-1	1934-1940	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School Correspondence and reports concerning management and administration of school, Nov. 1934-Feb. 1940 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-2	1937-1941	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Includes a hand-drawn map of school property including the cemetery On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-3	1942-1945	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-4	1946	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Contains reference to burial services (March 16, 1946) On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
General		
1988-7004-8-5	1929-1945	Mistawasis Day School Correspondence with Principal and staff concerning management and administration of school and students, Jan, 1929-Aug, 1945 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-6	1938-1940	Roman Catholic Indian Schools Correspondence with school Principals and Department of Indian Affairs concerning transfers of students from Presbyterian Indian Schools to Roman Catholic Indian Schools, Apr. 1938-Feb. 1940 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-7	1937-1946	Department of Indian Affairs Correspondence with Government concerning Indian Schools, Oct. 1937-Oct. 1946. On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2
1988-7004-8-8	1931	Indian Work Correspondence and reports relating to work of Brandon Presbytery with Indians On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 2

Sub-Series: Indian Work

Sub-series contains correspondence, school quarterly returns, staff reports and personnel records specifically concerning the operation of The PCC residential schools from 1946 onwards. Prior to 1945, the W.M.S. had an Indian Schools Secretary position but this work was fully taken over by the national executive secretary in 1946. The majority of the sub-series is comprised of correspondence

between the national executive secretary and the principals of Birtle Indian Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School. There is also correspondence between the National Executive Secretary and the Department of Indian Affairs.

Birtle Indian Residential School - Correspondence

1988-7004-12-1	1946-1948	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle Indian Residential School Correspondence and reports concerning management and administration of school, Nov. 1946-Oct. 1948 (Two quarterly returns that were originally in this file were removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-1a").
1988-7004-12-2	1948-1950	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School
1988-7004-12-3	1950-1952	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School
1988-7004-12-4	1952	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School
1988-7004-12-5	1952-1953	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School
1988-7004-12-6	1954	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School (A quarterly return that was originally in this file was removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-6a").
1988-7004-12-7	1955	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School (Five quarterly returns that were originally in this file were removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-7a").
1988-7004-13-1	1955-1956	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School Contains reference to dedication of cemetery (August 20, 1952) On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3
1988-7004-13-2	1957-1958	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3
1988-7004-13-3	1958-1959	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3 (Two quarterly returns that were originally in this file were removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-13-3a". NOTE: They continue to be in file "1988-7004-13-3" on the microfilm, however).
1988-7004-13-4	1960-1961	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3 (A quarterly return that was originally in this file was removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-13-4a". NOTE: It continues to be in file "1988-7004-13-4" on the microfilm, however).
1988-7004-13-5	1962-1964	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3
1988-7004-13-6	1965-1966	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3
1988-7004-13-7	1967-1970	Correspondence with Principal, Birtle School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3

Birtle Indian Residential School - Quarterly Returns

1988-7004-12-1a	1947 June, Dec.	Birtle School Quarterly Returns Originally part of file "1988-7004-12-1" which is on open access. Removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-1a". RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-12-6a	1954 Sept.	Birtle School Quarterly Return Originally part of file "1988-7004-12-6" which is on open access. Removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-6a". RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-12-7a	1954 Dec., 1955	Birtle School Quarterly Returns Originally part of file "1988-7004-12-7" which is on open access. Removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-12-7a". RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-14-1	1957	Birtle School Quarterly Returns Returns to Government in compliance with federal regulations for grant claims per student: includes names and attendance records of students On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4 RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-14-2	1958	Birtle School Quarterly Returns On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4 RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-13-3a	1959 Mar., Dec.	Birtle School Quarterly Returns Originally part of file "1988-7004-13-3" which is on open access. Removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-13-3a". RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-13-4a	1960 June	Birtle School Quarterly Returns Originally part of file "1988-7004-13-4" which is on open access. Removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-13-4a". On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 3 as part of file "1988-7004-13-4" RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-14-3	1961	Birtle School Quarterly Returns

On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4 RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.

Birtle Indian	Residential	School-	General Files	′
---------------	-------------	---------	---------------	---

1988-7004-14-4	1962	Agreement for the Operation of Birtle Indian Residential School Agreement between W.M.S.(W.D.) and the Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Citizenship and Immigration, May 1962 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-14-5	1947	Birtle School - Staff Reports Letters and reports from teachers, janitorial staff, matron and domestic staff regarding their work On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4

Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School – Correspondence

		1
1988-7004-14-6	1942-1948	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School Correspondence and reports concerning the management and administration of school and welfare of students and staff, May 1942-Aug. 1948 On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-14-7	1948	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-14-8	1949	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-14-9	1950	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-14-10	1951	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 4
1988-7004-15-1	1951-1952	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5
1988-7004-15-2	1952	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5
1988-7004-15-3	1953	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5

1988-7004-15-4	1953; 1954	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence with Rev. J.C.E. Andrews
		On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5
1988-7004-15-5	1953	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence with Acting Principal, Mr. Eric Barrington On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5
1988-7004-15-6	1954-1956	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence with Mr. Eric Barrington, former Acting Principal On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5 (A quarterly return that was originally in this file was removed in Feb 2012 and re-filed as "1988-7004-15-6a". NOTE: It continues to be in file "1988-7004-15-6" on the microfilm, however).
1988-7004-15-7	1954	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence with Mr. Ivan B. Robson, Principal On microfilm 1993-8013, Roll 5
1988-7004-16-1	1955	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-2	1955	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-3	1955-1956	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-4	1956	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-5	1957	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-5.1	June 1957	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School Formal health report from Kathleen Stewart RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-16-6	1957-1958	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-7	1958-1959	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-16-8	1959-1960	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-17-1	1960-1961	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School

1988-7004-17-2	1962-1963	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-17-3	1964-1965	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-17-4	1966-1971	Correspondence with Principal, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-17-5	1968-1971	Correspondence with Administrator, Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence relating to W.M.S. (W.D.) financial support for school and informal reports on activities following transfer of control of school to Government
1988-7004-17-5.1	12 June 1969	Correspondence with Administrator, Cecilia Jeffrey School Job application from A. Loewen for the position of administrator. RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-17-6	1950	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School Concerning administration, salaries, conditions, personal matters and school activities
1988-7004-17-7	1951	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-17-8	1952	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-18-1	1952	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School Relates to additional responsibilities of deaconess, Kathleen Stewart pending appointment of new Principal Contains reference to cemetery (June-August)
1988-7004-18-2	1953	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-18-3	1954-1956	Correspondence with staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School
1988-7004-18-4	1957-1964	Correspondence with Staff, Cecilia Jeffrey School Includes reference to "Indian Cemetery" (June 23, 1958)
Cecilia Jeffrey Scho	ool - Quarterly Returns	
1988-7004-15-6a	1953 Dec. 31	Cecilia Jeffrey School Quarterly Return Originally part of file "1988-7004-15-6" which is on open access. Re-filed as "1988-7004-15-6a" in Feb.

า	Λ	1	2	
/	"	1	/.	

RESTRICTED - 75	years	from	the	latest
date in the file.	-			

1988-7004-18-10	1958	Cecilia Jeffrey School Quarterly Returns Returns to Government in compliance with federal regulations for grant claims per student: includes names and attendance records of students RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
Cecilia Jeffrey Scho	ool- Staff Contracts	
1988-7004-18-5	1953-1954	Staff Contracts, Cecilia Jeffrey School RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-18-6	1954-1955	Staff Contracts, Cecilia Jeffrey School RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-18-7	1955-1956	Staff Contracts, Cecilia Jeffrey School RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-18-8	1956-1957	Staff Contracts, Cecilia Jeffrey School RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-18-9	1957-1958	Staff Contracts, Cecilia Jeffrey School RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
Cecilia Jeffrey Scho	ool – General Files	
1988-7004-18-11	1962	Agreement for the Operation of Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School Agreement between the W.M.S. (W.D.) and the Indian Affairs Branch of the Department of Citizenship and Immigration
1988-7004-18-12	1938-1952	Cecilia Jeffrey School Boat Correspondence concerning insurance, maintenance and sale of boat
1988-7004-18-13	1965	Cecilia Jeffrey School Media Reports Correspondence and newscuttings concerning Indian work and residential schools: includes response to unfavorable article
1988-7004-18-14	[ca. 1953]	Report on Cecilia Jeffrey School Report compiled by Rev J.C.E. Andrews, Principal of school, 1952-53
1988-7004-18-15	1952	Visit to Cecilia Jeffrey School

Correspondence and list of staff prior to visit of W.M.S. (W.D.) deputation, concerning finance and administration of school, May 1952

1988-7004-18-16 1954

G.B.M. accommodation at Cecilia Jeffrey School Correspondence concerning the use of the cabin at Shoal Lake for staff of General Board of Missions

Indian Affairs Branch - Correspondence

1988-7004-19-5	1950-1953	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Citizenship and Immigration Correspondence, accounts, financial statements and circulars concerning the operation of Indian Residential Schools by Churches and Church-related organizations and the operation of Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey Schools by the W.M.S. (W.D.), Nov. 1950-Dec. 1953
1988-7004-19-6	1954-1956	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Citizenship and Immigration
1988-7004-19-7	1957-1958	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Citizenship and Immigration
1988-7004-19-8	1959-1961	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Citizenship and Immigration
1988-7004-19-9	1962-1966	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department on Citizenship and Immigration/Department of Indian Affairs and Northern Development
1988-7004-19-10	1966-1969	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Indian Affairs and Northern Development
1988-7004-20-1	1966-1971	Correspondence with Indian Affairs Branch, Department of Indian Affairs and Northern Development

Indian Affairs Branch - Negotiations on operation of Indian Residential Schools

1988-7004-20-2	1957	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools Correspondence, circulars, regulations, accounts, minutes of meetings of church representatives with Indian Affairs Branch concerning grant allocations and conditions; staff salaries and conditions; government regulations and negotiations on an Agreement for operating denominational Indian residential schools
1988-7004-20-3	1958	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools

1988-7004-20-4	1959	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools
1988-7004-20-5	1959-1960	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools
1988-7004-20-6	1960-1963	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools
1988-7004-20-7	1965-1968	Negotiations on Operation of Indian Residential Schools
Indian Affairs Brand	ch- General Files	
1988-7004-20-8	1961-1969	Meetings of Indian Affairs Branch and Church Representatives Correspondence and minutes concerning meetings on Indian denominational Residential Schools
1988-7004-20-9	1962	Government Financial Instructions for Indian Residential Schools Reference file issued by Indian Affairs Branch
1988-7004-20-10	1971	Correspondence on Operation of Indian Residential Schools Correspondence concerning the payment of employees in residences prior to transfer of schools to Indian Affairs in 1969, Oct. 1971
1988-7004-21-1	1960	Presbyterian Church in Canada Brief to the Parliamentary Committee on Indian Affairs
Personnel (75 year 1	restriction)	
1988-7004-18-17	1955-1958	Staff cards, Birtle School and Cecilia Jeffrey School Cards giving informal record of employment of staff RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-18-18	1951	Staff Applications, Indian Schools Letters of application, correspondence and references RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-19-1	1952	Staff Applications, Indian Schools RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-19-2	1953	Staff Applications, Indian Schools RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest date in the file.
1988-7004-19-3	1954-1962	Staff Applications, Indian Schools RESTRICTED – 75 years from the latest

date in the file.

Indian Work- Gen	eral Files	
1988-7004-21-2	1967; 1970	Conferences of National Fellowship of Indian Workers Conference materials from Estes Park, Colorado
1988-7004-21-3	1970	Conferences for W.M.S. (W.D.) workers among Indians Conference materials and correspondence
1988-7004-21-4	1954-1958	Correspondence with Welfare Council of Greater Winnipeg Correspondence concerning the establishment of a Referral Service and concerning Indians & Metis, July 1954-Sept. 1958
1988-7004-21-5	[1963?]	Canadian Indian Centre of Toronto Programme plans
1988-7004-21-6	1965-1969	Correspondence with National Association of Principals and Administrators of Indian Residences
1988-7004-21-7	1953-1956	Indian Work Correspondence, staff lists, and circulars, relating to Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey schools, placement of students, downtown work in Winnipeg and other W.M.S. (W.D.) work among Indians
1988-7004-21-8	1955-1959	Indian Work
1988-7004-21-9	1957-1958	Indian Work
1988-7004-21-10	1959-1964	Indian Work
1988-7004-21-11	1964-1971	Indian Work
1988-7004-21-12	1968-1971	Indian Work

Audio-Visual Material

2011-7001 n.d.

Audio-tape - "Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School and Birtle Residential School Choir"

Contains 30 songs. No indication on the tape as to when or where the songs were recorded. The original audio-tape was digitized by Rev. Stephen Kendall, Principal Clerk of The Presbyterian Church in Canada, in early 2011 and saved as two master "wav" files (one file for each side of the original audio-tape) and also as 30 individual "cda" files. The "wav" files have been saved to one CD and the "cda" files to another.

Sub-Series: Fellowship Houses and Inner City Missions

Sub-series contains correspondence concerning the Presbyterian Fellowship House which was a residence for students. The file includes information about former residential school students who stayed at the Fellowship House.

1988-7004-29-6

1964-1966

Winnipeg - Presbyterian Fellowship House

Sub-Series: Placement of Deaconesses and National Missionaries

Sub-series contains correspondence, reports, lists and memos concerning the appointment of student deaconesses and summer workers and the administration of summer missions: Sub-series also includes applications, placements, reports on summer workers by ministers and reports of work by summer workers. Included in these files are references to people who were summer workers at Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and/or Birtle Indian Residential School.

Summer Workers

1988-7004-31-1	1947-1948	Summer Workers
1988-7004-31-5	1953-1954	Summer Workers
1988-7004-31-7	1955	Summer Workers
1988-7004-31-10	1958	Summer Workers
1988-7004-32-1	1959	Summer Workers
1988-7004-32-2	1960	Summer Workers
1988-7004-32-5	1963	Summer Workers
1988-7004-32-7	1967	Summer Workers

Sub-Series: Personnel (75 Year Restriction)

Note:

These are general personnel files of the W.M.S. and as a result not all of the people listed below would have worked in a residential school. Further personnel files can be found in the W.M.S. Profiles/Personnel Files series. Personnel files specifically related to Cecilia Jeffrey or Birtle are in the Indian Work records of the National Missions Department.

Restrictions:

Each file is restricted for 75 years from the latest date in that file.

WMS Personnel Index Cards - RESTRICTED - 75 years

1999-7004 [1939?]-1999

Box includes several hundred index cards on WMS personnel, arranged alphabetically by last name. Includes employment particulars and address information.

WMS Personnel files – RESTRICTED – 75 years

1988-7004-33-1	1947-1947	Miss Ada Adams
1988-7004-33-2	1947-1955	Miss Margaret Allan
1988-7004-33-3	1952-1954	Mrs. Jessie Anderson
1988-7004-33-4	1955-1959	Mrs. Jessie Anderson
1988-7004-33-5	1960-1961	Mrs. Jessie Anderson
1988-7004-33-6	1960-1961	Mrs. Bessie Atlee
1988-7004-33-7	1965	Miss Margaret Balderston
1988-7004-33-8	1960	Miss Bernice Barker
1988-7004-33-9	1960-1964	Miss Bernice Barker
1988-7004-33-10	1961-1964	Miss Bernice Barker (Mrs. Stephen Shih)
1988-7004-34-1	1946-1951	Miss Hilda Blackwell
1988-7004-34-2	1952-1955	Miss Hilda Blackwell
1988-7004-34-3	1956-1959	Miss Hilda Blackwell
1988-7004-34-4	1960	Miss Hilda Blackwell
1988-7004-34-5	1963-1969	Miss Hilda Blackwell
1988-7004-34-6	1969	Mrs. David Blair
1988-7004-34-7	1948-1951	Miss Margaret Boyd
1988-7004-34-8	1955-1956	Miss Margaret Boyd
1988-7004-35-1	1957-1958	Miss Margaret Boyd
1988-7004-35-2	1957	Miss Margaret Boyd
1988-7004-35-3	1951-1954	Mrs. Wilhelmina (G.W.) Bradley
1988-7004-35-4	1959-1960	Mrs. Wilhelmina (G.W.) Bradley
1988-7004-35-5	1960-1966	Mrs. Wilhelmina (G.W.) Bradley
1988-7004-35-6	1967-1968	Miss Dorothy Brown
1988-7004-35-7	1968-1969	Miss Amy Chan
1988-7004-35-8	1967-1969	Miss Ellen Channon
1988-7004-35-9	1957	Miss Hazell Davis
1988-7004-35-10	1957-1960	Miss Hazell Davis
1988-7004-35-11	1959-1960	Miss Catherine Denholm
1988-7004-35-12	1959-1969	Miss Catherine Denholm
1988-7004-35-13	1961-1963	Miss Catherine Denholm
1988-7004-36-1	1951-1954	Miss Ellen Douglas
1988-7004-36-2	1955-1960	Miss Ellen Douglas
1988-7004-36-3	1962-1969	Miss Ellen Douglas

1988-7004-36-4	1963-1965	Miss Emily J Drysdale
1988-7004-36-5	1964-1967	Miss Marilyn Duffield (Mrs. Cecil White)
1988-7004-36-6	1962	Miss Mary Duffin
1988-7004-36-7	1945-1950	Mrs. Julia (M.) Fesenko
1988-7004-36-8	1962-1965	Miss Louise Gamble
1988-7004-36-9	1950	(Mrs.) May Mackay Gibson
1988-7004-36-10	1958	Miss Susan Gibson
1988-7004-36-11	1945-1954	Mrs. Sadie (S.M.) Gillespie
1988-7004-36-12	1953-1960	Miss Florence Goertzen
1988-7004-36-13	1960-1965	Miss Florence Goertzen
1988-7004-37-1	1968-1970	Mr. & Mrs. C.E.Hall
1988-7004-37-2	1966-1968	Mrs. Norma C. (D.F.) Hazell
1988-7004-37-3	1967-1971	Miss Betty Yan Ling Lam
1988-7004-37-4	1949-1954	Mrs. Loreen (W.B.) Leatherdale
1988-7004-37-5	1953-1957	Mrs. Loreen (W.B.) Leatherdale
1988-7004-37-6	1957-1958	Mrs. Loreen (W.B.) Leatherdale
1988-7004-37-7	1959-1960	Mrs. Loreen (W.B.) Leatherdale
1988-7004-37-8	1961-1965	Mrs. Loreen (W.B.) Leatherdale
1988-7004-37-9	1954-1965	Mrs. G.P.Louie
1988-7004-38-1	1957-1958	Miss Dorothy Lukes
1988-7004-38-2	1959-1960	Miss Dorothy Lukes
1988-7004-38-3	1961-1963	Miss Dorothy Lukes
1988-7004-38-4	1964-1967	Miss Dorothy Lukes
1988-7004-38-5	1949-1950	Miss Agnes Hislop
1988-7004-38-6	1962	Miss Ivy Howard
1988-7004-38-7	1967-1968	Miss Helen Hsieh-Tse-Keung
1988-7004-38-8	1945-1947	Miss Orra Hunt
1988-7004-38-9	1945-1955	Miss Muriel E Judd
1988-7004-38-10	1967-1969	Miss Dorothy Knight
1988-7004-38-11	1969	Mr. & Mrs. O. Kristensen
1988-7004-38-12	1961-1968	Mrs. Ellen (George) Mitchell
1988-7003-39-1	1964-1965	Miss Marion Moore
1988-7004-39-2	1957	Miss Evelyn Murdoch
1988-7004-39-3	1957-1961	Miss Evelyn Murdoch
1988-7004-39-4	1961-1965	Miss Evelyn Murdoch

1988-7004-39-5	1945-1951	Miss Estelle MacCousland
1988-7004-39-6	1961-1965	Miss Dorothy McCombie
1988-7004-39-7	1954	Mrs. Jean MacDonald
1988-7004-39-8	1956-1960	Mrs. A.C. McGillivray
1988-7004-39-9	1949-1950	Miss Grace Mackay
1988-7004-39-10	1945-1951	Miss Marjorie Mackay
1988-7004-39-11	1952	Miss Agnes MacLeod
1988-7004-39-12	1959	Miss Tamiko Nakamura
1988-7004-39-13	1959-1961	Miss Tamiko Nakamura
1988-7004-39-14	1952-1954	Miss Margaret Near
1988-7004-39-15	1957	Mr. Howard Neely
1988-7004-40-1	1949-1950	Miss Marguerite Quickfall
1988-7004-40-2	1947-1950	Miss Athalie Read
1988-7004-40-3	1951-1954	Miss Athalie Read
1988-7004-40-4	1955-1958	Miss Athalie Read
1988-7004-40-5	1959-1962	Miss Athalie Read
1988-7004-40-6	1954-1960	Miss Lillian Reay
1988-7004-40-7	1961-1964	Miss Lillian Reay
1988-7004-40-8	1968-1970	Miss Heather Tourangeau (Mrs. Rennie)
1988-7004-41-1	19661968	Mrs. Janet (C.E.) Reynolds
1988-7004-41-2	1952-1960	Miss Winnifred Ripley
1988-7004-41-3	1961-1966	Miss Winnifred Ripley
1988-7004-41-4	1968-1969	Miss Patricia Rivett (Mrs. J Riddell)
1988-7004-41-5	1943-1948	Miss Helen Ross
1988-7004-41-12	1953	Miss Helen Ethel Sanderson
1988-7004-41-6	1955-1959	Miss Lila Schneider
1988-7004-41-7	1960	Miss Lila Schneider
1988-7004-41-8	1962-1964	Miss Lila Schneider
1988-7004-41-9	1947-1950	Miss Isobel Scott
1988-7004-41-10	1966	Mrs. Ruth Seto
1988-7004-41-11	1963-1966	Miss Lily Simpson
1988-7004-42-1	1965	Miss Shirley Smart
1988-7004-42-2	1966-1968	Miss Shirley Smart
1988-7004-42-3	1961	Miss Dorothy Spring
1988-7004-42-4	1963-1964	Miss Dorothy Spring

1988-7004-42-5	1945-1963	Mrs. Beatrice (C.) Steinmetz
1988-7004-42-6	1962-1965	Miss Sheila Stephens
1988-7004-42-7	1966-1969	Miss Sheila Stephens
1988-7004-42-8	1956	Miss Hazel Turnbull
1988-7004-42-9	1957-1959	Miss Martine Jansen van Beek
1988-7004-42-10	1960-1961	Miss Martine Jansen van Beek
1988-7004-42-11	1961-1965	Miss Martine Jansen van Beek
1988-7004-42-12	1947	Miss Evangeline Vincent
1988-7004-42-13	1946-1948	Miss Evelyn Walker
1988-7004-43-1	1962-1966	Mrs. M.(B.H.) Wallace
1988-7004-43-2	1943-1950	Miss Ruby Walker
1988-7004-43-3	1963-1965	Miss Ruby Walker
1988-7004-43-4	1966	Mr. Colin Wasacase
1988-7004-43-5	1952-1954	Mrs. Barbara (William) Weir
1988-7004-43-6	1955-1956	Miss Sybil White
1988-7004-43-7	1956-1959	Miss Flora Whiteford
1988-7004-43-8	1960-1968	Miss Flora Whiteford
1988-7004-43-9	1954	Miss Bessie Irene Williams (Mrs. Cunningham)
1988-7004-43-10	1948	Miss Joyce Wooding
1988-7004-43-11	1965-1966	Miss Susan Yeung
1988-7004-44-1	1947-1948	Personnel - Placement of Deaconesses Correspondence from congregations requesting appointments of deaconesses; also training, bursaries, deaconess work and general administration
1988-7004-44-2	1948-1950	Personnel - Placement of Deaconesses
1988-7004-44-3	1950-1954	Personnel - Placement of Deaconesses
1988-7004-44-4	1953	Personnel - Placement of Deaconesses
1988-7004-44-5	1952-1958	Personnel - Deaconesses

Sub-Series: National Missions – General

1988-7004-45-1	1954-1960	Correspondence with General Board of Missions Correspondence and notices relating to inter-board matters and meetings of G.B.M.
1988-7004-45-2	1961-1963	Correspondence with General Board of Missions Correspondence mainly with Secretary for Home Missions relating to joint funding and joint interests in national missions

1988-7004-45-9	1954-1961	General Administration Correspondence, applications, reports and references, relating to candidates and employees of the W.M.S.(W.D.); to audio-visual presentations; and to miscellaneous national missions
1988-7004-45-11	[n.d.]	Historical Notes on National Missions Notes, articles and correspondence relating to deaconesses; Tyndale House; Missionary vans; Presbyterian Fellowship House, Winnipeg; Down- Town Missions; Cecilia Jeffrey and Birtle Schools; Chinese in Canada; St. Andrew's Presbyterian Homes Inc.; Welcome and Welfare work; and other aspects of National Missions
1988-7004-46-1	1946-1963	National Missions Folder Reference folder containing reports, statistics, inventories of equipment, staffing information and other material concerning all aspects of W.M.S. (W.D.) National Missions

Series: Records of the Finance Department

Sub-Series: Finance Committee

<u>Minutes</u>		
1991-7020-16-3	1928-1932	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-16-4	1933-1937	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-16-5	1938-1943	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-16-6	1944-1946	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-16-7	1947-1955	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-16-8	1956-1961	Finance Committee minutes
1991-7020-17-2	1967-1972	Finance Committee minutes

Series: Records of the Publications Department

The Publications Department, which was created in 1925, produced biographies and memoirs of missionaries and other pamphlets concerning mission work in Canada and overseas. The Department also disseminated information through the periodical *The Glad Tidings* (1925-present).

Note:

Not all the issues of the periodicals listed here contain reference to residential schools. For articles written on the residential schools while they were still being administered and operated by the W.M.S., consult the issues published before 1969. For information on healing and reconciliation initiatives, consult the issues published in 1991 and after. The periodicals are also available on microfilm.

Sub-Series: Committees

2010-7003-1-2 1956-1964 Public Relations Committee – Minutes

Sub-Series: Periodicals

.... 1914 -1925 The Missionary Messenger

On microfilm 2000-8024, Rolls 4-6

.... 1925-present The Glad Tidings

1925-2000 on microfilm

Sub-Series: Subject Reference Files

2010-7003-2-10 [1930s] Indian Life

Includes history of WMS work amongst

Aboriginal peoples and a letter about mission work on

the Waywayseecappo Reserve

Sub-Series: Publications

General

1989-7001-1-2	1989	A Lively Story: Historical Sketches of the Women's Missionary Society (Western Division) of The Presbyterian Church in Canada 1864-1989 Jean Campbell; Don Mills: W.M.S. (W.D.); 309pp.
1988-7004-60-17	[n.d.]	An Evening with Mrs Knox Clark; 11pp. "with Our Canadian Indians"; 12pp. "with the Ruthenians";
1988-7004-60-20	1936	Gleanings from Home and Overseas Reports, Toronto; 32 pp.
1988-7010-1-6	1917	Incident and Story From Far and Near; Toronto; 48 pp.

1988-7010-1-7	1918	Incident and Story From Far and Near; Toronto; 62pp.; Series II	
1988-7004-61-1	1919	Incident and Story From Far and Near; Toronto; 51pp. Series III	
1988-7010-1-8	1920	Incident and Story From Far and Near; Toronto; 56 pp.	
1988-7004-61-2	1936	Incident and Story From Far and Near; 39pp.	
1988-7004-61-3	1932	The Indians of Canada: Three Articles on Indian Affairs / Mrs. D.T.L. McKerroll, Mrs. W.S. Moore, & Dr. R.G. MacBeth; Toronto, 16pp.	
1988-7004-61-14	1921	The Planting of the Faith: A Further Story of Our Missions; 343pp.	
1988-7004-62-1	1915	The Story of Our Missions; 320pp.	
Pamphlets- Publicity and Activities of W.M.S.			
1991-7021-1-15	1945	With missions in mind (The Front Line bulletin) / by Janet A. Carruthers	
Pamphlets- National Missions			
1988-7004-62-10	[ca. 1923-1935]	*The Indian Before the White Man Came: Indians in Canada 1935; 4pp. *As We Work Among the Indians M.F.Pae; 1935; 4pp.	
1991-7021-1-16	1929	Our Indian work at Birtle / by Mrs. H.B. Currie	
Pamphlets- General Subjects			
Pamphlets- General	l Subjects		

Series: WMS Profiles/Personnel Files (restricted for 75 years)

Note:

These are general personnel files of the W.M.S. and as a result not all of the people listed below would have worked in a residential school. Further personnel files can be found in the Personnel records of the National Missions Department. Personnel files specifically related to Cecilia Jeffrey or Birtle are in the Indian Work records of the National Missions Department.

Restrictions:

Each file is restricted for 75 years from the latest date in that file.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2000-7003-7-1	1954-1980	Adams, Ada
2000-7003-7-2	1972	Adamson, Mrs. W.H.
2000-7003-7-3	1953-1961	Adamson, Mrs. W.R.
2000-7003-7-4	1969	Allan, Mrs. Marjorie
2000-7003-7-5	1955-1959	Anderson, Miss Ellen
2000-7003-7-6	1952-1959	Anderson, Mrs. Jessie
2000-7003-7-7	1971	Anderson, Rev. Robert Kneen
2000-7003-7-8	1968	Avison, Miss Margaret K., M.A.
2000-7003-7-9	1962-1982	Ballantyne, Mrs. Lereine Hoffman
2000-7003-7-10	1953	Baker, (Mrs. W.E.) Gladys
2000-7003-7-11	1971	Baker, Pat
2000-7003-7-12	1967-1969	Balderston, Miss Margaret
2000-7003-7-13	1969	Barbour, Miss Alison, B.Sc.
2000-7003-7-14	1953-1977	Beath, Mrs. Lance Bdeceased
2000-7003-7-15	1964-1967	Beattie, Mr. and Mrs. Austin
2000-7003-7-16	1970	Bandare, Bishop R.S.
2000-7003-7-17	1971-1972	Bigelow , Linda (Wood)
2000-7003-7-18	1953-1967	Blackwell, Miss Hilda
2000-7003-7-19	1993-1996	Blane, Ann (Milne)
2000-7003-7-20	1962-1971	Booth, Miss Mabel
2000-7003-7-21	1954	Bone, Georgina Mary
2000-7003-7-22	1960-1976	Boyd, Margaret
2000-7003-7-23	1953-1971	Bradley, Mrs. G.W.
2000-7003-7-24	1967	(Brown) Henderson, Dorothy
2000-7003-7-25	1951-1971	Brown, Miss Pauline
2000-7003-7-26	1972	Buckhurst, Miss Joan

2000-7003-7-27	1959-1972	Bulmer, Miss Dorothy
2000-7003-7-28	1961-1980	Burnett, Mrs. J.M.
2000-7003-7-29	1969	Caldwell, Miss Georgine
2000-7003-7-30	1969	Carson, Rev. John, B.Paed.
2000-7003-7-31	1971-1980	Cassidy, Jean (Gardner)
2000-7003-7-32	1967-1991	Chambers, Miss Rose, R.N., B.Sc.N.
2000-7003-7-33	1968	Channon, Miss Ellen
2000-7003-7-34	1992	Chen, Rev, Suti of Taiwan
2000-7003-7-35	1970-1971	Cheng, Miss Anna-Taiwan
2000-7003-7-36	1959-1967	Cherry, Mrs. Arthur Jdeceased
2000-7003-7-37	[n.d.]	Conkey, Agnes
2000-7003-7-38	1966-1969	Cook, Jean (Smith)
2000-7003-7-39	1961	Cooper, Mrs. John
2000-7003-7-40	1971-1972	Copeland, Miss Muriel
2000-7003-7-41	[1964-199-]	Corbett, Tam (Nakamura)
2000-7003-7-42	1992-1996	Corbett, Tam
2000-7003-7-43	1983-1991	Council Executive-Members questionnaire
2000-7003-7-44	1995	Council Executive questionnaire
2000-7003-7-45	1981-1989	Council- Members information
2000-7003-7-46	1992	Cowper, Mrs. Kay
2000-7003-7-47	1969-1972	Crosby, Brian and Elizabeth
2000-7003-7-48	1968	Cruvellier, Rev. Jena, B.Th., D.Th.
2000-7003-7-49	1961-1971	Curr, Mrs. A.Sdeceased
2000-7003-7-50	[n.d]	Daniel, Mrs. Jalal Masih
2000-7003-7-51	1972-1976	Davis, Rev. Glen
2000-7003-7-52	1957-1967	Davis, Miss Hazell
2000-7003-7-53	1963-1967	Dickson, Mr. and Mrs. F.J.
2000-7003-7-54	1972	Di Gangi, Mrs. Mariano
2000-7003-7-55	1959-1977	Douglas, Miss Dorothy
2000-7003-7-56	1930-1990	Douglas, Miss Ellen
2000-7003-8-1	1963	Dredge, Miss Shirley Katherine
2000-7003-8-2	1966-1967	Drummond, Miss Ann
2000-7003-8-3	1963	Drysdale, Emily
2000-7003-8-4	1965	(Duffield) White, Miss Marilyn
2000-7003-8-5	1970	Dunn, Rev. C.A.

2000-7003-8-6	1964	Ejere, Miss Comfort O.
2000-7003-8-7	1968	Elder, Rev John Calvin, B.A.
2000-7003-8-8	1984-1986	Ellis, Mrs. Clare
2000-7003-8-9	1969	Ellis, Rev. Ted, B.A., B.D.
2000-7003-8-10	1971	Eme, The Rev. Nwachuku
2000-7003-8-11	1970	Fesenko, Rev. Michael
2000-7003-8-12	1966-1967	Fong-sang, Mrs. Angela
2000-7003-8-13	1965-1971	Ford, Miss Iris
2000-7003-8-14	1965-1975	Funston, Miss Mary-Lou
2000-7003-8-15	1962-1969	Gamble, Miss Louise
2000-7003-8-16	1971	Gardner, Miss Jean
2000-7003-8-17	1959-1970	Gehman, Mrs. Mildred (L.W.), R.N. M.A.
2000-7003-8-18	1959-1970	Gollan, Miss Agnes, B.A.
2000-7003-8-19	1993-1995	Greig, Margaret
2000-7003-8-20	1959-1966	Hagan, Clara (Hanes)
2000-7003-8-21	1968-1969	Hall, Mr. and Mrs. C.E.
2000-7003-8-22	1971	Hall, Rev. Russell T.
2000-7003-8-23	1954	Hamilton, Mrs. Arthur
2000-7003-8-24	1971-1980	Hanna, Miss Pat
2000-7003-8-25	1971	Hartley, Mr. and Mrs.
2000-7003-8-26	1961	Haw, Ellen V.
2000-7003-8-27	1961-1967	Hazel, Mrs. Donald F.
2000-7003-8-28	1959-1993	Hermanson, Miss Hildur
2000-7003-8-29	1957-1984	Hislop, Miss Agnes
2000-7003-8-30	[1951992]	How, Mrs. Leone Su
2000-7003-8-31	1967	Hu, Mrs. Yew Fin Tam
2000-7003-8-32	1976-1980	Hummelen, Kathleen
2000-7003-8-33	1977-1979	Hunter, Miss Isabella T.
2000-7003-8-34	1964-1968	Hyndman, Miss Mavis
2000-7003-8-35	1953-1961	Inkster, Alice
2000-7003-8-36	1987	Jess, Grace
2000-7003-8-37	1961	Johnson, Mrs. E.H.
2000-7003-8-38	1971-1978	Johnson, Rev. E.H., B.Sc., Th.B., LL.D., D.D.
2000-7003-8-39	1966-1967	Johnson, Mrs. R.W. (Lois Cooke)
2000-7003-8-40	1967	Johnston, Rev. Geoffrey D., B.A., B.D., M.Th.

2000-7003-8-41	1967-1974	Katherburg, Diane (Tait)
2000-7003-8-42	1959-1961	Keefer, Mrs. Harold
2000-7003-8-43	1959-1967	Keller, Miss Dorothy
2000-7003-8-44	1961-1981	Kelly, Miss Giolo
2000-7003-8-45	1959-1980	Kennedy, Miss Margaret
2000-7003-8-46	1953	Kirkpatrick, Mrs. W.J.
2000-7003-8-47	1967	Knight, Miss Dorothy
2000-7003-8-48	1966-1975	Knott, Miss Eleanor, B.H.Sc., M.A.
2000-7003-8-49	1969-1970	Kristensen, Mr. and Mrs. Oluf
2000-7003-8-50	1967-1971	Lam, Miss Betty
2000-7003-8-51	1971	Landell, Miss M. Leslie
2000-7003-8-52	1959-1992	Leask, Miss Margaret
2000-7003-8-53	1950-1967	Leatherdale, Mrs. W.B.
2000-7003-8-54	1960-1967	Lee, Miss Elsie
2000-7003-8-55	1968-1971	Lee, Rev. Dr. In Ha
2000-7003-8-56	1970	Lee, Rev. Siu-Man
2000-7003-8-57	1968-1971	Livingston, Mrs. Dalice
2000-7003-8-58	[197-]	Logan, Mrs. Ruth
2000-7003-8-59	1958-1987	Louie, Mrs. G.P.
2000-7003-8-60	1957-1961	Lukes, Miss Dorothy
2000-7003-8-61	1953-1994	Magee, Miss Edith
2000-7003-8-62	1931-1996	Matthews, Miss Frieda
2000-7003-9-1	1967	Mercer, Mrs. Roy
2000-7003-9-2	1961	Millar, Mrs. (D.L.) Emma
2000-7003-9-3	1971	Milne, Rev. James William
2000-7003-9-4	1961-1967	Mitchell, Mrs. George
2000-7003-9-5	1972-1978	Moncrief, Brenda
2000-7003-9-6	1953	Moodie, Elizabeth M.
2000-7003-9-7	1962-1967	Morrison, Miss Doreen
2000-7003-9-8	1953	Munro, James Alan
2000-7003-9-9	1978	Munshaw, Mrs. Jean
2000-7003-9-10	1980-1984	Munshaw, Jean
2000-7003-9-11	1957-1967	Murdoch, Miss Evelyn
2000-7003-9-12	[n.d]	Murphy, Rev. David, B.A., M.Th.
2000-7003-9-13	1953-1984	Macarthur, Miss Lily

1978	Macdonald, Hazel (deceased)
1953	MacEachern, Anne
1970	Mackay, Rev. Angus
1953	Mackay, Anna Grace
1972	Mackay, Donald
1961	Mackay, Mrs. Eoin S.
1932-1986 (1865?-1952)	MacMurchy, Miss Bessie (1904?-1963) and Miss Bessie MacMurchy
1967	MacSween, Rev. Alex Ferguson
1961-1969	McClelland, Miss Luzetta
1960-1971	McCombie, Miss Dorothy
[n.d.]	McConnell, Miss Isabelle
1972-1979	McCutcheon, Mrs. W.E.
1974	McGill, Rev. Clare
1961-1970	McGowan, Miss Merle
1970	McGraw, Mr. Ron W.
[n.d]	McIntosh, Mrs. J.H.
1971	McIntosh, Rev. J.H.
1971-1972	McMullen, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
1978	McMullin, Miss Marjorie
[n.d.]	MacNaughton, Miss Margaret
1961-1967	Nakamura, Miss Tamiko
1979	Ncozana, Rev. Silas
1958-1971	Near, Miss Margaret, B.A.
1974	Newstead, Mrs. John
1963-1988	Nicol, Mary, Reg.N.
1960-1990	Nutt, Miss Mary
1988	Obituaries: Marion F. Thomlinson, Josephine Turnbull
1971	Oliver, Miss Helen R.
1952-1977	Pae, Mrs. Arthur W.
1981-1989	Parish, Mrs. (Norman) Eileen
1966-1968	Patras, Miss Shushila
1973	Peckover, Miss Ann
1961	Peckover, Mrs. G.
1949-1989	Pelton, Miss Laura K.
	1953 1970 1953 1972 1961 1932-1986 (1865?-1952) 1967 1961-1969 1960-1971 [n.d.] 1972-1979 1974 1961-1970 [n.d] 1971 1971-1972 1978 [n.d.] 1961-1967 1979 1958-1971 1974 1963-1988 1960-1990 1988 1971 1952-1977 1981-1989 1966-1968 1973 1961

2000-7003-9-49 1971 Petrie, Miss Diane, R.N., B.Sc. N. 2000-7003-9-50 1967-1970 Petrie, Miss Diane, R.N., B.Sc. N. 2000-7003-9-51 1961-1967 Phip, Mrs. Kenneth 2000-7003-9-52 1972-1974 Plummer, (Mrs.) Laura M.: Editor, Glad Tidings 2000-7003-9-53 1968 Powell, Rev. Donald H., M.A., B.D. 2000-7003-9-55 1970-1999 Powric, Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-1 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-1 1953-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-1 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 196	2000-7003-9-48	1958-1967	Pendergast, Miss Audrey
2000-7003-9-51 1961-1967 Phip, Mrs. Kenneth 2000-7003-9-52 1972-1974 Plummer, (Mrs.) Laura M.: Editor, Glad Tidings 2000-7003-9-53 1968 Powell, Rev. Donald H., M.A., B.D. 2000-7003-9-54 1967-1981 Powrie, Miss Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pyc, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg. N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalic 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivert, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970	2000-7003-9-49	1971	Percy, Miss Sandra
2000-7003-9-52 1972-1974 Plummer, (Mrs.) Laura M.: Editor, Glad Tidings 2000-7003-9-53 1968 Powell, Rev. Donald H., M.A., B.D. 2000-7003-9-54 1967-1981 Powrie, Miss Lois 2000-7003-9-55 1970-1999 Powrie, Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennic, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968	2000-7003-9-50	1967-1970	Petrie, Miss Diane, R.N., B.Sc.N.
2000-7003-9-53 1968 Powell, Rev. Donald H., M.A., B.D. 2000-7003-9-54 1967-1981 Powric, Miss Lois 2000-7003-9-55 1970-1999 Powrie, Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalic 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennic, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev	2000-7003-9-51	1961-1967	Phip, Mrs. Kenneth
2000-7003-9-54 1967-1981 Powrie, Miss Lois 2000-7003-9-55 1970-1999 Powrie, Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalic 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Fourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resigna	2000-7003-9-52	1972-1974	Plummer, (Mrs.)Laura M.: Editor, Glad Tidings
2000-7003-9-55 1970-1999 Powrie, Lois 2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen	2000-7003-9-53	1968	Powell, Rev. Donald H., M.A., B.D.
2000-7003-10-1 1967 Proudfoot, Miss Helen 2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Read, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss H	2000-7003-9-54	1967-1981	Powrie, Miss Lois
2000-7003-10-2 1961 Pye, Mrs. Gordon R. 2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, M	2000-7003-9-55	1970-1999	Powrie, Lois
2000-7003-10-3 1960-1997 Ramsay, Miss Margaret 2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross,	2000-7003-10-1	1967	Proudfoot, Miss Helen
2000-7003-10-4 1969-1974 Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N. 2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbe	2000-7003-10-2	1961	Pye, Mrs. Gordon R.
2000-7003-10-5 1969 Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm 2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalic 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell	2000-7003-10-3	1960-1997	Ramsay, Miss Margaret
2000-7003-10-6 [n.d.] Raveley, Hazel 2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennic, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian	2000-7003-10-4	1969-1974	Randall, Miss Joy, Reg.N.
2000-7003-10-7 1959-1970 Read, Miss Athalie 2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-5	1969	Ransom, Rev. R. Malcolm
2000-7003-10-8 1953-1987 Reay, Miss Lillian 2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev.	2000-7003-10-6	[n.d.]	Raveley, Hazel
2000-7003-10-9 1984-1994 Reid, Linda (Haffos) 2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-7	1959-1970	Read, Miss Athalie
2000-7003-10-10 1937-1983 Reith, Louise 2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-8	1953-1987	Reay, Miss Lillian
2000-7003-10-11 1968-1969 Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau) 2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-9	1984-1994	Reid, Linda (Haffos)
2000-7003-10-12 1967 Reynolds, Mrs. C.E. 2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-10	1937-1983	Reith, Louise
2000-7003-10-13 1953-1959 Ripley, Miss Winnifred 2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle -resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mr. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-11	1968-1969	Rennie, Mrs. Heather (Tourangeau)
2000-7003-10-14 1968 Rivett, Miss Patricia 2000-7003-10-15 [197-] Roberts, Rev. Earle F. 2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-12	1967	Reynolds, Mrs. C.E.
2000-7003-10-15[197-]Roberts, Rev. Earle F.2000-7003-10-161958-1970Robinson, Mr. S.T.2000-7003-10-171952-1956Rochemont, Joan2000-7003-10-181973Rose, Myrtle –resignation2000-7003-10-191930-1977Ross, Miss Helen-deceased2000-7003-10-201984Ross, Mrs. Marjorie2000-7003-10-211969Ross, Mr. Murray2000-7003-10-221991Rumball, Jean Campbell2000-7003-10-231940-1967Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M.2000-7003-10-241970Ruttan, Mr. Brian2000-7003-10-251971Samh, Rev. Haimdat2000-7003-10-261974Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-13	1953-1959	Ripley, Miss Winnifred
2000-7003-10-16 1958-1970 Robinson, Mr. S.T. 2000-7003-10-17 1952-1956 Rochemont, Joan 2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-14	1968	Rivett, Miss Patricia
2000-7003-10-171952-1956Rochemont, Joan2000-7003-10-181973Rose, Myrtle –resignation2000-7003-10-191930-1977Ross, Miss Helen-deceased2000-7003-10-201984Ross, Mrs. Marjorie2000-7003-10-211969Ross, Mr. Murray2000-7003-10-221991Rumball, Jean Campbell2000-7003-10-231940-1967Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M.2000-7003-10-241970Ruttan, Mr. Brian2000-7003-10-251971Samh, Rev. Haimdat2000-7003-10-261974Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-15	[197-]	Roberts, Rev. Earle F.
2000-7003-10-18 1973 Rose, Myrtle –resignation 2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-16	1958-1970	Robinson, Mr. S.T.
2000-7003-10-19 1930-1977 Ross, Miss Helen-deceased 2000-7003-10-20 1984 Ross, Mrs. Marjorie 2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-17	1952-1956	Rochemont, Joan
2000-7003-10-201984Ross, Mrs. Marjorie2000-7003-10-211969Ross, Mr. Murray2000-7003-10-221991Rumball, Jean Campbell2000-7003-10-231940-1967Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M.2000-7003-10-241970Ruttan, Mr. Brian2000-7003-10-251971Samh, Rev. Haimdat2000-7003-10-261974Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-18	1973	Rose, Myrtle –resignation
2000-7003-10-21 1969 Ross, Mr. Murray 2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-19	1930-1977	Ross, Miss Helen-deceased
2000-7003-10-22 1991 Rumball, Jean Campbell 2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-20	1984	Ross, Mrs. Marjorie
2000-7003-10-23 1940-1967 Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M. 2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-21	1969	Ross, Mr. Murray
2000-7003-10-24 1970 Ruttan, Mr. Brian 2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-22	1991	Rumball, Jean Campbell
2000-7003-10-25 1971 Samh, Rev. Haimdat 2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-23	1940-1967	Rusaw, Mr. and Mrs. N.M.
2000-7003-10-26 1974 Sangaya, Rev. J.D.	2000-7003-10-24	1970	Ruttan, Mr. Brian
	2000-7003-10-25	1971	Samh, Rev. Haimdat
2000-7003-10-27 1963 Sarjeant, Miss Barbara Suzanne, R.N., R.H.N.	2000-7003-10-26	1974	Sangaya, Rev. J.D.
	2000-7003-10-27	1963	Sarjeant, Miss Barbara Suzanne, R.N., R.H.N.

2000-7003-10-28	1959-1994	Schneider, Miss Lila
2000-7003-10-29	1959-1974	Scott, Miss Beatrice
2000-7003-10-30	1973	Scott, Rev. Charles A.
2000-7003-10-31	1958-1991	Scott, Miss Gertrude
2000-7003-10-32	1968	Self, Rev. Russell, M.A., B.D., M.Th.
2000-7003-10-33	1986	Shepherd, Mrs. Mary
2000-7003-10-34	1959-1967	Sherrick, Miss Mary
2000-7003-10-35	1961-1962	Shih, Mr. Stephen
2000-7003-10-36	1968-1971	Shin, Miss Young Ja
2000-7003-10-37	1959	Simpson, Miss Lily
2000-7003-10-38	1952-1961	Sinclair, Mrs. I.G.
2000-7003-10-39	1970-1971	Sinclair, Miss Margaret
2000-7003-10-40	1971	Sitahal, The Rev. Harold
2000-7003-10-41	1965-1967	Smart, Miss Shirley
2000-7003-10-42	1966-1967	Smith, Miss Jean
2000-7003-10-43	1971	Smith, Mrs. Katherine (hospital visitor)
2000-7003-10-44	1956-1987	Smith, Miss Nellie
2000-7003-10-45	1968-1969	Smith, Miss Sheina
2000-7003-10-46	1972	Soden, Mrs. Ruth Ann
2000-7003-10-47	1962-1967	(Stephens) Cotton, Miss Sheila
2000-7003-10-48	1980	Stewart, Miss Margaret, R.N.
2000-7003-10-49	1959-1989	Stringer, Miss Irene
2000-7003-10-50	1970	Stuart, Miss Charlotte
2000-7003-10-51	1971	Sukhdeo, Rev. George
2000-7003-10-52	1967	Tait, Miss Diane
2000-7003-10-53	1968	Talbot, Rev. Rodger, B.A.
2000-7003-10-54	1961	Taylor, Mrs. (J.B.) Dorothy A.
2000-7003-10-55	[196-]	Taylor, Miss Elsie
2000-7003-10-56	1969-1992	Taylor, Miss Isabel
2000-7003-10-57	1962-1967	Tetley, Miss Helen
2000-7003-10-58	1961-1972	Thompson, Mrs. A. Glenn
2000-7003-10-59	1961	Treleaven, Mrs. E.C.
2000-7003-10-60	[1963]	Tsa, Mrs. Grace
2000-7003-10-61	1969	Tse, Miss Fanny
2000-7003-10-62	[n.d]	Unger, Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A.

2000-7003-10-63	1957-1974	van Beck, Miss Martine
2000-7003-10-64	1959-1987	Wadsworth, Miss Diana
2000-7003-11-1	1940-1992	Walker, Miss Ruby
2000-7003-11-2	1967-1975	Wallace, Miss Annabelle
2000-7003-11-3	1953-1961	Wallace, Mrs. G.L.
2000-7003-11-4	1962	Wallace, Mrs. H.B.
2000-7003-11-5	[n.d]	Warrington, Mrs. G.
2000-7003-11-6	1966-1969	Wasacase, Mr. and Mrs. Colin
2000-7003-11-7	1955-1967	Watson, Miss Catherine
2000-7003-11-8	1952-1957	Webster, Dr. Margaret
2000-7003-11-9	1969-1975	Welsh, Miss Wilma
2000-7003-11-10	1952-1975	Whale, Miss Mary
2000-7003-11-11	1959-1972	White, Miss Ida
2000-7003-11-12	1978	Whitefield, Jim and Kass
2000-7003-11-13	1956-1957	Whiteford, Miss Flora
2000-7003-11-14	1948	Williamson, Miss Marion
2000-7003-11-15	1958-1967	Wilson, Miss Annie
2000-7003-11-16	1971	Wilson, Mrs. Barbara (Raymond)
2000-7003-11-17	[n.d.]	Wilson, Rev. Dr. Donald J.
2000-7003-11-18	1971	Wilson, Rev. and Mrs. Robert D.
2000-7003-11-19	1969	Wong, Miss Grace Y.C.
2000-7003-11-20	1971	Wood, Miss Linda M.
2000-7003-11-21	1962-1999	Woodruff, Barbara
2000-7003-11-22	1972-1995	Woodruff, Barbara, part I
2000-7003-11-23	1972-1995	Woodruff, Barbara, part II
2000-7003-11-24	1959-1963	Wu, Miss Katherine
2000-7003-11-25	1953-1995	Yeandle, Miss Ruth
2000-7003-11-26	1967	Young, Mrs. Elsie
2000-7003-11-27	1958	Yeung, Miss Susan
2000-7003-11-28	1970	Yun, Rev. Ching Wen (John)

Series: General Records of the W.M.S. (W.D.)

Sub-Series: Scrapbooks

1988-7004-64-2	1951-1952	Scrapbook Newscuttings concerning national missions and immigration to Canada
1988-7004-64-5	1957-1962	Scrapbook Newscuttings concerning Synodicals and Presbyterials
2000-7004-9-6	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part I)
2000-7004-9-7	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part II)
2000-7004-9-8	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part III)
2000-7004-9-9	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part IV)
2000-7004-10-1	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part V)
2000-7004-10-2	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part VI)
2000-7004-10-3	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part VII)
2000-7004-10-4	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part VIII)
2000-7004-10-5	[ca. 1927-1930]	W.M.S. Photo book (part IX)
1991-7020-17-8	1926-1941	Scrapbook of profiles of W.M.S. workers: A-L
1991-7020-17-9	1926-1941	Scrapbook of profiles of W.M.S. workers: M-Z

Provincials/Synodicals and Presbyterials of WMS

Administrative Sketch:

The local work of the W.M.S. (W.D.) is carried out by Presbyterials and Provincials/Synodicals. The boundaries of the Presbyterials are co-extensive with the Presbytery. Provincial Boards were established in 1914 to oversee the work of the Presbyterials. In 1946-47, the Provincials were replaced by Synodical Societies whose boundaries are co-extensive with the Synods. These local groups, especially the Presbyterials and Provincials/Synodicals located in the same geographical area as the residential schools, received reports of the mission work happening at The PCC operated schools and would have collected supplies to send to the schools.

Scope and Content:

Contains minute books of presbyterials and provincials/synodicals within the W.M.S. (W.D.). Included in these minute books are a few reports and updates on residential schools as well as actions taken by the Synodical or Presbyterial such as sending supplies to the schools or recommending candidates for staff positions at the schools.

Series: Manitoba Provincial/Manitoba Synodical/Manitoba and North-Western Ontario Synodical

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1988-7006-3-1	July 1925-March 1928	Minute book Minutes of annual, semi-annual, executive and committee minutes
1988-7006-3-2	Nov. 1931-Nov. 1934	Minute book (Manitoba Provincial)
1988-7006-3-3	Jan. 1935-March 1942	Minute book (Manitoba Provincial)
1988-7006-3-4	April 1952-March 1961	Minute book (Manitoba Synodical)
2005-7002-1-1	1928-1931	Minute book (Manitoba Synodical)
2005-7002-1-2	1940	Minute book (Manitoba Synodical)
2005-7002-1-3	1941	Minute book (Manitoba Synodical)

Series: Brandon Presbyterial

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2005-7001-1-1	1925-1934	Minutes
2005-7001-1-2	1934-1940	Minutes
2005-7001-1-3	1944-1950	Minutes

Synods

Series: Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario

Administrative Sketch:

The Synod of Manitoba and the North-West Territories was erected in 1884. In c.1900 the name was shortened to the Synod of Manitoba. Finally, the name was changed to the Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario in c.1962. Both Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and Birtle Indian Residential School were located within the boundaries of the Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario.

Scope and Content:

Series consists of minutes of the Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario which include reports and updates on The PCC operated residential schools. Every year of minutes contains only a few references to residential schools.

Minutes and Meeting Materials

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1973-2008-1-1	1884	Minutes
1973-2008-1-2	1889, 1897, 1900-1903	Minutes
2001-2001-1-1	1919	Minutes
2001-2001-1-2	1921	Minutes
2001-2001-1-3	1925-1930	Minutes
2001-2001-1-4	1933-1935	Minutes
2001-2001-1-5	1937-1945	Minutes
2001-2001-1-6	1946-1955, 1957	Minutes Signed copies
2001-2001-1-7	1958	Minutes
2001-2001-1-8	1959-1962	Minutes Signed copies
2001-2001-1-9	1963	Minutes
2001-2001-1-10	1964-1965	Minutes Signed copies
1995-2003	1925-1941	Minutes
1973-2008-1-3	1925-1950	Minutes
1973-2008-1-4	1952, 1956-1959	Minutes
1973-2008-1-5	1961-1962	Minutes
1973-2008-1-6	1963-1967	Minutes
1973-2008-1-7	1968-1969	Minutes
1973-2008-1-8	1970-1971	Minutes

1973-2008-1-9	1972-1973	Minutes
1987-2005-1-1	1974-1975	Minutes
1987-2005-1-2	1976-1977	Minutes
1987-2005-1-3	1978-1979	Minutes
1987-2005-1-4	1980-1981	Minutes
1987-2005-1-5	1982-1983	Minutes
2011-2002	1983	Minutes Signed
1987-2005-1-6	1984-1986	Minutes
1992-2026	1990	Minutes
1994-2008	1993	Minutes and reports
1996-2009	1994	Minutes
1996-2001	1995	Minutes
1997-2002	1996	Minutes
2001-2025	1998, 1999	Minutes
2011-2003	1999, 2000	Minutes Signed
2011-2004	2001	Minutes
1992-2066	1955	Annual Report
1992-2070	1981	Treasurer's Report
1992-2069	1983	Official Call to the Annual Meeting

Anishinabe Fellowship

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

1992-2067 1979 Report to the Board

Corporation of the Synod of Manitoba

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

1982-2003-2-1 1961-1964 Trust deed and supplementals

Interfaith Immigration Council

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u> 1992-2071 1981 Report

Inter-Synod Committee on Public and Private Education in Ontario

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u> 1992-2006 1982 Report 1987-2002-1-21 1983 Report

1989-2001-1-1 1989 Report (contained within the Meeting Docket)

1994-2009 1993 Report

Inter-Synod Native Christian Elders' Meetings

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u> 1992-2029 1982 Minutes

Inter-Synod Task Force on Native Ministries

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

1992-2029 1981, 1982, 1984 Minutes, report

Missions Committee

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u> 1992-2068 1983 Report

Western Conference

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

1973-2009-2-9 1945 Synods of Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Alberta and

British Columbia conference to discuss western organization, including proposed single synod for

Prairie Provinces

Presbyteries

Series: Presbytery of Brandon

Administrative Sketch:

The Presbytery of Brandon was constituted in 1884 due to the expansion of the Presbyterian Church in Canada in Western Canada. In 1925 most of the congregations entered the United Church of Canada.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1985-8035 - Reel 1	1925 May – 1970 Oct.	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
1985-8035 - Reel 2	1970 Nov. – 1982 June	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
1989-8007	1982 Sept. – 1988 April	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
1994-8004	1988 May – 1993 April	Minutes Microfilm
1999-8023	1993-1997	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
2001-8001	1998-2000	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
2008-8004	2004 Feb. – 2006 May	Minutes <i>Microfilm</i>
1977-3023-1-1	1948	Minutes Copy minutes
1977-3023-1-2	1949	Minutes Copy minutes
1977-3023-1-3	1950	Minutes Copy minutes
1977-3023-1-4	1951	Minutes Copy minutes
1977-3023-1-5	1973	Minutes Copy minutes
1977-3023-1-6	1975	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1980	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1986	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1987	Minutes

		Copy minutes
3000	1988	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1990	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1991	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1992	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1993	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1994	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1995	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1996	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1997	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1998	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1999	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2000	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2001	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2002	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2003	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2004	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2005	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2006	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2010	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2011	Minutes Copy minutes

Series: Lake of the Woods Presbytery

Administrative Sketch:

The Presbytery of Lake of the Woods was erected on October 3, 1962 within the Synod of Manitoba and Northwestern Ontario. Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School was located within the boundaries of the Presbytery. The Presbytery was dissolved on January 1, 1992.

Scope and Content:

Series consists of a minute book for the Lake of the Woods Presbytery meetings which contain a few references to the retirement of several staff members of Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1992-3004-1-1	Oct. 4, 1962-Feb. 4, 1975	Minute book
1988-3024-1-1	1976	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3024-1-2	1984-1986	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3024-1-3	1987	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3024-1-4	1988	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1989	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1990	Minutes Copy minutes

Series: Presbytery of Superior

Administrative Sketch:

The Presbytery of Superior was constituted in 1894 by a division of the Presbytery of Winnipeg. In 1962 part of the Presbytery of Superior was removed and constituted as the Presbytery of Lake of the Woods.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
1988-3019-1-1	1976	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3019-1-2	1977	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3019-1-3	1978	Minutes Copy minutes

1988-3019-1-4	1979	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3019-1-5	1980	Minutes Copy minutes
1988-3019-1-6	1981	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1987	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1988	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1989	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1990	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1991	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1992	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1993	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1994	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1995	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1996	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1997	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1998	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2000	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2001	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2002	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2003	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2004	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2005	Minutes

		Copy minutes
3000	2006	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2007	Minutes Copy minutes

Series: Presbytery of Winnipeg

Administrative Sketch:

The Presbytery of Winnipeg was constituted in 1884. In 1894 the eastern part of the Presbytery of Superior.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	Description
1988-8031 - Reel 1	1925 July – 1961 March	Minutes Microfilm
1988-8031 - Reel 2	1961 April – 1978 Oct.	Minutes Microfilm
1988-8031 - Reel 3	1978 Oct. – 1980 Oct.	Minutes Microfilm
1977-3024-1-1	1961	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-2	1970	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-3	1972	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-4	1973	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-5	1974	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-6	1977	Minutes Copy minutes - incomplete
1977-3024-1-7	1974 June	Order of Service Service of Remembrance and Thanksgiving on the Occasion of the Commencement of the Centenary of The Presbyterian Church in Canada
1977-3024-1-8	n.d.	Anishinabe Fellowship Constitution
3000	1988	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1989	Minutes Copy minutes

3000	1990	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1991	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1992	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1993	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1994	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1995	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	1998	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2002	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2003	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2004	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2005	Minutes Copy minutes
3000	2006	Minutes Copy minutes

Congregational Records

First Presbyterian Church, Kenora

Historical Sketch:

The congregation of First Presbyterian Church, Kenora had its beginnings in 1930 when members of the Knox United Church broke away to re-establish a Presbyterian presence in the community. The first church service was held at the Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School in May 1930 and was led by E.W. Byers, principal of Cecilia Jeffrey. The following year the congregation moved to a building closer downtown and were organized as a formal congregation. The first minister was Rev. W.J. Pellow and he served at the Church until 1931. After the purchase of a manse and adjoining property in 1949, the congregation made a formal decision to build a new church building. The cornerstone was laid in November 1954 and the building was finished by August 1955. The new church was dedicated on June 21, 1956, coinciding with the 25th anniversary of the congregation. First Presbyterian Church maintained many ties with Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School. The congregation of First Presbyterian Church often held services or special events such as turkey suppers at the school. Members of the Cecilia Jeffrey choir would also perform at the Church on special occasions. Several staff members at the school including Ivan Robson and Stephen Robinson, both principals at Cecilia Jeffrey, served as ministers or elders of First Presbyterian Church. On May 30, 1971, a stained glass window was placed in the Church and dedicated to the staff and students of Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School.

Scope and Content:

Contains baptismal, marriage and burial registers from First Presbyterian Church which include names of students who attended Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School. Session minutes contains reference of students and staff at Cecilia Jeffrey. Also contains two histories of First Presbyterian Church which both reference the connections between the school and the Church.

Restrictions:

Please note that access to the vital statistic records and the session minutes is restricted.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
Vital Statistics 2004-8023	1937-2000	Baptisms (microfilm) RESTRICTED – 95 years
2004-8023	1946-2002	Marriages (microfilm) RESTRICTED – 80 years
2004-8023	1949-1968	Burials (microfilm) RESTRICTED – 75 years
2004-8023	1978-2002	Burials (microfilm) RESTRICTED – 75 years

Session

2004-8023 1956-2004 Session Minutes (microfilm)

RESTRICTED - 50 years

2004-8023 n.d. Historic Roll (microfilm)

Publications and Histories

2004-8023 1956-2004 Historical Sketch (microfilm)

2003-4001 1882-2002 "First Presbyterian Church, Kenora, Ontario." 40

pp., ill. – History

Personal Papers Collections

Kay Blake fonds

Biographical Sketch

Kathleen "Kay" Blake (nee Stewart) was born on April 1, 1910 in Monkton, Ontario to William and Emily Stewart. She was a nurse at Birtle Indian Residential School from 1937 to 1950. In 1950 she became the nurse at Cecilia Jeffery Indian Residential School and worked there until 1958. Kay married Ernest Blake in 1958. She passed away in 2006.

Scope and Content:

Consists of Kay Blake's diaries/daily journals for the years 1929-1991. The diaries document her day to day activities as she writes about the weather, her family and friends, nursing duties and church activities. Kay Blake also writes about her time at Birtle Indian Residential School and Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School.

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
2003-5008-1-1	1929-1934	Diaries Vol. 1 and Vol. 2
2003-5008-1-2	1934-1944	Diary Vol. 3; also one pocket reminder book, and two WMS annual reports
2003-5008-1-3	1957-1969	Diaries 2 pocket-sized books
2003-5008-1-4	1971-1975	2 diaries
2003-5008-2-1	1976-1977	1 diary
2003-5008-2-2	1977-1979	1 diary
2003-5008-2-3	1979-1981	1 diary
2003-5008-2-4	1981-1983	1 diary
2003-5008-2-5	1983-1985	1 diary
2003-5008-2-6	1985-1987	1 diary
2003-5008-2-7	1987-1988	1 diary
2003-5008-2-8	1988-1991	1 diary
2003-5008-2-9	1930-1935	1 autograph book Poems written by Kay Blake's friends
2003-5008-2-10	1975	1 calendar
2010-5007	1950-1968 (copied c. 1990)]	Biographical information, writings and other material

Stewart Folster fonds

<u>Biographical Sketch</u> Needs to be written.

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

2012-5003 Handwritten notes of a speech given by Rev.

Stewart Folster at the TRC National Event in

Halifax, NS

Richard Horst fonds

<u>Biographical Sketch</u> Needs to be written.

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

2012-5004 2011 Handwritten notes of a speech given by Rev. Rick

Horst at the TRC National Event in Halifax, NS.

Larry Jackson fonds

Biographical Sketch Needs to be written.

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>

2014-5001-1-1 1958-2013 Minister's Record Book

Contains listings of sermons preached by Rev. Larry Jackson as well as lists of individuals baptized by him between 1958 and 1975. Also includes a list of individuals that professed a faith in Christ.

**Access to the baptism records is restricted for 95 years from the date of the baptism

2014-5001-1-2 1958-1978 Our Manitoba Ministry Scrapbook

Contains photographs from Rev. Larry Jackson's time serving as minister in Elphinstone and Oak Lake, Virden, Pipestone, Lenore and sometimes Birtle

Residential School.

Bernice Shih fonds

Biographical Sketch Needs to be written.

<u>File No.</u> <u>Date</u> <u>Description</u>
2012-5008 August 26, 2012 IRS Memories

Copy of a reflection/story about her memories as a deaconess at the Birtle and Cecilia Jeffrey schools and on

the various reserves around them.

Periodicals

Not all of issues of the periodicals listed here contain reference to residential schools. For articles written on the residential schools while they were still being administered and operated by The Presbyterian Church in Canada, consult issues published before 1969. For information on healing and reconciliation initiatives, consult issues published in 1991 and after. The periodicals are all located in the Periodicals Section of the Archives.

The Acts and Proceedings (1875-present)

The Acts and Proceedings of the General Assembly of The Presbyterian Church in Canada are a yearly publication containing the minutes of the General Assembly, reports of the boards and committees of the Church, and statistical information for each congregation across the country.

<u>File No</u>	<u>Date</u>	<u>Description</u>
	1875-present	Acts and Proceedings of the General Assembly of
		The Presbyterian Church in Canada
		1875-1975 on microfilm (28 reels; no accession #)
		1976-1980 on microfilm (2 reels; acc. #1998-8002)
		1981-1990 on microfilm (5 reels; acc. #1999-8047)

The Canadian Society of Presbyterian History Papers (1975-present)

The Canadian Society of Presbyterian History was formed in 1975 for the purpose of promoting interest in the history of Presbyterianism through regularly-held meetings and the publication of papers. The Society meets once each year, usually in Toronto, on the last Saturday in September and publishes an annual periodical.

 2008	Bush, Peter. "Spoken with Native Languages:
	Presbyterian Evangelistic Efforts Among the
	Native Peoples of the Prairies, 1908-1909." The
	Canadian Society of Presbyterian History — Papers 2008.
	The Canadian Society of Presbyterian History. ed.
	Elizabeth J. Millar; 76 pp.

Foreign Missionary Tidings (1897-1914)

The Foreign Missionary Tidings was published by the Women's Foreign Missionary Society.

 1897 May-Dec.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1898 JanDec. (ex. Feb.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1899 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Jul, Dec.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1900 FebApr., Oct.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2

 1901 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Jun., Nov)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1902 JanDec. (ex. Sep.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1903 JanDec. (ex. Apr., Nov, Dec)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1904 JanDec. (ex. AprJun, Nov.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1905 JanDec. (ex. Jul., Aug.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1906 JanDec. (ex. Jun, Sep, Nov.)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1907 JanDec. (ex. Apr., May, Oct)	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1908 Jul., Aug.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1909 Apr., Nov.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1910 Apr., Jun, JulSep.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1911 Jan., Feb.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1912 Nov.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1913 Mar., Apr., Jul-Sept.	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2
 1914 Mar., Apr., June	Foreign Missionary Tidings On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 2

The Glad Tidings (1925-present)

The Glad Tidings is published by the Women's Missionary Society (Western Division).

---- 1925-present The Glad Tidings 1925-2000 on microfilm

In Our Small Corner/Streams of Justice (2001-present)

In Our Small Corner was prepared and issued by the Justice Ministries department of the Life and Mission Agency of The Presbyterian Church in Canada. In 2010 the name of the newsletter was changed to Streams of Justice.

 2001-2010	In Our Small Corner
2010-	Streams of Justice

The Missionary Messenger (1914-1925)

The Missionary Messenger was published by the Women's Missionary Society (Western Division).

---- 1914 -1925 The Missionary Messenger

On microfilm 2000-8024, Rolls 4-6

Monthly Letter Leaflet (1887-1897)

The Monthly Letter Leaflet was published by the Women's Foreign Missionary Society.

 1887 May, Sept., Oct.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1888 Aug., Dec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1889 Mar., May, June, AugDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1890 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1891 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1892 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1893 JanDec.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1894 JanDec. (ex. Mar)	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1895 JanApr.	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1
 1895 May – 1897 April	Monthly Letter Leaflet On microfilm 2000-8024, Roll 1

Presbyterian History (1957-present)

Presbyterian History is the twice-yearly publication of The PCC's Committee on History.

 May 2004	Bush, Peter. "The Native Residential School System and The Presbyterian Church in Canada." Presbyterian History. Volume 48, Number 1 Located in the Periodicals Section
 May 2006	Campbell, Mary F. "The Impact of the Residential School Experience on the Contemporary Approach of the Presbyterian Church in Canada to Relationships with Aboriginal Peoples." <i>Presbyterian History</i> . Volume 50, Number 1

Located in the Periodicals Section

May 2010

Bush, Peter. "The Presbyterian Church in Canada and The World Missionary Conference, Edinburgh 1910." *Presbyterian History*. Volume 54,

Number 1

Located in the Periodicals Section

The Presbyterian Record (1875-present)

The Presbyterian Record was founded in 1875 and replaced the official periodicals of the four denominations which united to form The Presbyterian Church in Canada. The periodical is published monthly.

---- 1875-

The Presbyterian Record 1876-2001 on microfilm

Photographs

The Archives holds approximately 1000 photographs of Cecilia Jeffrey Indian Residential School and Birtle Indian Residential School. Although the photographs span the years 1890-1965, the majority are from the 1950s and 1960s. The photographs depict school buildings, staff, classrooms and class pictures, and students engaged in various activities whether work or play. There are also some later photographs of the former school buildings which were taken in the 1990s and 2000s.

These photographs are all kept in the Graphics Collection of the Archives. To view these photographs, please consult with the Archivist.

Note for the Archivists:

The residential school photos held by the Archives were found by doing title and scope and content searches in the Graphics database using the keywords "Indian," "Aboriginal," "Native," "Residential," "Cecilia Jeffrey," and "Birtle." Staff also searched through collections of photographs that have not yet been described in the database. Any photos found as a result of this search were scanned and described. New accessions of residential school photographs that came into the Archives were scanned and described as soon as they were received.

The photographs, approximately 1000 in total, were all scanned and saved on DVDs as .tif files. Photographs that concern healing and reconciliation activities as opposed to photographs taken at the schools during their existence as residential schools were saved on separate CDs. Photographs from the residential schools former staff workers gathering held by The Presbyterian Church in Canada in April 2002 as well as the photographs from the Remembering the Children Winnipeg Event in 2008 can be found on these separate CDs. The DVDs and CDs, which are updated to **October 2010**, can be found in the graphics filing cabinet in a labelled box.

The complete listing of residential school photographs can be obtained by doing a search for "residential" in the title field of the Graphics database.

Audio-Visual Records

<u>File No.</u>	<u>Date</u>	Description
2011-1025	1994	"Journey to Wholeness: Reweaving the Relationships with Aboriginal Peoples" – Video Located in the Audio-Visual section of the Archives
2011-7001	n.d.	Audio-tape - "Cecilia Jeffrey Residential School

and Birtle Residential School Choir"

Contains 30 songs. No indication on the tape as to when or where the songs were recorded. The original audio-tape was digitized by Rev. Stephen Kendall, Principal Clerk of The Presbyterian Church in Canada, in early 2011 and saved as two master "wav" files (one file for each side of the original audio-tape) and also as 30 individual "cda" files. The "wav" files have been saved to one CD and the "cda" files to another.